38" ANNUAL REPORT

2018-19

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED




CONTENTS

Directors’ Report 1
"Corporate Governance Report 25
Managemént Discussion & Analysis 36
[independent Auditors’ Report 38
Balance Sheet 48
| Profit & Loss Account 47
Cash Flow Statement 48
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Financial 49
Statements
Consolidated Fiﬁancial Staterments L

NOTICE

88




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 38V Annual Report along with Audited Financia
Statements of the Company for the fimancial year ended 31* March, 2018,

FINANCIAL RESULTS |
The highlights of the financial results are as under: '

Rs.
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31,93 2018 |
Totzl Income 142,15,17,383  80,67,28,706 :’
|
Frofit before exceptional and Extra- 19,41,74,240 3 82,23 420
Crdinary items and tax
Less:
Provision for dirninulion in value of 1,612,960 (37.61,25,534)
investments
Provision for Non- Performing Assets 10,71,09,870 (3333'599}

Profit{loss) before tax 85,451,510 42_25_33.953

Frovision for Taxation 4,33,43,989 5581649 823
Profit/{loss) after Tax 4,21,07,521 35,?5,14,1§D :
Balance brought fonvard from previous 2,15,51,10,669 186,10,95 365
year '
Profit available for appropriation 2,19,72,18,180 2 22,86,13,495
APPROPRIATIONS

-Transfer to Slatutory FResenve §4,21,600 735,02, 826 ‘

-Balancs carried to Balance Sheet 2,18,87,96,580 21551, 10,669
i
2,19,72,18,190¢ 2 22,86,13,485 |




DIVIDEND

i

I

|

With a view to conserve resources for future business operations of the Company, yeur Directors dn
not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS !

Total income of the Company dwing the year was Rs. 1421517 |akhs as against Rs. 8067.29 lakhi
in the previcus year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs 854,52 lakhs as against Rs.

4226.84 lakhs in the previous year. The profit after tax was Rs. 421,08 lakhs as against Rs. 3475.14
lakhs in the previous year.

i
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES C
Your Company has one subsidiary namely Crishpark Vincom Limited and ons associste name'y

Kushagra Infrastructure Private Lirnited. There has been no material change in the nature of
business of subsidiary companies,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 128 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a2 statement cnnfa[nirg

salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary and associate companies is attached to
the financial statements of the Company.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companfes Act, 2013, the financial
statements of the Company, consolidated financial statements along with relevant dosuments ar

d
separate audited accounts in respect of subsidiary are svailable on the website of the Company
www. sudhaapparels,com T

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Companiss Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidat
Financial Statements read with Accounting Standard AS-23 on Accounting for Investments |in
Asscciates, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with Auditors’ Report form- pad:nf
this Annual Report. '

.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri Mangat Ram Garg, Cirector of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual Gen
Meeting and being eligible, nffers himself for re-appoimtment. He has resigned as Whole-ti
Director of the Company an 10" May, 2019, howsver, he is continuirg as Director of the Enmpan

Shri Sunil Gautam has been appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect fmm
1* June, 2019. Further he has also been demgnated as Whole-ime Direclor and Key Managenal
Personnel of the Company with effect from 1% June, 2014 for a pericd of 3 years. i
Shri R.K. Banthia has resigned as independent Director on 8" August, 2018 due to his pre-
ogeupation. Dir. Roma Kumar was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company %nd
designated as Independent Director for a period of five year w.e.f. 8 August, 2018,

Erief resume of Diractors who are proposed to be appainted/re-appointed is furnished in the Notice
of Annual General Maating.

Al Independent Diractors of the Company have given declaration that they meel the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 148{8) of the Companies Act, 2012 and Regulation 25 of
lhe SEBI (Listing Ohligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlatinns, 2015,




Shri Rajesh Gupta has resigned as Company Secretary of the Company on 31 March, 26195 H
wag again appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company and also been designated as Ke;

Managerial Personnel with effect from 1 June, 2019,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 202 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Manageria)
Personnet of the Company are Shri Sunil Gautam, Whole-tima Director, Shii Rajash Guptal
Company Secretary and Shri Arup Mitra, Chief Financial Officer.

BOARD MEETINGS !

During the year four Board meetings were held. The details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this repart.

ECARD EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out the Annual performance evaluation of its own, Boa
Committees and Individual Directers pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the

Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed under SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosurs
Requirements} Regulations, 2015,

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board, after seeking inputs from ail the
Directers on the basis of criteria such as Board composition and structures, effecliveness of Board
processes, information and funclioning ete.

The performance of the Committess were svalusied by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee members on lhe basis of the criteria such as the composition of Committass,
effectiveness of Commiltes meeatings.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Cammittee reviewed tha performance of the
individual Directors on the basls of the crteda such as contribution of the Individua! Directur to the
Board and Commibittos meetings.

Also in a separate meeting of Independent Direclors, performance of non-independent Dlrectof
n

performance aof the Board as a whole was evaluated. The Company had no designated Chairm
during the year 2018-19,

POLICY DN DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
The Company's policy on Directors’ appoiniment and remuneralion including criteria for determining
gualifications, posilive attribules, independence of Directors and other matters provided in Section

178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the corporata govemance report, which
forms part of the Directors' Repaort.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Adequate measurss have been adopted by the Company o anticipate, plan and mitigate h’:e

spectrum of risks it faces. The Company's business operations are exposed to financial rlsks
including Liquidity Risk etc,

The Board of the Company has approved the Risk management Policy of the Campalnyr atnd
authorized the Audil Commiittee to implement and monitar the risk management plan for the

Company and alse identify and mitigate the various element of risks, if any, which in the opmmn of
the Baoard may threaten the axistence of the Company,

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 1
As per the provisians of Section 134({5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Campany has in place

adequate internal financial controls with reference 1o financlal statements. Audit Cobnmiftee
periodically reviews the adequacy of internal financial controls,

During the year, such controls wera iested and no reportable malerial weaknesses were nbs._en.reii:l.




DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Diracters stata:

] that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 21:'1 th?
applicable accounting standards had been followed and there ara no material departures

it} that the accounting policies selecled and applied are consistent and the judgments an
gstimates made are reasonable and prudent 50 as lo give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company-at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Cempany for that
period;

(i} that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the malitenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding t
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities; ©

{ivy that the Annuat Accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2019 have been prepared on [a
going concerm Hasis;

{«) that the internal financial controls laid down by the Board and being followed l:r_-,v tHe
Company are adequate and were operating effectively and

(vi} tha!the proper systems, devised by Directors 1o ensure compliance with the provisions of ?II
applicable laws, were adequate and operating effectively. :i !

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN ;

As required under Section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual Rﬂlum {in
prascribad form MGT-2 is annexad with this Report. I|

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company as on 31* March, 2019 consists of Shri R.K. Banth:a
Chairman, Shri Mangat Ram Garg and Shri Vibhore Kaushik as its other members. The ‘terms|of
reference are In conformity with tha rerquirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 20013 and
Regulation 18 af the SEB! {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2 { 5,

VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and established the necessary vigil macham:,m
for Directors and employees o report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspe::t&d fr?.xd

or violation of the Company's Code of conduct. The said policy has been disclosed jon the
Company's website under the web

: nk
htte iwww sudhaapparels. comf{Sudha\histle BlowerFolicy. pdf R :

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has formulated a Gorporate Social Respnnm lity
Policy [CSR Policy) indicating the aciivities {0 be undertaken by the Company, manilﬂﬂng he
implermentation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount {0 be apen <h
CSR aclivities, which has been approved by the Board. Tha CER Policy may be accasseg on [the

Company's website under the web link hitpfeww sudhaapparels com/CSR%20Pa
ﬁumm :

The Annual Report an CSR activities In the format prescribed in the Companiss {Cnrpnratﬁ S
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure to this Report. i

PARTICULARS GF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Section 18€(11) (B) of the Companles Act, 2013, provisions of Section 135; aral not
applicable to any acquisition made by a non-banking financial company registered under{Chapter
B of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and whoss principa! busginess is acquisition of securnities

{i.e. investment and lending activities). Tha Ceormpany has not given any guarantee or prov ded any
security.




CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES |
All cantracts/ armangementsiransactions entered into by the Cnmpan}r with the related parties
during the year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's Iength basis.

Ali related party transaclions are periodically placed befors the Audit Committes for review and
approval.

Information on fransactions with related padies pursuant to Section 134N of the Act read wilh
Rule 8(2} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are appended in Form AQC-2 as Annexure {o

this Repart. i
CORPCRATE GOVERNANCE REPORY

Pursuanl to the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremen )
Regulations, 2015, Cerporate Governance Report along with Auditors' Certificate reqarding
compliance of conditions of Corperate Governance has been anpexed as part of this Annual Repnn

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT |

A detailed analysis of your Company's perfortnance is discussed in the Managerment Dlscussmn
and Analysis Report which forms part of this Annuat Report,

INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WDRKPLAC:E
{PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Company has constituted an Internal Complaint Committee under Section 4 of the Sex al

Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibitlon and Redressal} Act, 2013. During the

year no complaint was filed before the s2id cormmities, i

AUDITORS

Pursuarnt to the provisions of Scclion 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thersunder, M/s Bidasaria & Associates, Charlered Accountants, were appoinled as Statutbry
Audlitors of the Company from the conelusion of 36™ Annual General Meeting of the Company till fhe
conclusion of 41* Annual Genera! Meeling.

The shservations of the Auditors are explained wherever necassary in the attached Annexure A,

COST RECORDS :

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Centre Government urlder
Section 148(1} of the Companies Act 2013,

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Direciors state that applicable Secretanial Slandards 1.2, $5-1 and $5-2 relating to Meetmgs of

the Board of Dirsctors’ and ‘General Msstings' respectively have been duly followed byithe
Company. |

SECRETARIAL ALDIT

The Board has appeinted Mfs Hemant Singh and Associates, Practising Company Secretarrer to
conduct Secretarial Audit for the finangial year ended 31™ March, 2019, The Secretarial Audit
Repurt for the year ended 31% March, 2018 is annexed herewith as an annexure ta this Report. ' Tha
Secretarial Audit Report does not sontain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark

A Certificate under Clause (i} of point {10} of para C of Schedule V of tha Securities and Exchange
Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015 by Mis Hemant
Singh and Assaociates, Company Secretaries confirming that none of the Gireclors on the Board of
the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appoinied or continuing as Directors of
the Company by Secuwrities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corparate Affairs or ‘any such
statutory authority is attached as Annexure B. r



FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from Public and as such, no amount on accoimt of
principal or interest on depostts from public was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Shdet.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TEGHNOLOGY ABSORPTIDN FOREIGN EKCHAHG‘E
EARNINGS AND QUTGO

I view of the business activities of iRe Company, the information retating to conservation of ener'g ,
technology absorption, foreign exchange eamings and outgo, as required undsr Section 134{3)(m)

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8({3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 afe n t
applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS CF EMPLOYEES C
Pariiculara of employees, as required under Section 19712} of the Companies Act, 2013 {Ar;i} e
with Rules 5(1), 5(2} and 5(3) of the Companies {(Appointmeni and Remuneration of Manage
Personnell Rulas, 2014, forms part of this report. However, in pursuance of Section 135(1] of the
Act, this report Is belng sent to the shareholders of the Company excluding the said informati n. The
said information is available for inspection by the members of tha Company at the registerad offi
of the Cnrnpan:.r during working hours up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. Any miem

interested in obtaining such information may write 1o the Company Secretary at the mrporatg
of tha Company. ||

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

Mo material changes and commliments, effecling the financial position of tha Gumpan hava

occurred after the end of the financial vear ended 31 March, 2018 and till the date of this repurt !

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ;
The Board expresses its grateful appreciation of the assistance and co-operation receivéd from
Central and State Govarnments, Banks and Shareholders. '

;-
Your Directars wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the devoted n:on*tnbm ian
made by the employees and associates at all levels.

For and on bshalf of th_,L Bgarg

Placa: Gurgaoh Mangat Ra!m
Dated: 8" August, 2019 '

']:'mir an
DIN; 100449709
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Reply to Auditers Remarks

Anmexure -4

Auditors’ Comments

Company's Reply

1.

Proviion  of Rs. 208 lakhs for Leave
Encashment Payable and Rs. 13.60 lakhs far
Gratuity Payable 15 not supported by any
actuarial calculation.

There is ne reguirement for actuarial
valuation as the Company has only
eight employees. Provisian for Gratuity
has been made as per Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972 and working therecf

audit.

intetnal Audit Report has not been provided.

to the Auditors at the time af audit,

Balence confirmation of trade recewables and
other advances has not been provided.

Ezlance confirmation has already been
provided to Auditors at the time of
audit.

Management has not disclosed the transactions
made during the year with the related parties.

Transactions with related parties has
been disclosed in in Note to Accounts

’ -hduance"df Rs. 1000 lakhs given. to Crishpark

vincomn  Limmited  [Subsidiary Company] 15
included in the calcuiation of both provisien for
non-performing  assets  and provisions  far
standard assets As. 2.50 lakh Had the amount
in the provision for standard gssets, the profit
of the Company would have been increased by
Rs. 2.50 lakh.

Pravisioh apainst Standard assets has
bean made as per RBI requirement,

Provision for NPA has not been made property
for imterest free loan of Rs, 10 crore and ng
provision has been made Interast bearing loan
amount of Rs. 27.10 crore to Crishpark Vincam
Limited {subsidiary of Company}.

Frovision has been made as per RBI
reguirement.

Hon-disclosure of advance of Rs. 2 1akh given to
one of the Director of the Company.

T!hmnu_nt of Rs. 2 lakh paid as advence |

Mor-provisien for municipal tax pald Re. 97.45
lakhs. Had the amaunt been provided, the

decreased by Rs. §7.45 lakhs.

profit of the Company would have been

The Expenses have been booked on
payment basis.

Fixed assets register and supporting for physical
verification of fixed assats have not been
provided.

Fixed assets register and verificatio

audit.

10.

No agreament provided for brokerage paid Rs.
9.45 lakh to Anshul Gupta HUF.

to Who'e Time Director against salary. 4
q:

1

g |
b

n
cartificate was provided at the time nf§ :

i

was provided to auditars at the time of | |

Internal Audit report already provided | i :

transaction agalnst iovestment i

Bonds.

. il
No agreement wos entered with|
broker, as Company had one time:

1




"Details and documents af Capital advance Rs.
649 82 Jakhs has not been provided. -

Mo capital advance was givan l:iuring-
the year 2018-19. All documents
related to advances of previous years
arz already with the Auditors.

Rent agreements have not been provided

There is only eng new rent agreement
entered during the year and the same
has baen provided to the Auditors at
the time of audit.

Proper bifurcation of trade receivable has not
besn done as per Schedule 1.

&l receivabies are less than six months
old and shown properly, in Notes.

‘Minutes of audii committea has nol been
pravided

tinutes of audilt committee were
provided to  the Auditors  for
varlfication at the time of audit.

15,

Company Registers have not been previded for
verification

All company stetutory registers werg
provided to the auditars for their
verification at the tlme of audit.

16.

purchase * Involce  for  purchase  of Alr
Conditioner (Addition to Fixed assefs) Rs. 5.38
lskn has not been provided

Relevant Involce was provided to the
suditors for their verificatlon.
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R])

[Pursuant to clavse (o) of sub-section [3) of sechion 134 of the Act and Rule § of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibilityy Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the Company's CS5H policy, including overview of projects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link te the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

The Beoard of Directors. on recommendaton of the Caorporate Social Responsibility Comnuttee framed a
Corporate Social  Fesponsibility Pohcy  which s pested on the  Company's  website
wew sudnaapparels.com, The Company proposes to adopt projects or programmes under one or more

af ihe activities as prescnbed under Schedule Vi of the Companies Act, 2013, as recommended from
lirme ta time.

2. The Composition of the CS5R Committee.

The Company has a CER Committee of Directors comprising of Shri Mangat Ram Garg. Chairman of the
Committee and Shri B K Banthia and Shri Vibhore Kaushik as its other members.

3 Awerage net profit of the Company for last three financial years — R5. 2332.95 Lakhs

4 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two pet cent of the amount as in item 3 abave) —Rs. 46.66 Lakhs
5 Details of CSR spent during the financial year

a1 lotal amount ¢ be spent for the financial year ~ Rs. 46.6G Lakhs

by Amount unspent, if any — 36.88 Lakhs

{c) Manner in which the amount spent during Lhe financial year is detailed below.

§ Reasons for nat spending two parcent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof on C5R.

The Company considers vanous propasals for carrying out CSR activities to ensure that the contributions
made by the Company are for deserving causes and are properly utilized, which has taken more time than
estenated and hence the required amount was not spent dunng the year. The Company was slill evalualing
vanous proposals at the year end.

{. A rosponsibility statament of the CSR Committee that the implemeantation and monitaring of CSR Policy, is
in complance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with CSR
shjectves and policy of the Company.

Savita Jindal B Mangat Ram Garg

[
!
‘ Director Chairman C5R Committes




Total CER Spend

Amount
spent on A t
Projects or programs (L) AS;:{'::; the nrojects Cumulative SP:::'
di . :
| CSR Project or Activity Scctor in which the project is Lucal.area or other (2} {Budget) or programs | Expenditure Direct ar
3t. No. | . . Bpecify the State and subhends upto the
: identified covered N profect or . through
district where projects or programs i[1}) Direct reporting implement
programs was undertaken. . Ebcpe;izlinure peried Ing agency
! Ouverheads
i .-
: For providing shelrer, foods Through
Delhi NCE 3 010,000 300,000 3,00 000 implementi
Eradicating hunger, : g HEEncy
poverty and malnutriticn
1 and  prmnosng health - — ——
car: ineluding preventive . .
heall eare ;2;.513.1;9;.;:11113 bedical help and Through
A Delhi NCR ' 3966000 3,00 000 3,00,000 implementi
' ! ng agency
i i
- . - —
‘ Through
2 Pratmoting education Far promating s:luration Delhi HCR 4, [H1, 0010 4 Q0000 & 00,000 implementi -
I 12 Agency
1
46,866,000 10,040,000 10,00,000




Hemant Singh ¢r Associates
Company Secrefaries

SECRETARIAL AUMT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31" March, 2019

[Pursuznt to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.5 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Fersonunel) Rules, 2814]

Te,

The Wembers,

Sudhs Apparels Limited

243 Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flat No A, §th Floor,
Kalkata-100020

We have conducted the Secectarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by SUDHA AFPARELS LIMITED {iercinafter called “the
Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a mamer thal provided us a reasonable basis for
evalupting the corporale conductsfstatutory compliances and expressing our opinian thereon,

Based on gur venfication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, [orms and retums Hiled and

other records maintained by the Company and also the informatian provided by the Company, its officers,

agents and authorized representelives, during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in :
wur opinion, the company has, during the audit peciod covering the financidl vear ended on 31" March, .
2019 complied with the stawdory provisions listed hereunder and also thue the Company has proper ¢

Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the exient, in the manner and subject to the ;

reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute boaks, forms and returns filed and other reconds maintaingd
by SUDIHA APPARELS LIMITEL ("the Company™ for the financial vesr ended on 317 March, 20718
ageording to the provisions of:

{it  TheCompanies Acl, 2013 {the Act) and the Rules made thereumder;

[ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA™) and the Rules made there under;

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Tramed thereunder;

(iv}  Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1992 and (he rules and regulations made thereunder o the
eatertt of Fowsipn Dircel Tnvestmenl, Onerseas Direct Investment and External Commetcial
Borrowings,

(¥]  The fallowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 {*3EBI Act™}:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

b. The Securities angd Exchange Board of [ndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {1ssue of Capital and Disclosure Roquircments)
Regulations, 2013 (Not applicakle 5o the Company duripng the Audit Feriod);

e AW AR TR

Head Off.; 306, Surya Complex, 21, Veer Savarkar Block, :
Mob. : 97177 92134, 93127 07354 Emai! : hemantsinghcs@

H

et ur, Delhi-110 092 Ph. Off.: 011-4301 182
gmall.com, hemant singh11 l@rediffmai}_j:mm
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d. The Securities and Exchange Doard of India {Share Based Employee Benelits) Regulations, .
2014 — (Not applicable o the Compnay durkng the Andit Period); i

e. The Securiics and Fxchange Brard of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) |
Regulapons, 2008- (Nat applicable to the Company during the Aodit Periad):

I The Secorities and Exchange Board of ndia (Repistrars to an Issue and Share Transier
Apenis) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client with respec
1o issue of securities;

g. The Securities and Exchange Buard of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulationg, 29 -
(Mot applicable to the Company durlng the Audit Periad); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not
applicuble to the Compapy during the Apdit Period); :

i. The Securities and bBxchange Board of Indin {Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Reguirements) Regulalions, 2015,

EEE S

e mmreima:

s

fvil}  Other laws applicable specifically 1o the Company namely:
@. Mon-Banking Finangial Company-Mon Systemically important Mon-Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and other relevant guidelines and circulars |

issued by Reserve Bank of Indta from time to lime and periodic reporting done by the ! -
|

Company.
b. and ather relevant guidelines and circulars issued by Resetve Bank of [odia from time o

time and periodic reporting's done by the Company.
We have also examined compliance wilth the Standards! Regulations of the Following:

{2) Secretarial Siandards issued by The Instiute of Company Secreiaries of Tndia

=== miadnamssmncosven

During the peried under review, as per our audit of records of the Cmnpan}f and as p&r the -:xpianatmns
ane clarifications given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Ack, Rules,

Regulations. Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

O T

We Furiher report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly canstituled with proper balance of Executive Directo
MNon-Gxecutive Directors and lndependent Direclors. The changes in the composition of the Board o
Dircclors that ok place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the

provisions of Lhe Act

Adequate notice was given 1o all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed noles o
agenda were sent in advance, and & system cxists for seeking and chuaining further information ané
" clarifications on the agends items befon: fhe meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

.I
: b
The degisions of the Board were carmed out Lhrough unanimous votes, no dissenting views of ank

- 1 . 1 !
Director was recorded in the minues maintained by the Company. 4

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company comunensurate wlliﬁi
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, ru]e§

regilations and puidelines.

DT T
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We further report that during the audit pericd there has not been any such activity having a major
bearing an the Company’s atfairs in pursuance of e aboees relerred laws, rules, regulations, puidelines

219

Far Hemant Singh & Assoctales
Company Scerclarics

*

Late: 8™ August, 2019 Sk %ﬁ
Place: New Delhi {Hemant Kunar St
{Partner} ! -
FCS 6033 |
C.P. No, 6370 |

Sewr— oo e

Rl

This Repert is 1o be read with Annexure A, which forms an integral part of this repon.

IR s T Cr e e,




Antexure A |

e Memhers

Sudba Apparcls Limited
275 Surat Bose Road. Sukh Sagar, !
Fial MNe 8aA, S Floar, il
Kolkara-700020 ;

(ur report of gven date (s to be read along with this lener.

1. Mainenance of secretarial regnrd is the responsibility of the management ai the Company, Our -
responsibilily i5 to express an opintan on these secretarial racords based on our audi,

2. We have followid the audit praclices and progesses as were appropriale Lo oblan reasonable assuranee
about e correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The venficalion was done on the L
randumt test basis to ensure thatl correct facts are reflected in secretariul records. We believe Lhal the ':
processes and practices, we ipllowed provide a reasonable basis for cur opimion. :

We have hot verified the correciness and approprialeness of fimancial  revords und Books of Accounts

[} ]

of the Camppany.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Masagement representation about the complianee of laws, |
rules and regudations and lappening of events ete. :

5. The compliange of the provisions of e Corporats and wviher applicable laws, niles, rcgulaujons_.'
sandards is the resporsibility of management, Qur examinalion was limited te the veritication af,

procedures on randarm st basis,

&, “I'he Secrctarial Audit report is neithar an assuranee as to the future vability af the company nar of the
eficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs ol the Company. ;

For Hemant Sinzgh & Associales
Comparty Secrerurics

Pariner

bMembership No. 6033

Certificate of Practice No. 6370

Dawe: " Aupust, 2009 .
Place: New Delhi _ il




Hemant Singh ¢ Assoclates
Company Secrekaries
CERTIFICATE QF NON-THSQUALIFICATION QF DIRECTYORY
[Pursuant to Regulaiion 34(3) and cluuse (i} of Point (1#) of Para C of Schedule ¥ of the SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Tu, i
The Members '
Sudba Apparels Limited

5 Baral Base Road, Sukh Sagar,

Flal Mg 84, Bih Iloar,

Kolkara-700020 |

We have examined Lhe relevant regisiers, recands, forms, returns and disclosures received om the
Liectors of SUDHA APPARELS LIMITLED bearing CIN Li7299WRI9S1PLCRIZIIL and
Registered Office at 243 Saral Bose Road., Sukh Sapar, Flat Mo A, $th Floor, Kelkalu-700020
{hereinafier referred to as *the Company™), produced before os by the Company for the purpose af
issuing this Certificale, in accordance with Begulation 3403} read with clause (1) of Point (10) of Para
C of Schedute V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (1isting Obligationg and Iisclosure
iRequirenients) Regulations, 201 5.

In owr opinion and 1o the best of our information and according 1o the verifications (including
Dircctors ldentification Number ([N} status at the portal www mea pov.in) as considered necessary
and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the :
Directors on the Board of the Company os stated below {or the Fipancial Year cnding on March 31,
2019 have been debTed or disgualitivd frnn being appointed or conlinuing as Directors of Company
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Mnustry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other
Statufory Authoriny:

 S.No | Name of Director Direetoy [dentifieation Nom I.1u|:d:Jt_l,fh[)ll'ﬁlﬂiw
b | Mr. Mangat Ran Garg . 00449704 ;
2. | Mrs. Savita Jindal ToodavrdoT
"3, | Mr, Vibhore Kaushik (1334866 ’
L . _“P\ir_. Rajendra kumar Banthia :H: ) 07 L7022 mj

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment ¢ continuity of every Dircetor on the Board is IhE!
responsibility of the managemem of the Company, Qur responsibility is to expross an opinion on!
these based on our verification. This certifleste is netther an assurance a3 to the future viability of the |
Company nor of the efficiency or effectivencss with which the management has canducted the affairs”
of the Company, :

i

For [lemant Singlh & Assecfotes |

Cerneprenssy Secrel) -«“"TEQ

g

N ETET
{Tarner}

FCS No. 6035

Date: §" August. 2019 CF No ﬂm;'
Hage: Mew Delhi :

Fhemant Kuink

Head OfF.: 306, Surya Complex, 21, Veer Savarkar Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110 092 Ph, Off. : 011-4301 1821
Mob. : 97177 92134, 93127 (7354 Email : hemantsinghcs@grnail.com, hemant_singhl11@rediffmaiicom




[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies {Accounts)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associates

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Farm AOC-1

Ruies, 2014]

Companies! Joint Ventures
Part “A” Subsidiaries:

Sr.No. | Particulars Name of Subsidiaries:
| . CRISHPARK VINCOM LIMITED
1 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned 31.03.2018
2. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the Indian Rupee
last date of the relevant financial year in case of
foreign subsidiaries
3. Share Capital _ 1,30,02,000
4. ' Reserves and Surplus (445,123,492)
5 Total Assets 94 48,94 841
&. Total Liabilities 04 48 94,841
7. | Investments 89,87,03,503
8. Turnover 2.00,84 738
9. Profit before taxation (42,9591 568)
10, Provision for taxation 1300207
11, Frofit after taxation {43.08,82,175)
12. | Proposed Dividend Nil
13 % of shareholding 5167
Notes:

1. MNames of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — Wil
2. Mames of subsidiaries which have been liguidated or sold dunng the year — Nil

Part “B" Associates and Joint Ventures

L Sr, No. Particulars ! Name of Associate
KUSHAGRA INFRASTRUCTURE
PRIVATE LIMITED
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 1. 31.03.2019
2. Shares of Associatelleint Ventures held by the 50%
Company on the year end
- No. of Equity Shares 11,895,000
-Amoaunt of Investment in Associates/Joint 3,680,508 450
__Menture o
- Extent of Holding (%} ~50.00
3 Description of how there is significant influence Shareholding exceeding 20% of
_ paid-up share capital
4. Reason why the associatesoint venture is not Associate has bean consolidated
_ consalidated .
5. Met-worth attributable to Shareholding as per 211,93 6928
latest audited Balance Shest
B. Profitiloss) for the year _
i.  Considered in consolidation {4355) ]
i. Not Considered in consolidation Nil

1. Names of the associates or joint ventures which are yat to commence operations — Nil’
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year —

Mil
Arup Kumar Mitra Rajesh Gupta Savita Jindal Margat Ram Garg
CFO Company Secretary Director Whole-time Director
DIM: 00449709 DIN: 00445740



FORM KO, AQC-2

{FPursuant to clause (h} of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

and Rule 8(2) of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclesure of particulars of contractsiarrangements entered into by the Campany
with related parties referred in sub section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Ast, 2013
incwding cerain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Name(s} of the related party and the nalure of relationship
Nature of contracts! arrangements/ transactions
Duration of the contractefarrangement! transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
ingheding the value, if any

Justificaticn for entering infe such contracts or arrangements or
transactions

Cizte of approval by the Board
Amaunt paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special rescolution was passed in General meeting
85 required under first proviso to section 188

MIL

2. Detalls of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length

basis:
{al Mame(s) of the related party and the nature of
relationship
{b)
MNature of contracts! arrangaments/ transactions
()
. Duration of the contracts/arrangementf transackions MIL
{d)
! Salient terms of the contracts or arrangaments or
. ' transaction including the value, if any
{e}
Date of approval by the Board
{f
Amount paid as advancas, if any




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
Form Na. MGT-3
Extract of Annual Return
As on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2019
{Pursuant to section 52{3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the
Companies (Management and Adntinistralion) Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i} M1y L17299WB1981FLCA323331

1! Registration Date 1 3 February, 1081
wy | Name of the Company i SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

] Categony/Sub-Category of the Company Pulie :

) Address of the Registered Office and conlact ! 2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
: details Flat No.84, 8" Floor, Kolkala-700 020
U N — .| Vst Bengal e
[¥i] | Whether listed sompany Yes U
["wii} | Mame, Address and Conlact details of Registrar | Alankit Assignment Limited :

¢ ang Share Transfer Agent, if any Alankit Haighls, '

1
1EM3, Jhandewalan Extension,
| : New Delhi = 110055
| 1 : Fnone: 011-23541234, 42541234
| Fax: 011 42541967
[ e-mail: naf@afankit.com

. PRINCIFPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
A the busress actnabies contobuting 10 % or more of the total rnaver of the Cormpany shatl be
Sletled. -

!5 No | Name and Description of main produsts | NIC "Cede of "[”‘i-fﬁ"io total turnover of the |
i |

L maervicas the  Froduclf company
servics
S I , i
1 Commercial Loan and Investment {55923 £3.60
- '_FLé'a;si'r-'l-g_df self-gwned nan-residential building 70104 03,72 f
' I

M. PARTHCULARS OF HOLDING, BUBSIDMARY ANMD ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

5 - MAME AND ADDRESS OF [ CINMGLN T HOLDINGY . [ Weaf | Apple
No. | THE COMPANY ; | SUBSIDIAR | shar | cable |
i : Yy as Section |
i i | ASSOCIATE | heid
"1 |Erishpark Yncom Limited U51100WE SHdPLCDESZ9 “E'LIEE{BT&}_;”_ TeiET LED |
l e e —m . .E e e e e ___E SRV NIV SN S
Sz iKushagra Infrastructure Private U201 20WE2005F TC 102950 Associabe 0. 00%  2HE)
Lirnte :
1 T e e e e ot eme e s .. 1 . PO S B

S . _




M.
Total Equity}

i} Category-wise Sharu

Holding

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as pgrcentage of

I Category of
Sharehalders

Mo, of Sharas held at the
heginninq of the year
tAs on 1* April, 2018)

No. of Shares hetd at the end of
the year {As on 31" March, 2018)

Demat| Phys

ical

Total

| Shere

of
Total

Dem
at

Fhy
sical

Tatal

%% of
Total
Shar
&g

PROMOTERS

(1ilndlan

al IndiarfHUF

426835

1426835

26835

426535

58.¥

T

0.60

by Central Govt

-

c) Slale Govi(s)

e -

¢l Bodies Corporate

107415

i

107415

147

.o

€] BankiFl

fi  Any Other

Sub - Total

534251 534251

534251

0.00

{2)Faraign

a) NRI - indhviduals

by Other Individuals

¢] Bodies Corporatas

d)  BankiFl

e} Any Other

Sl - Total

Tofal éhareholding of
Promoters (A) =
{A)1)+{A)(2)

534264 534251

T340

534251

534251

7.4

0.0

Demal] Physlc

al

Totat

" Share

% of
Totai

Uemat

Piysical

Total

% af

Total;
Shar|

B. Public Shareholding

Jnshtutions

a) Mutual Funds

try Bank/Fl

¢} Central Government

d] Slate Government

!

t&




T} Wenture Caprtal | I i 1 -I ] ! T 1
Funds ] i
’ n"']hs'ljréﬁéé' T I - ] N S S .l T _
COamOARIEsS H
| g Flis - E . . . 1 . ; !
ny Foreign Ventures iy L 1 i - Z 1 4
"Iy Olhers {Spacify} - ! - - - ] . ', *_"|
! !
Nondnsfitutions | 77 e S R ) T
 a) “Bodies Corporales -| 'iaéﬁf:r" 11616144761 1991 255000 167108 [192708 2651 aié;ﬁfﬁ
. .. Indian . )
0} Individuals J AS0OD 48000  6.60 152 52 D00 |, 660.00
shareholders
\ halding nominal i
share capital wphd
£5 1 lakh i
~ individuals ] 1 ] ] ] ] T
shareholders
helding nominal :
. shara capital ™ i
|  excessof Rs. 1lakh | i
e} Others {Specifyy 1 2 e i i ] i 7
Sub-total BH2): 5500 167161|132761  26.51 256000 167161 192761 26.51 0.00
[ Total Fubtic 75600 67161192761 2651 25600, 167161 192761 26.51) .00
' ghareholding
¢, Shares held by - p I ] 1 ] i i
Cystadlan for G0ORs . i
; and ADRs |
Grand Total (A+B+C) 559851 J6¥1611727042 100.00] 559851 167164 727012 100,00
R | |
{n,JSharchoImng of Pmmomm
CSi | Bhare- | Shareholding at the ~Y Shareholding at the end of the |
[ i hoider's Name I:neglnmnq of the year year (A5 on 31" March, 2019}
fo i {As on 17 April, 2018) i :
T I_ Mo of | % oftotal | %of No. af | % oftotal | %hof % change
' : i Shares Shares of | Shares | Shares | Shares of | Shares I sha
l : the :ledge e Pledged / | holdin
. ; compaty ’ i company | encumbe | durin
i ; I encumb d o ﬂ"]ﬂ
| ! ered i i e e year
: ’ total ot o
17 iDharam Pal Jindal _ © 69900 962 00 63900 562 o0g T 0.00
"3 TiDharam Pal Jindat 1 35150 484 000 35150 4,84 0.0G ! 0.0
L mun i . y .
c3 aket Jinda! | 7000 063 0.0% 70000 9.63 0.0 0.00)
{4 [Bavita Jindal 7108662, 14.67 0.00] 106662 14,671 0.00) 0.00
‘5 Faghavdindal | 145123 1386 000 145123 T 49 006G | 0.0
6 Lingal Global Finance; 107476 277 Too0 107416 14771 gag | o
= rmd investment Lid. 1 1 ;
i Total T 006 534281 7349 400 [ 000




fiif)Change in Pramoters’ Sharefioiding

| Sr. Name " Shareholding st [Date  fncrease/ [Reason  Sharehoiding at the end
: Mo, the peginning of ECrEase of the: year {As on 33
: the year n march, 2018} P
! [[ﬁs on 1¥ April, 2018) pharehotdi
| fd : Co
S . _ | — L
T TNo of P of total f Na. of 5 of tdtal
co | Ehares hares of hates hares of
j ! ; by e ..
i ; ompany ompany
U " TTTNOCHANGE DURING THE YEAR TR

K i

fiv] Shareholding Pattem of fop ten Shareholders fother than Dirgctors, Promaters and Holders Df

GDRs and ADRS): i
e e ;
18l Sharaholding at increase/Decrease 1 Cumutative b
"M 1he beginning of duning the year Sharaholding at lhe|§ ,
= the year end of {he year .
| {As on 1™ April, {As on 31" March, ji
il e | 2018) 2018)
Far Each ofthe Me. of % of total | Mo. of Reason No. % of tuiﬁl
Top 30 share shares of | shares of shares ?f
i Shareholders 5 the shar the .
! [L COMmpaily =3 cumpan&
B - P PP —_ L
i1 ! F'ushpan;a! i 70,000 9.5 . WAL 70000 I 963
: | Investrade Pyt. , | [| T
: Ltd, [ )
2 | GVN Fuels 36.00 365 NA| 36,000 468
'i Livnited _ ~i .
ia Flakt Dealcomm 35,761 4.92 17T T NA[ 3sTe 452
i Lid | .
& Bautam Fin- 3,000 0Z[ " 2488l Transled 27662 N
i ! Inves! Pt Ltd, : J :
5 [ Jhanjhari ' NA NA 23085 Transfeq 23086 [ 963
L Haldings Put. Lid. L
6 {Oharambir Singh 85(1 PRF: -A45 Transier. 1 I? - §.00
i ' ¢
7 Shw Kurmar 850) 012 -545 Transfer. 1 I §.00
: Sharma .
ﬁ [8F Rey ) gog 0.1 800 N.A 0 i §.00
8 [ Gatya Prakash 500 011 798 Transier 2 T P
i Goyal ' h '
MO T Pawan Kumar 800 011 -798 Transfer 2 E
i 1*..»’&:1113 ! | H
= . - — — e ——— L AT P - - - I_
A1 77| Ajay Joshi , 860~ o7 798 Transter 2 | joo
: I 5 j_ '
127 A Kumar Pathak 800 0.79 768 Transfen A 7 [0.00
: -
137 [Chandg Pandey - TTTED 0.1 -789 Transfen 1 lr T 10.00
P
5
oD .
I:




ivl Sharefofding of Directors and Key Managarial Personnel:
5 'Ts"rié?éh'n_l}m_at_m" “IncreaseiDecrease | Cumulative T
. No. | | the beginning of dunng the year . Shareholding atthe |
; | the year ' gnd of the yaar
R - —— e i m s a—— D1 D4 2018 J— e e mp e P 31'03'2019
i : I Mo, of %% of Nu of Reasan No. of %o of
’ . , ' share | katal ahare share wat
: ; $ | share 5 ; shares:
' | | & of of e
I | | the gompan
| | | comp ¥
: - e L A PR U ]
| ) ! Bl
o |
v lemisade TR e T AT 10662 4B
: | Jmdal ~Direcior | ;
B 'ShrRK Bantnia l ] oot 4 T A 0 X
! - Dareclor | I;
3 " [swivwhere ] r::.t:iol i LA o - 040
i Kaushik ¢ E ,
i —Digctor i I S, R RUPPUTIR :
A Shri Mangat Ram | - 0.00 . M.A [ < .00
i Garg -Directar [
5" " [ Sl Rejesh B R X' R NA[ @ o0
! Gupta - €3 : :
l [KMP I‘| i i
&  ShnaAmpKumar e 6.00) " T ORATTTTTTY T T opd
. y Mitra - ) ; | B
T CFOKMPY ; : l b
[R | | , ] _[_
Vi. INDEBTEDNESS i
Indebtadress of the Company including Intarast outstanding/acerued but not doe for paymant i |
S o Secured Loans Unsecured t Deposits | Total :
excluding deposits| Loans 3 indebtedness
. S ﬁ L
tlndebtednws at the beginning of ; '
. the financial year {1* April, 2018) ‘ |
“Hprncipal Amount T 126,22 22, ?551 12D 22,27 [feu
| O R VR S :
11 inberes] dua but not patd - | -
iy inleresl actiued but not due | __— "%__ - -
e e i e — ;
Total (HIi+ii) T120,2233 769, =7 12097.22.769
" Change in indebtedness during T o | i
. the financiat year "
U SR ) .
Addition ; el . '
. Reduetion T Ty Bireies T 66
 Net Change 7 7 | 161274168 1 76,12,79.168
- - rr——.— —— I
Indubtedness at the end of the j ~ :
fnanctalyear {31” Marc.h 2019} 1 :
2




Cin Pringipal Amaount

114,08 .43 601 0 114,09,43,601%

o ]
B B—

I R
i I4.h‘—r-=-sl; el tul it .J:Ju:i _ ,,' "
i i :
s irionest angued hut nat due : N N 7
Total {4+||+|1|} T —1 T 1"1'14,09’,45’,’5131 611 14,00,43,601]
Vil REMUNERATION QF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONEL
A Remmonerabon ty Manageg Director, Whole-firre Director anctor Manager
zl " Pariculars of Ramuneraticn B | M Mangat Ram  © Tewst ]
i) Garg, WTD {Rs.} Amgunt (Rs_}
i E
1 G"’“ Sﬂ‘ar‘-".____ e e e
ra| Salar;.r as per prcmsmns contained [ 12,4?,145‘»! 12 47,145
seston 17611 of the Ingome-tax Act, ; '
191.:1 ; :
{b alua o perqunsues wis 1727 income-tax ~|' "
i At 196 0
! E'i Profils in hew of salary under section 1733 - =
; Income- tax Ak, 18961 '
127777 | Stock Optian ]
03 Sweat Equity L P
| .
.| t;.l:'.lmr‘l"IISSHDI'I T D .--I'I--“__- T __.__-
: - uw % af profit -I
- athers, specil-.r : -
s 1l Ethers please sper:lfy - - i
Tatal (A) i
i ; 12,4?,146]’ 12,47, 143

I

21




B Remuneration to other Directors:

"1 Bamicwiars of
Remunarabisn

| sl
IS

T

-

5. e | R R R
! Shri K. Bantma (shit YibhoreSmt. Soviia Tatal :
, | Faushik indal maung
I i
\""' —| 3. independent Directars
- Fee for attending MIL MiL Wil MIL
. | board commuties
l i e eling 5 4 - s g
! o commssion | O 1 ]
i | To ¢ 1) ML L MIL MIL]
I R N 1 e :
| % Tiher Non-Execulive I
f Lirechars \ - 4 _ |_
« Fea for attending I.
board gormmittes 4 J 4 I
meehngs i i i Pl
.|, .. Comimission I :
! | Tena. .2} AL NI NIL WL}
N B T S S — . - .
i | Tea (B +21 R j 1 - i -
: T Total Managerlal 12,46,1 T
l_ | Remuneration (Ap+(B} I
— i

¢ REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERS

I

|

I

ONNEL OTHER THAN MDIMANAGEWE:!

fAmouni In As.}

S &l " Panizuars of T T Key Manageriat Parsonnel : \
ne CRemuopsration ' L
1_ v T ’ ’ CEQ Wit Rajesh Mr.Arup'ﬁumar I Total i §
i i Gupta. Mitra. CFO | I |
. . e CS: L I I:_ :
Gross salary M A l T ﬂ I' \
I —_—— q 1 e
' 7 Salary 8% 5 per DrowISions | | 1{1.1?.2951 2.83, 134' 13.00.4?'?
| . eomtancd in section 17(1) | | |
: of Ihe Incometax o Al k )
; ' o) Value of perqmsutes
! ’ L5 :
5 tc} Profits in heu of salary mderl
' section 1713) Income-1ax l
o .cht L% R I
é ! Siock Optian 5
'3 | Sweat Equity — T[T
I 4. ' Commmsmn |
| : as % of prafit
i
L . ,.__.~bthers. specify.. l
& \ Oirers, please specify |
; el T T T NA
S % A W

13




VIi. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type

Bection of
ihe
Comparnigs
Acl

riaf

etails of Panaltyl [Putharily ppaal made, if

sscriptio punishment/ ROVNCLT! jany { give

mpourding ) eials)
Fees imposed

Penalty

Punizshment

ICompounding

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFALULT

Penally

Punishment

Compaunding

MIL
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED »
CORFPORATE GOVERNANCE REFPORT

Sound Corporate Governance (s esseniial o enhance the shareholders’ lrust and value. Y our
Company conduclts its affairs with the highest leveis of integrty, with proper authorizations;
accountability, disclosure and transparency. The Company strangly believes in maintaining a simpl
and transparent corporate structure driven solely by business needs. Shareholders' inlerests are o
utmost priority while protecting the interest of other stakeholders, customers, suppliers and it

employees and the management is only 2 trustee to carry out the activiies in a truthful and fruitful
marinar.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements. as stipulated under Regulation 17 to 2? raad
with Bchedule V and clauses (b} 1o (i} of sub-regulation (2} of Regulation 48 of SEBI {Listing
Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with regard to corporate guvernahce.

1.  BOARD OF HRECTORS

Composition

The GCompany's policy is to have appropriate mix of Executive and Non-Execuliv
Independent Directors including one women Direclor on the Board. The Company hak on
Executive Dirsctar. The number of Non-Execulive Directors {NEDs) exceeds 50% of thé totgl
number of Directors. None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10
Committees and Chairman of more than & Committees {as specified . under SEBI ([listi
QObligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, across all companies in whi
they are Directors. The Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding their Comfmitt
positions. K

1

All ndependent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as meniioned under
Seclion 148 of the Companiss Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI {Listing Dbllgatlo@a and
Disclosure Requirements} Ragulations, 2015,

LIF

Beoard Funetioning and Procedure I
During 1he year ended 31* March, 2019, the Board of Dirsctors met {4) four times on 29"‘ May
2018, 8" August 2018, 5 November 2018 and 12" February, 2019. The Board perigdically
reviews the compliance report of all laws applicable to the Company. The names’ and
categeries of the Directors on the Beard, their attendance at Board meetings during the. year
and at the last Annual General Mgeting and also the number of Direclorships held b}r thf—:.-m n
other companies s on 31 March, 2019 are given belaw:

T |" R T AllEndanca Fo. of clws Direcioshps et Commiles | Listed Enbty ' he
S Membarshipe! Chairmanships hesd _ direciorm & dirsgior &
o reclors ] Citenery | h:h? Howd Lasl AGM Linghorkhips Commitiee Commiles | Culwgirdy o Dirgionshig
I i Ihilinng Membergiys | O mcndbeg
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MNote:

1. Only Audit and S{akeholder's Relationship Committees are considered
2. Exciudes directorship in Foreign Companies.
3. No Directors is related wilh other Directors j




SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS !
The Campany's Indspendent Directors meet at least ance in every financial year withoul |the
prasance of Executive Diractors or managerment parsonnal, inter alia, to discuss:

the perfarmance of Non Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole.

the pedermance of {he Chaiwrman of the Company. taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between (he management and the
Board thal is necessary for the Board to effectively perform its duties.

During Ihe year under review, the Independent Directors met on 12™ February, 2515 Al

Independent Directors were present at the meeting, |
:

Famiharisation Programme - I
The Directors are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and interna
policies to enable them to familiarize with the Company’s pracedures and practices. Peijodi
presentations are made at the Board and Beard Committee mestings on busingss: an
peformance updates of the Company. Detailed presentations on the Company's bus}nes
seqmen!s were made at the separate meeting of the Independent Diractors i
The details of familiarization programmes for independent Directers are posted uh 14
Company's wabsite and can be accessed }: a
hup:/ fwww sudhaapparels.com { programme. pdf i

I
CORE SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS .'

In terms of SEBI{Listing Cbiigations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations,i 205
relating to the Corporate Governance, the Board has wantified the following: cofe
Bkills/axpertise/competencies far the Board of Directors in the context of business bf the
Company to function effectively and those actually available with the Board as fullnws:l{
I

(i1 Indusiry specific knowledgef experience; [
{i) Financial iteracyfexpertise including appreciation of legal/ regulalory issues, |
{iii} General administrative expertise including HR matter; and _
fiv)] Knowledge of contemporary Sociv 8conomic iSsUSs, }

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Commiltee are as per guideiines set out in the Regul 'tlun 18
of SERI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with Sectjon
177 of the Campanies Agct, 2013, The Audil Committee provides directtons to the audit ft1nc'u+: ns
and menitars the quality of internal and statutory audit, ]

ta ensure faimess, sufficiency and credibility of finansial statements, review findings of integnal
audilors relaling to various funclions, recommendation of appointment and removal of gtatutory
audilors, internal auditors and cost auditors and flxation of their remuneration; review of the
quarterly and annuial financial statemenls bafore submission to the Boarg with particplar
reference to matters reguired to he included in the Dirsctors’ Responsibility Slatement I be
included in the Board's Report in terms of clause () of Sub-section 3 of Section 1T of{ihe

The responsibilifies of the Audit Committes include oversesing Lhe financial reporting prmj:s,

Companles Act, 2013; review of adequacy and compliance of intamal control systemsfand ihe
itternal audit function; review of compliance with laws; inspection of records and audit regors
and reparts of statutary auditors; review of findings of internal investigations; review of statemant
of significant related party transactions; review of management lettersfettar of m'ternaf control,




weaknesses issued by statutory auditors, discussion on the scope of audit with external aud'ttms|
and examinabion of reasons for substantial defaults, if any in the payment to shareholders; !
review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism elg,

COMPOSITION i

The Audit Commitiee of the Company comprised of three Directors consisting of one Exgcutive
Qirector and lwo tndependent Non-exacutive Directors. All mambers of the Committee possess
knowledge of Corporate finance, Accounts and Company Law. The Charrman of the Committee:
15 an Independent Non-Execulive Director. The Company Secrelary acts a5 the Secretary tg the!
Audt Commitiee.

Minutes of the Audit Commillee meelings are noted by lhe Board of Directors at the subSEquent:
Boara meeting. '

During the year under review 4 Audit Commitlee meetings were held on 28" May, 2018,
8" August, 2018, 5 November, 2018 and 12" February, 2019. The composition, names of the]
members, chairperson, and pariculars of the meetings and attendance of the members diring
the year are as follows:

f Members Calegory r Ho. of mestings

i_ S N A attended
shri B K. Banthia Chairman <
ShA MR Garg ... | Member 4 :
‘;r 1 ibho e Kdushlr‘. N _Member ’ o ' 4 i

INTERNAL ALIDIT ;
The Company has appainted Internal Audidors to review the internal control sysiems uf the

Company and to repart therson, The Audit Committee reviews the reports of the Interna!
Auditors penodically.

3. NOWNINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has conshiuted Nomination and Remuneration Commiitee (NRCY and the terms
reference of the NRC are as per guidelines set out in Regulation 19 of SEB! {Listing Dbhgatmn
and Disclosure Reguirements), Regulations, 2015 read with Sgclion 178 of the Cumpames Act,
2013,

The said Committee has been entrusted 1o formulate the criteria for delermining qualification,
positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to he Board a policy relatin
to remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation gf
crileria for avaluation of Independenl Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Boar
diversity, identifyirg persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appbinte
in senior management in acgordance wilh the criteria laid down, and recommend o ithe Boa
their appointment and removal etc. .

The Momination and Rernuneration Committee comprised of three Non-Executive DErEctDr%. T
Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Non-Exscutive Dirsctor. During the year LUnder
review meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 12" February,
2019

. Name of the Members Designation No. of Meetings attended | |
| Shri R.K._ Banthia Chairman I .
| Shri Vibhore Kaushik “Member | T
$mi. Savita Jindal i Member N i




Directors' Remuneration

Homination and Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Paolicy of the Company is designed to attract, molivate, improve produchivit
and retain manpewer, by creating a congenial work environment, encouraging initiatives,
personal growth and team work, and inculcating a sense of belonging and involvement, besides
offening appropriale remuneralion packages. The policy reflects the Company’s objectives foﬁ’
good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term vatue crealion for shareholders, Thi
Remuneration Policy applies to Directors, senior management including its key Manageri;j
Personnel (KMP) and sther employess of tne Company. |
Remungration of Whole Time Director reflects the overall remuneration philosophy and guidin
principlas of the Company. When considering the appointment and remuneration of Whole Tirn
Director, due consideration ¢ given to pay and employment conditions in the industry, merit an
scnionty of the person and the paying capacity of the Company. :

The Company's Remuneration Policy 15 guided by a reward framework and set of principles an
objectives as more fully and particularly envisaged under the Companies Act, 2013 inter ali
principles pertaining to delermining qualifications, posilive attributes, integrity and independenc
elc.

remuneration also aims to molivate personne! to deliver company's key business stralegiey,
greate a slrong pedormance oriented environmesnt and reward achisvement of meaningfyt
{argets over ihe short and long term. S
The Momination and Remuneration Policy of the company has been uploaded and can be
accessed on the Company’s website at hUpfhwwae sudhaapparels com/NRC%20Palicy%20
Sudha pdl :

Remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year ended 31" March, 2019 are 3s
under.
(a) The Details of remuneraticn paid \o Whole-time Dhrector:

{Amount in RS.}

Name Satary Pergquisites and Tata!
other benefiis

| Shri Mangat Ram Garg 1247148 il 12.47.148

{2 The Non- Executive Directors are entitled to be paid by way of sitting fees for méetinés
aof the Board of Directors and Audit Committge, During the yesr ended 31% March, 2019 -
no remuneration was paid to Non-Execulive Directors in view of ihem having waluéd
their entitloment to receive the sitting lee. L

!

Apart from being entitied to Direclors’ remuneration by way of silling fee for aftendi

reetings of the Board and Audit Committee, none of the Nan- Execulive Direclurs had
any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company dunng the year ended
31 parch, 2019 -




4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Your Directors have constituted the Corporate Soctal Respensibility Committee in
reference to the requiremeants of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The constitution of the Corporate Socal Responsibility Committes is as under;-

| Members o Designation
Shri Mangat Ram Garg | _Chairman

| Shii R.K. Banitia ede . Member S
. Snri ‘Jlbhare Kaushik fember :

The said Commiliee has been entrusted with the responsibility of fonnuiatingi' an
recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Pglic
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementatio

ol lhe framewark of the C3R Policy and recommending the amount o be spent onj CS
activilies,

During the year under review, the said Committee met on 29" May, 2018, All membe
of the Committee were present at the meeting.

5.  STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITIEE '

The Company has conslitiiled Slakeholders' Relationship Commitiee undei‘ th
Chairmanship of a Non-Executive Director of the Company. The Committee nln gels
periodically, to approve inter-alia, lransfertransmission of shares, issue of duplica
share ceniicaies and reviews lhe stalus ol investors' grievances and redfess |
mechanism and recommends measurés to improve the level of investor se

Details of shares transfersftransmissions approved by the Comimittee are placed ‘at
Board meetings from time to time.

COMPOSITION
The constilution of the Stakeholders Relationship Commutiee is as under:-

‘Name of the Members Designation !
Smt. Savita , Jindal _ | Chairperson
S_Iln_ Mangat Ram Garg_ Member

l “Shri R.K._Banthia hembar

* Appointed as a member of the Committee with affect from 12" February, 2019
Compliance Officer |
The Board has designated Campany Secretary as Complianca Qificer of the Cumbany.

Dotails of Shareholders’ Complaints received and replied to the satisfactlan af
Shareholders

Number of Shareholders complaints received

e —— |

during the period 01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019 : Nl :
Mumber of complaints not solved to the i
isatisfaclion of sharehofders S Mil e

Number of pending complamts as on 31.03.2019
hich were solved later on. : Nil




. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

7.

DESIGHNATED EMAIL ID FOR INVESTORS l
The Company has designated the following e-mail 10 exclusively for redressal o
mvastor grievance ne. secretarialifisudhaspparels. com '

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Tie Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary Company.

|

|
The Company monitors pedormance of subsidiary companies by the following means:- |
-Financiai staterments of subsidiary companies are reviewed by the Audil Commillse.
-Minutes of Board meetings of subsidiary companies are placed befare the Boar
meehngs of the Company regulary.

The Cumpany has adopted a Policy in line with the requirements of the Listin
Requlations. The objective of this policy is 1o lay down criteria for identiﬁcatior} ang
dealing with material subsidiaries and to formulate a governance framework o
subsidiaries of the Company. The policy on Material Subsidiary iz available oh th
website of the Company undes the wed lin
hitp e sudhaapparels.comidaterial Subsidiary. pdf :

=

{) Details of the last three Annual General Meehngs

Date Location of the Meeting Time C
Financial |
! year
D we Lo o | Registered Oifice of the Company at | L .o os i
207518 : 3009.206 245, Sarat Bose Foad, Sukh Sagar, 11.30AM. '
o i | FlatNp. 8A, 8" Flaor, Kolkata- 700020 |
. Regustered Ciffice of the Cﬂmpany at
2016-7 i 28.09.2017 215, Sarat Bosg Road, Sukh Sagar, i 11.30AM.
o Flat No. 8A, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700 020 { o )
. Registerad Office of the Company at E
20u7-18 28.03.2018 ¢ 2J5, Sarat Bcrse Raad, Sukh Sagar, 11.30AM.
o . Flat No. B4, 8" Fioor, Kolkata- 700 020

(iy Special resolulions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings:
a) In the AGM held on 30th Sepfember, 2016 ; No Special resclution was passed:f
B} In the AGM held on 28" Septemnber, 2017 ;| No Special resolution was passed:
g) In the AGM held cn 28" September, 2018 : No Special resolution was passed- .

{ii} Mo special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

CERTIFICATE QN CORPORATE GOVERMANCE REPORT

Az required under Schedule ¥V of SEB! (Lising Obligations and D!E¢|DSLIFB
Reguirements) Regudlations, 2015 Cernificate on Corporale Governance has begn
annexed (o the Board's Heporl.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBL {Frohibition of Insider Tradidg)
Fegulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 the Company has adopted a Codefaf
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with @ view lo regutate trading in secuntles by
the Directers, KMPs and designaled emplayees.




10.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company's financial results are communicaled to CSE Limited with whom the
Company has listing arrangement, as soon as they are approved and {aken on record by
the Board of Directors of lhe Company. Thereafter the results are normally pubhished i
THe Financial Express (English) and Sukhabar (Bengalk}, Tha Financial Resuits are alsg
availabie on the Company's websile bitp:fwww sudhaapparets. com.

GEMERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
{ay Annual General Meecling:
Dale ard Time: 27" Seplember, 2019 at 1130 AM.
venue: Registered Office cf the Company at 245, ‘Saral Bose Road, Kalkata — 700020
(&) Financial Year: 1% April, 2018 1o 317 March, 2019
fcy  Dividend Payment Date: N.A,
{d] Listing on stock Exchange:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on The Caleutta Sleck Excﬁang
Lwmited, 7, Lyons Range, Kolkala- 700 001 {West Bengal} and  Lisling Fee opt
2719-20 has been duly paid. :

L1

|

fey Stock Code

Scrip iD: SUDHA APPARELS
Scrip Code: 10029405
NSDL! CDSL —I15IN INE20TFO1012

(fi Market Price Data !

Thefe was no trading of shares on CSE during tne period from 1% April 2018 to 31
March, 2019.
(q) Perormance in comparisor o broad-Based indices such as BSE sensex

CRISIL Index etc.

Not Applicable as the Company is listed on Calculta Stock Exchange anly.

|
{M In case securitics are suspended from irading, the directors shall explain the

reasan thereof:

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement! SERI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis} from time io time Inspite of that the
Stock Exchange has suspendsad the Company from trading. However the Company has
applied for Revocation of Suspension under Amnesty Scheme of the Stock Exchange.

v Registrar and Transfer Agend

Alankit Assignment Limited
Alaniat Heaights, : :
1EM 3, Jhandewalan Extension, '
Mew Dreln — 1100585

Phone, 011-23541234, 42541234

Fax: 011- 42541957, e-mail: rta@alankit.com




{3 Share Transfer System:

Share fransfer requests received in physical form are registered within 15 days from Lhe

dale of receipt and demat requests are normally confirmed within the prescribed time frorn
the date of receipt.

(k} Distribution of shareholding as on 31* March, 2019

! No. of No. of % of share- | No. of Shares | % of
Equity Share- holders held Sharehelding

‘ _ Shares held holdars
Upte 5000 i FE F75d sz 042

; 500% o [ S - T T1sa@ss | 2130
5[.'!0'1}1 1{2 ] K : A7 _ 209500 2887

" 100001 and 3 517 359201 4941

t Above . ’ -
Tow 77 s T iegey T T yamess itieon

Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March, 2019

Categ ory No. c: jgams Sha r?hz:ding |
Fromolers Fad251 73.49 :
" rvate Badies Corporate 192708 " 28.50 :
o Ir1drz;n- E;b[lﬂ &2 .01 -
o Grand Total Y
' Dematenalizatiop of shares

77.01% of total paid-up equity shares of the Company were in dematerialized form as on
31* March, 2019 . i 5

imy  Outstanding GDRs/ADRsWarrants ar any Convertible Bonds, cumrersm t
date and likeély impact on equity; !
There is no outstanding GDRs/ADRs or convertible Boneds etc. i

{r} Commodity price risk or Forcign exchange risk and hadging activities

I
Company's nature of busingss is of investment and financing, hence there i‘s ni
commodity price risk ar foreign exchange risk ;

{0 Plant Lacations: N.A.

) Address for correspondence;

Shareholders’ correspondence should be addressed o the Registrar and Transfer P.gent
at the following address:

Alankit Assignment Limited

Alankit Heights,

1E/13, Jhandewalan Extension, .
Mew Delhi — 110055 b
Phone: 011-23541234, 42541234 :
Fax 011- 42541967, e-mail; fa@alankit.com

Shareholders holding shargs in dematerislized form  should address all their
correspondence to their respective Depository Participants.




1.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) Related Party Transactions ' '

Thare have been related party transaclions as reflected in the noles to the accauntg bu
they are nol in conflicl with the interest of the Company. All transactions have beer
approved by the Audit Committes and all transactions entered into by the Company with
the related parties during the financial year were on the arm's length basis, [

The Beard has approved a policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions whfcf; hag
been  uploaded on the website of the Company at the following b link
htiprifeudhaapparels. com/SudhaRFTRolicy. pdf.

bl Accounting Standards i

The Company follows the Accounting Slandards laid down by the Institute of Chart&réd
Accountanl of Indiz and thera has been no deviglion duting the year. -

c) Details on Non Compliance E .
There were no penalties or sirictures imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchanges, SEB!, or any other slatulory authorities on any matter retated ta the Pitél
markets during the last 3 YErs.

d] CEQ/CFO Certificate

Shri Shrikant Ladia, Yvhole Time-Director and Shri Satish Saxena, CFO have furni '
the required certificate to the Board of Dirgctorg pursuzsnt to Regulation 17(8) of
[Lisling Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations, 2015

¢} Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower pelicy and has established the ne
vigil mechamism as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligation aqd
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for Directors and employees lo fepoft
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation ¢f!
Company's code of conduct. No person has been denied access to the Chairman ft
Audit Commitlee. The said policy has been disclosed on the Company's website | nd r
the web link http: Haudhaapparels cor/SudhavWhistleBlowerFPalicy. pdf. |§

d) Detail of compfiance with mandatory requirements and Adcption of Hu -
mandatery requirements

The Company has complied with al! the mandatory requirements of Schaedule V o $E |
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Company
has alse complied wilh following non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 27{1 redd
with Part E of Schedule Il of SEBI {Listing Obligations ang Disclosure Requirafeéntp}
Requlaticns, 2015,

A. Shareholder Rights
Financial positions of the company are posted on the website of the Company.
B. Modified opinionis) in audit report

Far Lt

L

The Financial Statements of the Company are unqualified,
C. Reporting of Internal auditor

Internat Audit Reports ara directly reported to audit commitiea.

e = s e T




CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board of Direciors has adopled the Code of Conduct angd Ethics for Directors ang Senl

Management personnel. The Code has also been posted on the Company's websi

http e sudhaapparels.com.

The Code has been circulated to ali members of the Beard and senigr management persennel ar
the compliance with the Code of Gondoct and Ethics is affirmed by them annually. .

A daclaration signed by the Wholo-time Director of the Company is given below:
This is In certify that all Board members and Senior Management perscnnegl have affirm

compliance with the Code of Conduct for Rirectors and Senior Management for the fnancial ye
ended 31% March, 2019, E:

Date: 8" August, 2019 Chairman

or

i

d
r




Hemant Singh o Associates
Company Secreltarics |

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE. GOVERNANCE,

T,

The Members

Sodha Apparels Limited
25 Sarat Bose 1wl Sukl Sagar, : '
Flal Mo BA, &th Flooer,
kaolkata-TO0020

We have examined the compliange of conditions of Comporate Governance by SUDHA APPARELS
LIMITED (*the Company™), for the year ended 31" March, 2019, as stipulated in Regulations 17 1o
27, elauses (b} to {1) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 36 and Tary © and [ of Schedule ¥ of the
Secutities and  Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and  Discloswe Requirements)
Regulations, 20135 ("SLBI Listing Regulations”).

The complianee of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management, Our
examination was limited 10 procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company lor -
gnsuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Govenmnee. [0 s neither an andil nor an
capresstan of opinton on the Fingneial statements of the Company.

I aur opinton and to the best ol cur nformatien and according to the explanations given 1o us, we .
certify dhat the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
the above-menticned Listing Regulations.

We further state Lhut such complinnce is neither an assuiance a5 w the futere viabilite ol the Company
nor ihe efficiency or offectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of he i
Company.

For HEMANT SINGH & ASSOCIATES ‘

(Company Sccretaries
HEMANT KUMAR SIN
{Partner)
Flace: New Delhi FCE- 6033
Dated: 8t August, 2019 CP No 6370

Block, Shakarpur, Dethi-110 092 Ph. Off ; 011-4301 1821

Head Off.: 306, Surya Complex, 21, Veer Savarkar inghcs@gmail.com, hemant_singh 111@rediffmail.com

Maob. - 9717792134, 93137 07354 Email : hemants




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Management Discussien and Analysis
Farming part of the Directors’ Report lar tha year ended 31 March, 2019

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The staternenl in the Directors' Reperl and Managemeni Discussion and Anatysis Report conlaing
“orward-loaking statemen!s™ about the business, financial perfermance, skills and prospects of the
Company. Statements about ithe plans, intentions, expectations. beliefs, astimates, predictiq'ns o
similar expression for future are forward-locking statements.

th

=

Forward-tocking statements should be viewed in the context of many risk issues, and events that
could cause the actual performance to be different from that contemplated in tha Directors’ Repo
and Management Discussion and Analysis Report, including but not limiled to, the impact gf
changes in cil, Steel prices worldwids and dermeslic, economic and political conditions. We canndt
assure that outcome of this forward-locking statements will be realized. Factors like changes i
Government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as industrial relations and ecopgm
developmenls ste. may further influence the company's operations or performance. The Cuera
cisclaims any duty to update the information given in the aforesald reports. '

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW

India's GOP is gstimated to have grown by 6.8% in FY19 compared to 7.2% in FY18. This wals due
to lower growth in agnculture and mining sectors, lower government spending on bublc
admmsiration and weaknesses in domestic and external demand conditions. However, on the
structural reforms fronl, the Goods and Services Tax (GST} and the Insclvency and Bankiuptgy
Code (IBC) continued evolving during the year. Also, in the World Bank's Ease of Daing Busineds
rankings, India continued its ascent for the second consecutive year and reached Lhe 77th rank.

|

The indian economy faced a slew of challenges around mid-FY 19 from the extamal front, Thts;w 5
tnggered by a sharp increase in the global Brenl price, lzading o a sharp depraciation in the Bupge
zlong with other emerging market currencies. Around the same time, the debt defaulls by _iLE- =
group triggered a crisis of confidence in the NBFC sector, a critical source of finance for the real
Sector The liquidity tightness laced by NBFCs pest the ILAFS debt defaults impacted levaraggd
consumer demand lor aufo varieties, consumer durables, housing eic., and credit flows to sm?[l and
micrg borrowsrs during Q3FY19. However, pragmatic and regulatory interventions helped easigg
the situation in Q4FY19. L

BUSINESS CUTLOOK i ;
Several global forecastars, including the international Monetary Fund, have lowerad their prﬂj%;tio 15
for the global economic growth in 2019 from a year earlier because of ongoing trade frictions,

nightaning of financial condiliens and Brexil-relaled uncertainties.

Global stowdown and tight financial conditions are likely 1o impact India's GOP growth during FY2O
which may remain flattish over its last year's level. Geing by past trends, India's growth mix remains
skewed towards consumption and away from nvestment during Lhe general election year. Duelto
impacl of general elections, financial markets and capital inflows witnessed volatility in Q‘]LFY: .
Alsa, the new polilical regime will most probably follow fiscal prudence in H2FY20 and this: mey
impact public investments and growth in the [alter part of the year. i

On the positive side, a strong political mandate ensures political stakility and policy continuity; Reail
fCP1) inflation is projected by the Eeserve Bank of India (EBI} t6 remain below 4% up to Degember
2019. This should enable the Monatary Policy Committee of RBI to implement easy manetary pollcy
during & majar part of Fy20. '




QOPFPORTUNITIES & THREATS

'he Company loresees new ooporunilies lo come up to expand its operations by way of equity
partizipaion in new projeclsiexpansion of existing projects. considerning long term growth potential o
Ine Coun'ry The NBIC sector holds wmmense potental in view of the Government of India's
ingreased focus towards Financial Inclusion,

The ecunomic recovery, coupled with cortained inflation has brightaned the prospects of busines:lt
growth With multipie players invading the market, the abilily to compete effectively will depand, 1
some extent. on the Company's ability to raise low cost funds in future.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in the busingss of Finante/Investment activities and Renting of Property.
The segment-wise performance has been disciosed in Note 17 of Financiai Stalements.

RISKS AMD CONCERNS

Az oan NBFC ywour Company is subjected to both external ang internal risks. External risks due t
interest rate fluctuation. siowdown in economic growth rate, poliical instability, market valatility,
decling in foreign exchange reserves, elc. Internal risk is associated wilh your Company's busines
which includes lhe stralegic investments in a specific sector. Any downward maovement in th
prospects of the sector could be a threat i the Company's prospects.

At this juncture of ragidly evolving macreeconomic risks, it becomes imperative for business Lo tra
e macroeconemic perflormance on an ongoing basis, Your Company recognizes the importafice ¢f
nsk management and has invested in people, process and technelogies to effeclively mitigate t
above rsks, 50 as 1o arrive at a profitabls mvestment dacision. !

INTERMAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control system, commenswrale with ils size and nature of
oparations, covering assurance of recarding all the lransaction details, regulatory compliance ang
prefecting the Company assels from any kind of 1088 or misuse, Accounling recards are adaguale
fur preparaton of financial statements and other financial infarmation, lnternal Audit 1s conducted gn
a percdical basis lo ascertain the adequacy and effectivenass of inlermal control systems.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TG QFERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Total income of the Company during the year was Rs, 14215.17 iakhs as against Rs. 8067.29 Iakis
1 the previous year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs B854 52 lakhs as agamst Rs.
4226.84 iakhs in the previous year. The prefit alter tax was Rs. 421,08 |akhs a5 against Rs. 3575.14
lakhs 0 the previcus year.

HUMAM RESOURCES
Your Company has emplayed professionalsfexperienced persons, playing an important role in ll\‘
d

operations of \ne Company. The Company will slrengthen s operative staff as and when the ne
ANEES.
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(:/k Bidasaria & Associates 14, Princep Street

3rd Floor, Sutile # 5
Chartered Accountanis Kolkata - 700 072

- | Phone : 491 33 2212 9596
E-mail ; hidasaria1 @ gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
/S SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements i

Opinion

Wa have audited the standalone financial statements of Mis, SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED (“ih
Company™) [CIN NO. L17299WRB1981PL.C033331] which comprise the balance sheet ag at March 31, 2019
and the statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to th
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanato
information. In cur opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us
gxcept for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualifisd Opinion section of our Teport, th
afpresaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles genérall
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2019 and profitfloss and ils cas
flows for the year ended on that date. '

Basis of Qualified Opinlon

1. Attention is invited to Note 4.2 Forming part of the Financial Statements, the Management informe
us that the provision of Rs 2,08,610/- for Leave Encashment Payable and Rs 13,60,475/- for Gratiry
Payable is not supported by any actuarial calculation. The calculation made by the Company is alss
not made available to us.

Tl

2. The mmtermal audit peport has not been provided to us by the Mansgement.
i
3, The balance confirmation of the Traode Receivables and other advances has not been provided by '
management. —

4. Atention is invited to Note 14 Forming part of the Financial Statements , the Manapement has ngt
disclosed the transactions made during the year with the related parties entered inte by the Campany,
The Manapement has disclosed only final cutstanding balanee of the related parties.

5. Altcntion iz invited to Wote 5.3 Forming part of the Financial Sietements, the advance of
10,00,00,000/- given to Crishpark Vincom Ltd (Subsidiary Company) iz included in the calculation of
both provision for non performing assets Rs 10,00,00,000/- and provision for standard assets
2,50,000/-. Had the amount not been included in the provision of standard assets, the profit of e
Company would have been increased by Rs 2,50,000/~.

6. Attention is invited to Note Mo 5.3C Forming: part of the Financial Statements, the provision for NP
is not made properly. 100% provision for MPA {(Non performing assets) has been made for the advange
of Rs 10,00,00,000/- given free of interest to the Subsidiary Cosmpasty, Crishpark Vincom Lid. F
the Company has also given loan to its Subsidiary Company, Crishpark Vincom Litd. amounting to
27,09,80,164/- bearing interest. The Company has made number of transactions of paying further
and also repayment of the same. However, the Company has mads provision for advance made of
10,00,00,000/~ only. Mo pravision for NPA has been made for loan amount of Rs 27,09,80,164/-. Heye
the provisions relating to NPA has pot been follewed.

7. Attention is invited to Note no. 9.4 & 14 Forming part of the Financial statements, the advanc*_é of Rs




paity schedule of the Balance Sheet. It has been included under the head Other Advances (to Staff &
Othess) amounting to Bs 8§7,34,415.

8. Aftention is invited to Note 11.5 Forming Part of the Financia] Statements, The municipal taxes paid
for Gurugram Property and New Town Froperly amounting to Rs 4,40,208/- for 3 quarters and Rs
93,04,539/- for 3 quarters respectively has not been provided for. Had this been provided, the profit of
the Company would have been decreased by Rs 97,44,747,

9. The fixed asset register and supportings for physical verification of fixed assets has not been pmwd:d
Lo us by the Management.

10. Brokerage paid to Anshol Gupta HUF amounting to Rs 9,45,000 for UP Power & Yes Bank Rond
Deal Transaction is included under the head Legal & Professional Charges accounted for in the Profit
& Loss Statement. Mo agreement has been provided to us regarding the same, by the Management,,

11. Attention is invited to Note No 16 forming part of the Financial Statements, Details and Dmumeni‘.s of

Capital Advances amounting to Re 6,49,82 387/ has not been provided to us for our \renﬂcatmh b},r
the management. :
12. The rent agreement and the agricultural rent agreement has not been provided o us for our vmﬂcatmn
by the management,
13. Attention is invited to Note No 9.2 forming part of the Financial Statements , the Management has m‘.rt
provided for the proper bifurcation of Trade Receivables as an 31 March 21}19 as per Schedule 111 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

14, Minutes of the Audit Committes for FY 2018-19 not provided to us for our werification by the
Inmanagement.

15. Company Register not provided to us for our verification by the managsment. I:
16. Purchase Invoices of Alr Conditioner amounting to Bs 538,199/~ addition made during the year it
provided to us by the Management.

We conducted cur audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143{1{ of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilitiss under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Raspmis:ihilitics for the Audit of the Finaneial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in atcordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
tugether with the sthical requirements that are relevant to cur andit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilities in acoorr.!lance
with these requirements and the ICAF's Code of Ethics. We believe that the oudit evidence we have t}htmnad i
sufficient and uppmpnate e provide a basis Tor our qualified opinien. ,

Key Audit Matters

of the financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit ¢
the financinl statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separa
opinion on theso matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have
determined the matters described below to be the key andit matters to be communicated in our report,

Key sudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mast significance in crurfaﬁd}

Kev Audit Maiter How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

|
iQ
[Refer Note 5 to the financial staternents, read wilh | We cbtained an understanding of the Company's

the Aceounting Policy No. 1(i)] software and guidetines and directions of the RBLangd
the Company's internal instructions and procedures in

Loans - Classification and Provisioning Cuor Aodit Procedure:

The loans are clagsified as parﬁ:rmnn st of the loans classification and its provisicning
aomperfonning advances (NPA) and provisicnin apted the foltewing sudit procedures:
mﬁ |

ol I

\\_,//




r

|
_ - |
tbereon i3 made in accordance with the Master { » Evalvation and testing of the eifectiveness of thj
Direction - Non-Banking Finaneial Company — Non- key internal eontrol mechanisms with respect to the
Systematically  {mportant Non-Deposit  taking loans monitoring, identification/ classification;
Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. The assessment of the loan impairment including testin

clagsification and provisioning is done by the of relevant data quality ete,

Company based on the above Directions. The extent :
of provisioning of NPA under the directions are j » Verification ! review of the documentations,
mainly based on jts ageing and recoverability of the operations / performance and monitoring of thj

underlined security. loan accounts, on test check basis, to ascertain any!
overdue, unsatisfactory condoct or weakness in any
In_ the event of any improper application of the loan account, to ensure that its classification ap
directions or consideration of the incorrect value of |  provisioning is in accordance with the directions ©
the security, as the valuation of the security involves REI, and based on thc best estimate of the

high degree of estimation and judgement, the carrying | recoverability / valuation of the security.
value of the loans could be materially misstated either
individually o collectively, and in view of the | Our Results: :
significance of the amount of short term loans & | The sesuits of our audit process were observed to bel
advances in the financial statements ie. 36.13% of | edequate and satisfactory considering the materiality]
total assets, the classification of the loanz and | of the transactions except as stated in our Note ne 7

provisioning thereon has been considered as Key | under the head ‘Basis of Qualified Opinion’
Audit Matter in pur audit.

Information other than the Financial Statements and auditors' report thereon: :

The Company’s board of directors is respansible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report but does not include the finaneial statements and our auditer’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements dovs not eover the other information and we do not express any form:
of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the fnancial statements, our responsibility Is to Tead the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialiy inconsistent with the financial statements or
pur knowledge obtained during the course of cur audit &7 otherwise appears 10 be matenally misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have not been provided Board’s Report including
Annexure 1o Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, hence We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Cliarged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company™s hoard of directors are responsible for the maiters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. Thig
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in aceordance with the provisioas of]
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are teasenable and prudent; and design, iimplementalion and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentalion of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and ars fres
from material misstatement, whether dus to fiaud or emor.

sponsible for assessing the Company’s ability ta]
s related to going concern and vsing the going

In preparing the financial statements, mansgement is re




-goncein basis of accounting unless management either intends to Jiquidete the Company or to cease uperalmu,s,
or hag no reallstic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors i3 responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance shout whether the standalone financial-statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
inchudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstalement when it exists. Misstatements
cap zrise from fred or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reazonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of wsers taken on the basjs of these ﬁnm'mlal
statements. i

As part of an audit in m:cordanca with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maml‘.am
professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

» [Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial sfatements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain avdit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to prnwde a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a matmal
migstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. !

= (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit pmcndures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies vsed and the reascnablensss of a::v:mmtmg
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit cvidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may enst
significant doult on the Company’s ability (o continue as a going concem. I wes conclude that a materi

-uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention in our auditor’s report (o the related disclosunes in {he

firiancial statements or, if such disclosures are jnadequate, to moedify eor opinion. Cur conclusions.are Based on
the audit evidence obtained vp to the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events or mndmons ay

cause the Campany 10 cease o continve as a going concem.

— 1
L
I:
= Ewvaluate the overall presentation, strueture and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and evema in
- manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatemenis in the financisl staterpents that, individueally or in aggregate, and
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reazonably knowledgeabla user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We considered quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of

our audit wetle and in evaluating the resulting of owr work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any ld:nt:ﬁnd
mizstaternents in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned 3mpa and)

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incleding any significant deficiencieg in internal contml that
we idenify during our audit.

We alse provide those charzed with govemance with a staterment that we have complied with relevant et:"hical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matter$ that
may reasonably ba thaught to bear on owr independence, and whers applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicared with those charpsd with govemancs, we determine those matters that “ftlm'. off
most significance in the audit of the finaneial statements of the current period and ars thorefore the key audit

matters, We describe these matters in our auditor) gpfpagpnless law or regulation prechudes public disclogure




-about the matter or when, in extremely tare circumstances, we determine that a mater should not be

comptenicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected L7
_ outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As

Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in Anpexure:A, a!
staternent on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 ofthe Qrder, to the cxtent applicable.

2. Astequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that :

a,

14, Princep Street
Kolkats — 700 072
29" May 2019

required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2016 (“the Order’) issued by the Ce.éi:tml

We have sought and obtained sall the information and explanations which to the best uf our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audig

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company sn far
as appears fiom our examination of thoss books. I

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Staternent dealt with b}r this
Feport are in agreement with the books of accomt; i

i:
In our opinicn, the afmesald Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, reed with Rule 7 of the Cumpames {Accounts) Rules, | 2{114
except as specified under cur paragraph on “Basis of qualificd apinion'

Om the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31* March,iﬂl? ta.km on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31" March, 2019
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act, and

With respect to reporting requirement on the adequacy of the internal financial controls :i:n!.fer
financial reporting of the company required under section 143(3)(T) of the Act, as ame.nded wi|
refer to our separats report in “ Apnexure-BY,

With respect ta the other matters required to be included in the anditor’s report in accmdance_?with
the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, a3 amended, in gur opinion and to the best of' ourf
information and according to explanations given to us the remuneration paid by the compauy e
its dirgctor dunng the year ig in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. i

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's R:pcrrt in accordancs with hule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in cur cpm:un and to the best ﬂf iy
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us ;

The Company has discloged the impact of pending litigations as at 3™ March, 2019, on its
Financial positon in its financial statement. {Refer note no.15.1 to 13.3).

The Company has made provision in the financial statement for smaterial foresesable loasbs i

any, on long term contracta as required under the applicable law or accounting stand'.ards
{Refer Mote no 5.3A). As informed 1o vs, the conpany has not entered into any d:mntwa
contract,

There has been no amount required to be transfemsd to the investor Education and Pmlo(:unn
fund by the Company durmg the year ended 3 1st March, 2019.

For BIDASARIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accounianis
(FRN: 1151Q4E)

Parther
M.NO-52251

Y2 i



Annexure-A referred to in gur Indepeadent Auditors® Report to the members of the Cumn:im' ;

Re, : M/S, SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED ¢31.03.2019)

i}

vy

it

wif)

on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019, T

1) The Company has not produced for our verification proper records showing fulf particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) We have not been able to ascertain whether Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the
Management at reascnable intervals dusing the year and material discrepancies, if an}r,havc
been noticed or not in absence of any dncumnnmijr evidence,

c) According by the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our exammatmn ;
of the records of the Company, we are not sure that the company helds valid title deeds in |
respect of its immovable property, as we have not been provided the title deeds for our
verifieatian, _

The Inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management, In our opinion, the

frequency of verification is reasonable and no matena.l discrepancies were noticed during such
verification,

a) . The company has granted unsecursd loans to two companies covered in the regjster
maintained under sectien 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in our opinien, the termsfand

conditions of the grant of such loans are prejudicial to the interest of the Company videiour
MNote no 7 under the head "Basis of Chualified Opinion®,

b} There is no stipelation as to repayment of the principal amount and payment of interest, but
payment of intetest are generally regular except in the case of advance in the natare of loan
given to its Subsidiary Rs 10,00,00,000/- and Associate Company with cutstanding balance of
Rs. 71,092,870/ Both these amount has been provided as Moo performing Assets during the

o} In cur opinion and zccording to the explanation given to us, the company is has not taken

reasonable steps for recovery of the principal and interest which are overdue for more than 90
days,

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, Ihe company has complied
svith tha provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act except as provided vide our Neote no 1 under the
head ‘Basis of Qualified Opinion®, with respect to the loans and investments made. As informed to us,
the company has not given any guarantee and has not provided any security.

According to information and explanations given to us, 1he Company has not sccepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning of sections 73 and 74 of the Act and the rules framed there undar
to the extent notified.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, (the company’s activities
do not require mainlenance of any cost records.

ay According to the information and cxplanations provided to us and as per the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues inchiding income tax, GST and other stahatory duss, as applicable to it
with the appropriate authorities,

There 47€ no such outstanding dues at 31% March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

by As exp]amed to us and the records cf the company examined by us, the details of disputed dues




viii)

xii)

«hii)

xivy

i4, Primcep Street
Kolkata — 700 072
29™ MEay 2019

“under the head *Basis of Qualificd Opinion®.

FY.to Which the Forum Where  Amouont as per Demand Order

Mature of Dues matter perkains Drizputes Pending {Rsa.in Lacs)
Income Tax 2008-09  Cormmissioner ' 4.53
Under Income of Income Tax(Appeals)
Tax Act, 1961
2012 - 13 Commissivner
of Tncome Tax{Appeals) 3.80
313

¢) Besides above, without quakifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note Mo. 15.3 of Notes on
Financial Statement regarding contingent liability of the company, not provided for on sccount of
Service Tax payable of Rs. 38,17,716/- pertaining to period from October 2010 to September 2011
{excluding interest appticable, if any) on rental income which has neither been received from the
tenants por deposited with the preseribed autherity on account of legal disputs raized by the
tenants, the final adjudication of which i3 pending before the Apex Court. The Compan}' however,

halds written commitment from tho tenants for collection of entire liability arising upun the
COMPANY Of T.Ins account.

Tha Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any finaneial institution, banks, guvmmﬁt
or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable! -

The Company did not raise any moasy by way of imtial public offer or further public offer (including|

debt instruments) and tenns loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not|
applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company is m::t a
nidhi company. Accordingly Paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to—us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in complisnce with Sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financizl
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards except as provided vide our Note'no 3

According to ihe information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Compasiy, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private place.ment of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during {he year.

According to the mformation and exp]anations given to us and based on our examinations -::;f the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors of
persons connected with themn. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is noi applicable. '

[n our opinion & on the basis of records & documents examined by us the company iz required.io bd

registered ufs 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934 and the company has cbtained: such
registration,

For BIDASARIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Jecourtants
(FRN: 315161E)

RAJEUMAR RIDASARLA

Partner
M.NOL-32251

uy




Re. : MIS. SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED {31.03.2019)

. Annexure I ie the Aoditors Report

TRepert on the Internal Firancial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Secticn 143 of the Cumpanies
Aet, 2013,
We were engaged to auvdit the intemnal Briancial controls over financial reporting of M/S. SUDHA APPARELS
LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March, 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone finanjeial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Kanagement’s Respunsv,hlht}r for Iniernal Kinaneial Contrals.
The Company*s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls base.d or the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential com i3
of internal conteol stated in the Guidance Note of Awdit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial R%g
issued by the Instituts of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities includs the desxgn, implementgtion
and maiotenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderty|and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safegnarding of its asets| the

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required vnder the Companies A¢1,2013 {"tha act“} '

Auditar*s Responsibility

Ouz responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial re:pm'ting
based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiat Cunimla
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to m". andgt of
intesmal financinl controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Because of the matter described in Disclabmer of Gpinion paregraph below, we were not able to obtain suffigient

appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinicn on iiternal financial controls system over: finafcizl
reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Interoal Financial Centeols Over Finaneial Regorting,
A Company’s intemal financial control over financial reporting Js & process designed to provide rﬂaso able .
assurance regarding the relisbility of financial reponing and the preparation of finaneial slatements for external
purpases in accondance with penerally accepted accounting principles. A Company®s internal financial contrel
financial ceporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertsin to the maintenance of remrds that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the nssets of the company (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recerded as necessary to permit preparation of I_:Fm e:1a]
staternents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendituies of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the c.uni']:rnn and
{3} provide reasonable assurmnce regarding prevention or timely detection of unavthorized acqmsmnn u

. OF
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on lhe financial statements.

i
Disclaimer of Opinlon i

|
The system of internal financial controls over financial reporting with regard (o the Company were ot ade
available 1o us to enable us to determine if the Company has established adequate intermal financial coptroljover
financial reporting and whether such intemal financial centrols were eperating effectively as at March 31, Iﬂﬂl?

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit |tests
npplled in our awdit of the standalone financial statements of the Company, and the disclaimer has affected our

opiticn on the financial statements of the standalons Company and we have Issued a qualilied Gpmmn oh the
financial statements,

For BIDASARIA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Acoounlants

(FRN: 3I5I01E)

14, Princep Sireet -

Kolkata — 700 072 .

20" May 2019 -

RAJRUMAR BID}I.S&II_IL&L
Pariner
M.HO.-5225]
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¥ " BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2019
) HOTES As AL As Al
© Partieplars 21.03.2019 I.H3IMA
Rupaes FHupses
~EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ) T
tders' Fun _
[a) #hara Capital 2 7210120 1270120
) Resarves and Swplus 3 2988927011 2894 879 700
(cy Money Recahved Against Shara \Warrants - : .
: 2,544, 197,41 .00 B3 90
B Share Application Money Perding Allotment - -
S Hen-Current Llabliitdes 4
(@) Long - Term Borrowings . -
(b} Defareed Tax Lisbdillas {MHet) . . -
(c¥her Long Term Liabildiss 41 59,371,648 40,295,178
{diLong- Temn Frovigkona . - -
. . E& 371,548 59,295,178
" chiljtigs - Ln £ ’
{7) Shert -Tenn Homowinga L% 1,140,543 6017 1,202,222.789
" o | ) .
) Total outslanding dues of ralcrp anlerprisea
and small arlarprises; and - -
{INTotal outslandng dues of creditors other than
micro eplerprizses and wmall snlemprisas - -
e} CHhar Cyrmend Uabliikes 2 _ owos 12 9887 251
(d) Short-Temn Provishons 53 149,000,600 39,086,430
Tolsl Cument Listilities B Tk e -1
_ Total Equity & Lakilities . 4,303 508 203 ER IR
ASSETS
A, Hop- Cyrrgnt Asoely
(a} Proparty, Plant & Equipisiend ) .
Tanglble asiats -8 758,527,658 TEO,TEE, 161
-Intengitia Assals . .
-Capital Work-In-Prograss - -
= Inlangible asgets undar dervelopment . - -
M} Mbr-Curment Invesimenis T 1,608,862 120 1.036,012.029
(s). Delemed T Assala (Nal) - -
id). Long Term Loans & Advances 8 BE, 125,769 E5.571,457
(2} Cthar Non Cunenl Asscis u -
~2,434,576,645 1.882,356 645
B. Currgnt Asuety : g
{a} Cument |[rvestments - -
) Inwentoriea 81 253,602,488 -
e} Trads Recetrable 32 30,443,518 47 229.84B
{d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.3 2,233,579 1,122,520 652
{=iShart-Tarm Loans and Advances 9.4 1,555,213,189 1,131,453 054
(NCihar Currant Assals 9.5 22420472 18,082,322
1,55§9ﬁﬂ? 2.330.35:,9‘2?

Total Assels

Tha Accofnpanying Moles ara an Inlegral Pert of Finencial Statamant,
A par o raport of even date attached
For BIDASARIA & ABSCOCIATES .

Charlered Accountants
Ep Kumar ktra MR Gar,
CFQ Director

Firm Registralion Mo, 3151ME

Raj Kumar Bldasaria
Farinar

Membershig Mo, 052251 PAMN - 20 HPMZGE1A
Blace ; Kohala

Dated - 25-05-2019
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DN - (849700

4,304.508303 4212661575

Surmery of Signiflcant Azcounivg Policles fgliowed by 1he Company Is ghen in Motes -1

For & on Behalf of the Board

"
it

Savita Jindal
hrecdaor
N - D04497 40

J‘F'._n.f»_,ﬂ

== h e e e e
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15TATEMEHT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2019

Particulars NOTESR © Year ended Year anded |
31.03,2013 31.03.2018 :
Ripess Rupees
INCOME '
Revenue from Cperallons 10 1,273,897,679 Ba0, 181 44-4
Other Incoma 1o 147,619,704 148,507 242
1,421,517.383 806,728,768
I
EXPENDITURE o
Purchase of Stock In Trade 1" 1,372,449,173 361,000,000
Decrezse/{increasa} in Stock in Trade 1 . {159,602,888) 137,500,000
Employess Benell! Expeses 11 : 4,154,081 _ 4,608,433
Finance Cost: . 1" 76,580,207 ﬂﬁ,_ﬂ»ﬂi,ﬂ:!ﬂ
Depreciafion f Amoalzalion 8 21,873,345 22,880,073
Ciiher Expansey 1 2,857,794 5.254,1060
Loss on sale of Investment - Hat 850,004 167,772,652

Contingen! Provigion agalnst Standard Assets

Frofit f {Los$) before exceptional exdracrdinary itema and tax 19:'1.1?'4.34!} 33,223.4:@;

Exceptlonal lfams

li
Provision for Dimnullon 0 velue of fnvestment 1,512,960 [3?6,125.%4}
Provision for Non Performing Assats ] 107,109,870 {8,323,6800)
Frofil / {Losa) efler exceptiornal and extracrdinary [temea and belare lax %451 E10 427 643,
Fax E!E. [:1iE ] ", .
Income Fax I
- Curent Year 42,500,000 55,000,000
- Adjustment of Earlier Year 843 989 169,8
Total Tax Expense T 43343988 '—Hﬁfﬁr&'
. |
Prafit { (Loss) from Continuing Cperation 42,107,521 3&?,5{4,1@
- Familng Per Share (Basic/ Diluted)

Summary of SignHicant Accounting Policles followed by lhe company is given in Notes -1
Tha Accompanying Moles sra an intagral Pan of Finandial Statament.

Az per o repart of even dale atlached

For BIDASARIA & ASSOQOCIATES
Chanered Accountanis
Fimm Reqgistrallon Mo. 3151 ‘I«

Raj Kumar Bldasaria Arup Wurnar Mitea R ' Savita Jndal;
Paitner . CFOQ Director . Director |
Membership Mo, 052261 PAN - AUHPM26614  DIN - 00449709 DIM - 004457

Place : Kolkata
Daled 128052019

5. 1,281,331 : j%,%l
227,343,043 To8,508 265

57,92 ' sum;én

For & on Behalf of the Board

[

CES ' i




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET Year Endad Year Endad
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 215T MARCH 2013 31.03.201% 3.0%2018
Ra. R, '
A, Cagh Flow from Operating Actlvitlies |
Hat Prodlt bafora tax and sxdracrdinary items 194,174,240 33,223,42d
Adjusted furs
Cemec atan 21,873,345 22 868,07F
Contingenl Provision for Standard Aszels 1,281,311 (250,862)
{Froiify’ Lozs on Sala of Investmenls Q50,000 167,772 652
Cperating Profit before Working Capital Changes 218,279,015 223.606,233'
Adjusted for
Trade & Other Recelvaklos [406,296,556) 141,608,025
Inventoniea (259,601 888) 137 500,000
Trada Fayables & Cthars 1,014,303 3215606
Zash Generated from operatlons {445,608,125) 310,930,118
Driract 1aers Paigd (47,961, T30 49547 814
Cash Flow befora sxtraordinary ilems= (434,589,915} 480,082,302
Exdragedinary ilern - .
Mat Cizh From Cperating Activitiza A - {494,589 915} 460082 30F .
B Gash ro i it . : .
Purchase of Flxed Azzets {624,840} L324,000%
Sale of Fived Aszete . 228110
Purchase of Invesiments {658,858,000) (437.769,154)
Sale of Inveslmenls 85,095 040 H62 548 284
Hat Cagh from Investing Actheities B {574,427 936} 176 5:52,130"
. 1 n Ing Activit
Proceads f {Reduction) of Shord Term Borrowlngs 161,275,168) 543,178,361
Net Cash from Flnaneing Activitios G [61,279,168) ERRYERTAR
Het !nr..reasa_!n Gazh & Caxzh Equlvalents {A+B+C) 11,130,297 013) 1,130,743 843
Opening Balances of Cash and Cesh Equivalant: 1,132,520,.002 1.?35,34'95_
Closing Balancas of Cagh and Cazh Equivalents — 2,132,674 1,132 520,602
Chenge In Cash and Cash Equivatants (1,130,297,012) 1,130.743,843
As par our report of even dale altachead -
ForBIDASARIA & AﬁSﬁGIATES I For & on Lehalf of the Board
Chartered Accouniants..
Firm Regiztration Np. 315107k;
t -
-~ - N .
| Davida— ThatS
Raj Kumar Bidasarla Arup Kumast Mitra M.H. Savita Jindat—
Farnar CFO Director Diractor
Membership Ho. 057251 ARMPMEGE1A DiN - 00449709 DI - (0449740
Place : Koltala
Palad : 25052019 .
yg




Sudha Apparels Limit:ed

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MHOTE - 1: SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

a. Basis of Preparaticn and Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under ihe historical cost conventlon on acerual basis
and in accordance with the requirements of the Companles Act, 2M3 and In compllance

with the applicable accounting standards. The accounting policies, except otherwise stated
have been consistently applied by the Company.

All assets and Habilities have hean classified as current or non-current as per compar:l},r.s

normal operating cycle of 12 months and other criteria set-out in Scheduls-lll of the
Companies Act, 2013,

b. Use of Estimates

The presentations of financial statemaents is in conformity wilh the generaily accepled
accounting principles which requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affecti,the
reportable amount of assets and fiabilities on the date of financial statements and ithe
reportable amount of revenue and expenses durng Lhe reporting period. Dtﬁeran;es

between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results! are
kniown f materalizad, !.

G. Revenue Recognition

Revenus is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with hccuunhng Standarg [AE—Q]
‘Revenue recognition”.

irterest Income is accrued on timse propertion basis and recognised only if in the cpiniuh of
Management realisation is certain. Profit and loss en sale of investment is recognised on
contract date. Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is estab]ishgd.

d. Fixed Assots & Depreciation ;
P
Fixed Assets arg staled at cost of acquisition, consfructlon less accumulated depreciaiion.
The cost comprises of purchase price and any other directly attributable cest of bnnginq the
assets {o warking condition for its intended vse. Depreciation on assets have been provided
on pro-rata basis, for the period of use, on written down vaiue method up to 31.03.2014,
Depreciation is calculated at the rates prescribed uvnder schedule X1V to the Gﬂmpanlas
Act, 1966, From 1.04.2014 depreciation is calculated by allocating the deprecizble ambunt
of each assets of its estimated ussful lifa. Depreciation amount of assetis the cost of assets
f W.D.V.as on 1.04.2014 less its resldual value, Useful life on an assel is takmg as
prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2913

uq |




Sudha Apparels Limited

Invesiments

Lang Term Investmenls are classified Into Non current invesiments and others are classifled as
current Investment current. Long-term investments are valued at thelr acqulsilion cost. Current
invastmants are slaled at lower of cost and falr markel value. The provision for any diminution in the

value of Non current invastmanis is made only if such a decline is olher than temporary in the
epinion of the management.

Inventorles
Inventaries are valued at iower of cost or net realisabla value,

Employees Benefits b

All employes benafits like salary, bonus, ex-gratia & others aceruing & payable within the rspartlng
actounting peried  are classified s Shorl Period and recognised on accrual basis. A
Retirement benafits for Leave Encashment & Graluity (o employees are Insignificant and umfun:fi_ad
Long-Tem Termn Lishility clagsified as Non-Current. Graiity payabtle o an employee I3 equal to15
days salary for svary completad year of service calculated as per Payment of Gratuity Acl, 1872, Legve
encashment liabifity is calculated for the pariod fixed by Company polley for which dally zalary is anived
by dividing the salary last drawn. The liakility for relirement benefits are resloed on Balance Sheat ctate
and difference wilth the opening balance ia charged in the Profit & Loss Accounts.

Taxea on Income i
Current Tax;

Provision for Taxalion is ascertalned on the basis of assessable prold computed in accordance u;.r[th
lhe provislons of Income Tax Act, 1861 & tax advices, wherever considered necessary. :

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax ia recognised, subjsct 1o the consideration of prudence, as the tax effect af tmng
difference between the laxable income & accounting income compulad for the current amounhng
yvear and reversal of easlier years' timing difference. | :
Dafarred Tax Asscls are recognised and carried forvard o the extent that there is virtal cernai'i:'lty

that sufliclant future {axable Income will be availabla against which such deferrad tax assels aan ba
realised; .

Provislens, Contingent Liabilities and Contingant Assets

Provisions are recognised only when thers is reliable estimale of present obligation as a result. of
~ pasl events. Conlingent Liabiliies are disclosed by way of Notes on accounts. Contingant
Frovislon against Standard Assels is accounted as per RBI direclive on slandard asgels.
‘Confingent Assets are neither accounted nor disclosed in lhe financial statemenls duz ito

uncertalnty of their realisation. '

Event occurring after the Balance Shest Date _
Event ccoumring afler the Balance Sheet Data and till the date on which the Financlal Statement

are approved, which are malsrial in nature and indicate the need for adjustmenla in the financial
staternent are considered.




Sudha Apparels Limited

Impalrment of Assets

At each Balance Sheelt Date, the Company assesses whether thers s any indicstion that an
assels has Impaired. If any such.indicalion exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount.
if the camrying amount of the assets exceeds s recoverable amount, an impairment inss [&
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account to the extent the camying amount 8xceeds recoverable
amounk. -

According to Management estimation the recoverabla amount of the fixed assels is not less than

its camying amocunt as on the Balance Sheet date, hence no impairment provision Is required this
year. ' '

Borrowing Costa i

Borrewing cost attributable to acquisition of qualifying assets till date of acqulsition'is capltahsad as
part of cost of such asssls. All other barrowing costs are classified as revenue sxpenss |
l.
i
Basic eaming per share is caloulated by dividing net profit available for distribution to Equih_.f
sharsholder by walghted Average Number of equity shares oulstanding during the year. '

Eamning Per Share

Diluted eaming per share is calculated by dividing net profit available for distribulion to Equiry
shareholder by welghled Average Number of Potential equily shares oulslanding during the year
arrlved at gmng effect to all dilutive options. i

Research and Developments

Revenue Expenditura on Research & Developmant |5 charged In the Statement of Profit & Loss of

the year in which it iz incumed. Capital Expanditure on Research & Deuelopment is capilallsed mlh
the cost of asset for which It is incurred.
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|
ANNGXUIS + |

Scheduls to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financlal company
[as required in lerms of paragraph 13 of Non-Systemically Imporiant Non-Banking Financial ( Non-
Deposit Accepling or Holding} Companies Prudentiat Morms (Reserve Bank) Dlractions, 2015]
: (Rupees)

Parliculars

{1} Llakllities sida:

Loans and advances availled by the NBFCs inclislve of | Amount  Out- | Amount

interest accrued therecn but not paid: standing Overdua |
i
() Debentures . : _ ;
Secured - -
Unzecured - -

{other than faling within the
megning of public deposifs*}

(b)) Dafered Credile -
(¢} Term Loans -
{d} inter-corporale keans and borrowiry 1,140,943 601
{e} Commercial Paper -

{hy Cther Loang (specify nature) . ' -
* Please sea note 1 below

Aszets side:

Amaunt Cutstanding

£2) 1. Break-up of loans and Advances including bilf
receivable {other-than those included in (4) balow):

{(a) Secured - =

. (R)Ungecured 1,528,228.307

)} Break-up of Leased Assels and stock on hire and other
assels counting towards AFC acthvitles

{l) Laase assels including lease rentals under sundry
Debtors ;

{a) Financial Lease -
{b} Operating Lease -

{INStock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors;

_ {a) Assets on hire -
(b} Repossessed Assels _ -

e

(iily Hypothecation lpans counting towards ELHP getivities .

fa} Loans where assets have been re-possessed - i

{b) Loans glher than {a) gbove -

T2




Sudha Apparels Limited

{4)

Break-yp of Invesiments:

Current Investmenis:

1, Quoted:
i. Shares: {a) Equity
(b} Preference

. Cebenturez and Bonds
it. Unita of mutual funds
v. Govemment Securfties
v.  Others (nlease specify)

2. Unquoted:
i Shares: (a) Equity .
(b} Preference

i Debentures and Bonds
it UInits of mutual funds
Iy. Sovernment Securities

¥,  Others (please specihy

Long Term Investments:

1. Guoted:
1. Shares: {a} Equity-
{b) Preferance

TBB,517 472

ii. Debentures and Bonds
jli. Units of mutual funds

v, Government Secutitles
W, Dthers {please spechyt

2. Unguoted:
i. Shoras: (8) Equity
(b} Preference

ii. Debeniures and Bonds
jil. Units of mutua! funds

w. Sovernment Securitles
v.  Olhers (please specify)

138,560,648
185,050,000

503,725,000

(5}

Pleasa sae nots 2 holow

-Bormower group-wise classification of assels Tnancad as in {2) and (3} above:

Calagory

Amount of net of provisions

— e = e — e — — —

1. Related Parlies**
{a) Subsidiaries

fz) Other related parties

2. Uther than relzled parties
Total

(b) Companies in the same group

Secured | Unsecured Total

(6)

Please ses note 3 below

investors group-wise classifications of all Investments {currant and long tem"t‘,l in shares
and securities {bolh quoted and unquoted):
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Sudha Apparels Limi[{&d

Calegory | Market Value | Book Value {Net of
Break-up or Fair | Provisions)
: Yalue or NAY
1. Related Parilas*™
fa} Subeldiaries -
ib} Companies in the same - -
group
{c} Other related parties - -
2, Other than related parties 1.578,073,482 4,608,862,120
Tolal ) 1,878.073,402 1,608,862,120
** Ag per Accounting Standard of ICA} (Please ses Mote 3)
%) Other Informatllon
Parllcuiars Amount

i1 Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties

(b} Ciher then related parties

el Mon-Performing Assels
{a) Related parties

{B) Cther then related parties

{ili}) Assets acquired in sallsfaction of debis

sy




HOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE AUCITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ERCED

3 ST MARCH, 2019

. Az AL A Al
032019 3103218
Bupau Rupees
Authgrised-
1,000,600 Equity shares of Ra, 10 each 14,000 000 40,000,000
10,000,000 10,000 00
Iesuc cribed and Fal
ity Sap]
¥27,0M2 Equily Shares of R=.10 each fully paid up 1,270,120 T EIGA2G
1,270,120 1270120
) Of the above Shares 527,012 Equity Shares wers sllotted as fully pald up
pwrstiant to schema of amakgjamation wihout payment being recaived in cash
b} Reconcillatlon of Shares Chtstanding at the beginnging and end of e year
Eﬁ_mr; Sharas of ﬁs. 10 gach fully pald up
Parliculars A at 31.03.2HF Asal 31032018
Hos. Rupees Hos,  — Hupaea
Al the beginning of Year FFERF] 7270120 727,012 7270120
Add - Addilion dudng tha Yaar - - - .
Less - Reduction during he Year .- - .- -
At the end of the Year Faroiz 770,120 X 0iz T270.120

¢} Enuity sharea holders heve fght to receive dividend proposad by the Board of Directors, subjecl to approval of

shargholders al tha Genaral Maaling,

d) Equity shareholders have no right to repﬁ.ymentef capitet except, disirlbutlon of swplus asels on iquidation.

e} List of persons holding mor then 5% eguity sharas of Rs 10- sach of ihe company:,

Mame of Share-Hoplders As at 31.053.2G19 A3 ot 31082018
Hos % Moe %
1, Jindel Clobel Finance & Investmenl Lid . 107 418 14977 | 107,418 14,77
2, Flakl Cealcom Lid, A5, 761 4.4 55 761 4.92
3. Pushpan]all Invesiada Py Lid. 70,000 4.83 oo
4 Dharam Pal Jindal 65 900 961 59,500
5. Savila Jingsl 108,662 1367 108 662
5. Sakel Jindal 70,000 DEd TR
7. Raghay Jindal 145,123 15.50 145123
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Huies larming par of the Financlol Stalomgnls
HOTES - 1 | RESERVE & SURPLUS
Farticulars

Capital Ni
As per last Balancs Shast

Qther Resersgs
3) General Rewkrve

An per last Balancea Shast
At | Additon during Lbva year

b} Stalutory Hesarve
Aa per last Balance Sheat
Add - Addition during Lhe yoar

Surpluy in Slatement of Prefll & Loss Mg
As ped las) Balance sheet
fitLoss

Lesa - Tranefar 1o Slatulery Regsred

Lesh - Transder o Senkral Reserrg

Curranl Year Surplug [ {Deficil)

4z

5.1

52

53
534

538

5o

Closing Surplus/(Deflekt)

Talzl

NOTES - 4: HON - CURRENT LIABILITIES

Char Loag Teren Llaklitles
Qiera- Secwwity Depost

Long- Tarm FProvislons
For Employeas Beanafids

HOTES - 5 : CURRENT LIABILITIES

Ehor -Tert Borrowings { Uniccured }
Loans Repoyable an Damand

Oihgr Cyrrgnt Linblbitles
Liabififiey for Expanzes
Ligoilites hor Stajutory Ouwas

Short T Provisi
Conlingend Provision for Standared Asealt
Cpaning Balance

Addillon duting the yaa

Tha above provision is made @ 0.25% of Standard Azsels on Iha reporting dale 33 per A

gulgelnes applicaba o NEFC,

Provislon v Qirmimeiles b walus ol Imeestment
Cpaning Balance
Adcilicn dng Lhe vaar

Proviaion ke Mon Pedarming Assely
Opaning Balerca
Acdition § (Adjusted) during the year

An AL Aa AL
M.0L3HS 310318
Rupee: Fupaes
51,581,450 51,561,498
§2,748,597 B2 tag 597
B2, 746,397 B2, 748,597
505,181,026 531,878,200
BAZ1,E00 71502 826
B13,802 BB 505,351,028
2,145 +110,669 1,864,009, 285
42, 107, 521 AET 514,130
B, 421,600 73502404
32,535 %1 294,047,704
33,685,021 To4 .01 304
438,796,540 255,110,669
2 038,927,311 —_ 2,604 819,790
57,802,553 5T 8032, 582
1589083 AT 813
58,371,640 28245178
1,740,543 601 12017 222,769
1,205,685 1,264,085
TR, 417 8.703,184
2,662,085 2920047
1,281,331 (254,602) -
h A ThiER] ] 2 E62038 -
36,424,384 412,561,205 .
1,54 960 [376, 126,834}
38,037,314 M5 A24 15
i
. B333599
107,109,570 (8.523.598).
107,109,870 -
143, D90 50 EE YT
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\ SUDHA APFARELS LIMITED

»

) Hotes formling part of the Financlal Statements

NOTES -7 : HON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS
{Fulty pald vp unfess otherwise specified)

- NGN- TRADE
i Cuoted

Enujty Shares

Rs. 5 each of Jindal Drilling & Indugiiies Limied

Rs. 5aach of Maharashtra Seamless Limited

Rs. 10 gach of Haryana Capfin Limiled

Rs. 10 each of Parsynath Oevelopers Limited

Re. 10 each of Wideocon Industries Limited

Rz 10 each of GOL OMshare Limited

Rs. 1 each of Ultam Yalue Steel Limited

Rs. 1 cach of Llyod Sleel Industrias Limited

Rs. 2 egch of Aban Gifshore Limited

Ra. 10 each of Hindustan Qil Exploraticn Co. Limited
Ra. 10 each of Selan Exploraion Tewmology Limited
Ra_1 each of Jindzal Steel & Powear Limited :
Rg. 10 each of SYOGL Gil Gas And Energy Limnited
Ra. 10 each of Hexa Tradex Limited

Ra. 12 each of HDB Bank Urited

Ra 1 each of MMOC Limited

i) Un - Quoted
al  Eguity Shares

Rs, 10 aach of Dylop Commodeal Limited
Ra. 10 eadh of Jnwsal Giobal Finance & |nvestmanl Lmiled
Ry, 10 each of Jindz] Pipes Limitad
Rs. 10 each of Sparlerk Dealeomm Lirmited
Fls. 18 each of Vhilep!n Tla -Up Limibed
Ra. 10 each of Jirdal Pe-x Tubes Pyt Limitad
Rs. 10 aach of Jindal Explodrill Limilad
Rs. 10 each of Mepluna Builtssh Pyt Limited
Pa 10 each of Sigma infrasirocture Pyl Limited
. Rz 10 each of Kushagra Inlfastrociure Pl Limited
Ra_ 10 each of Darpan Dealcom Limited
Re. 10 aach of Diamend Dealtrade Limited

b} Preferenca Shares

Rs. 10 each of Global Jindal Finlnvaet Limiled

Rg. 19 esch of Crishoark Vinerm Limited

Ra. 10 asch of Jindal Global Flnance & Invesimeant Limiled
Fs. 10 each of Darpan ealcom Limitad

¢} Bonds

Bank of India SR-1 Ferpetusl
Furje: & Slnd Bank Perpatual
UP Power Corperation Limited
Yoo Gank Limited Perpatual

Aggregels Valus of Unquotad Investments
Magregale Value of Quated Investments
Wakel Value of Cruoted nvestments

Mglas

Al investment in shares of Pavale Limited Companies sre subject o restrictions

Articles ol AssoDalion of raspacive campany.
T Invasteent whitlan off dus 1o strike off by MCA

As At 1.03.2018

Ax At 31.03.2018

Humbers Rupeea Numbers Hupess -
3,081,000 27T 463,874 3,081,000 277 483 BF~
852,039 432,856,459 C 05,004 128 551,350
1,014,322 43 47%,830 1,014,322 43 ATH.630
1,000 48,827 1,004 BET
100 17,441 100 17,441
1,500 B22,765 1.500 GZ2 785
290,720 308,977 205,720 ana.ary
40,761 658,575 40,761 658 575
100 47,233 100 BT !
2,000 470,766 2,000 470,785
1,100 435,455 1,100 435, 456G
1B,466 8,573,849 18,486 8,873,848
1,500 604,728 1,500 604,728
. 2,608 95,158 2,600 44,156
3,000 358,085 3,000 3,055
5,000 1,177,644 500 1177641
85,700 851,240 85,700 861,240
700,100 2,748,505 700,100 .2, 748,505
3,744,740 14,050,758 3,741,740 14,050,798
81,000 612,000 81,000 POBED0G
50,004 805,000 BO,0DOO D30

100,000 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 -

- - 8,500 000
8,510 95,408 8,810 b, 405
5,800 98,415 §.800 T OBE418
1,155,000 36,059,450 1,185 000 5,058,450
198,500 1,985,715 199,500 1,985,716
8,105,000 81,040,120 810,006 B1,040,120
- - 250,000 25 000,000
TT5,000 120,000,000 715,000 120,000, 000
- - 200,000 20,000,000
7,505,000 75,050,000 7,508,000 ?5, 3,000
- - &0 S0, 950, 000
150 151,140,000 150 $51,140,000

200 201,500,000 - 3 -

150 162,665,000 - N -
1,608,852,120 TSR0
334,619,648 360,714,648
TER,S17.472 Afd, 214,362
£24,681,093 4,545
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Hotes forming part of the Finangisl Stalements

As AL A AL
M.02.2019 3tgszoie
_Eupoas FupeEs
HOTE - 8:LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(nsenared, Considarad good}
Capltal Advances B4, 983287 - 64,082,237
Security Depoeil 4,203,282 589,070
66,185,769 AS571 457
HOTES - %! CURRENT ASSETS
IHYEMTORIES
Etock in Trade - Mulual Fund Units 259-,5!12_,383 .
265 EGF B3R .
JRADE RECEMABLES S
(Unsecured, Consldered good}
Ouislarding for a padod seceading sl mondhs - -
Cher Recelvalla 0,242,618 4T 220,049
A0 443 818 47,820,840
CASH AND cASH ECIUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 24,282 B4, 36%
Balances with Banks
- in Curcam Accaurds 2,211,447 2,435,208
= In Flxad Deposits - 1,150,000 060
2.23257% 1,132,529 892
TT HND ADVANCES [Ungacu
Loans & Advances i Relasled Perilez
To Subsidiery Companlex | Conmidared Goad)
Laany 270,580 164 37T 84T 2T
Advances 100,000,002 00, n, Lt
To Assoclaled Company-Loans (considered Crouitul) T W.ﬁﬂ 7108870
" boan lo CHhers (Consbdersd Good) 1,141,403,858 E14,004 412
Qitver Advances (To Stafll & Oihars) 2,734,410 8.23¥.373
Advanca bncome Tax 27,004,082 22,356,001
{Mat of Provislon Re. 375,262 161/, Previous Year Rs. 355,289,1615) :
1,558, 235,189 1,131,453 084
< EH &
Prapaid Expermes 18,282 T8 407
Inberest Rogalvatie 22342151 §8.015 BB5
22,420,473 AB0az AT
Total Gurent Assols 1869837 847 2,330,304 977

1n the oplnien of Board and to the kesl of iheir inowledge and belinf, the vakue on reallsation of above curmend
gssets, except doutful kean of Rs. 7,109,870 ndicaled ahovs, woudd, In ordingry course of business, he not

Jaza than the smoun! at which they are sisted,
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11.4
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. SUJUHA AFFAHELS LIM EL

Notes forming part of the Financial Slatemsenla Yoar ehdad Year endad
3032019 1.03.2M13
Rupeos Rupees
HOTES - 10 ¢ INGOME ) v
BEVENYE FROM QPERATIONS
Sake of Mutual Fund Urits . 1,130,482,145 57,358,621
Uivldend = an fHon current bmeaatmant 14,044,247 4043730
Interest (TOS Rs 7.84F,013H-, Pravious Year Rs, 8,264,580 13410119 92,845,753
Interest on Bong : 43,761,164 5518582
Telal Revenue rom operaliéng 1,271 897 873 EEU.:IEH 444
OTHER CPERANMNG THEOME
Renl (YDE R, 13,809,887}, Frevious Year Re.13,604 B341) 138,234,560 136,178,330
Sther Income .
Profit tn Apquizilon of Land : 9,247 418 10,384 816
Agrichure Ranl 250,000 -
Liabilies Wiitten Bark ' 5428 .
Praf on Transter of fghts in Land proparty - Nal - 44197
Total other Intome 147,849,104 146,587 262
Total Income 1,421,517,383 BOB73B.708
HOTE - 41 : EXFENSES
chas 13 k
Iern - Molusl Fund Units : ’ 1.072,548,172 251,000,000
Dagrgasedingreass] in Stock iy Trads
lem - Mutuai Fund Unils
Opening Block - 137,500,000
Less - Claging Hock ' 269,502,558 .
tecreaseliinerease) in Siecx In Trade __I2%9.&0Z ERE) 137,500,000
EMPLOYEES' EEMEFIT EXFENSER
Salaries & CHhor Allowances 401808 4,.336.06%
Staff Weliare Expensss - 434300 170,364
— %154, 081 4 G 435
INTE ] -
Interest on Unsecured Short Term Loan 76,578,702 BE.590,290
Bank Charges 1,505 182,540
TH, 580,207 &8 651,83
THE P
P, Charges 32,524 0.539
Rent 97,500 196,000
Rates & Texey 1,254,599 182,753
Foatoge & Talephong 119,245 az.802
Frinding & Stialkonery 5157 12,93}
Fee & Subaciplicn 29,200 30,050
Travellng & Commeyanca ATAATS 251,654
Repair to Offcs Bubding 1,543,208 F25131
Rapalr & Malntenancs - CHherns B TE ) -
Legal & Profsssionst Charges 1485440 501,235
INSWance 1700748 193,393
CBR Expanses 1,0, 000 5.000,005
Inietmal Aol Faa 9,250 11,800
Adveriisarmanl & Publicily 38,524 26887
Invastmanl Written Off 98, 000 .
Auditees’ Remuneration : ]
- Audil Fea 48,500 88,500
- Tax Auwdit Fee 14,520 7,050
- Cerllcallan £ olhers senvices Z3E00 11,800
Miszelaneous Expenses o i 178482 535,347
Total 9 EET T4 8,264,160
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fgtes Forming parl of the Financlzal Statements faar ended Yo encded

- M.03.2019 3t.a3zge

Rupaes Fupeas

HOTE : 12 - Earning Per Share
Hel Profl /{Loss} afler Tax 42,107 511 387,514,130
Totel Mumber of Eguily Shares 727,012 27012
Eamning Per Equily - Share Basic & Ciluted 5742 EQ5.54
HOTE : 11 - DEFERRED TAN ASSETS/ILIABILITIES]
Far Depreciation of Fitad Assets 42816,133 o8, 398 528
For Expemses Alowable on Payment 508,090 484 278
For Unabsgred Capilal Lyszes ) 22,428,204 24 565034
Total Daferred Tax Azaet/{Liability} on Balance Sheel Dala B5, 763,432 61452240
Less - Opening Balance 61,452,240 52.693.9:535
Deferred Tax Incomal{Expensa} for the year 4,311,192 8,750,287

In wlew of uncerlainity of realisation ; the atove Defened Tax AvselsfIncome has not been recognised in the

Financlal J1alemenls,

NOTE : 14 - RELATED PARTY DHSCLOSURE

gl Mama of Key Manageral Person
Mr. MR, G@arg - Wholetime Direcior
M Arup Kumai Mitrs - CFO
Mr. Rajesh Gupla - Company Secretary

bl Entergr whern cantrof exists
Subsidlary
Crishpark Wincom Limited (65.88%)

¢] Other Related Partien with whom Transactions have taken place durlns Lhe Year
Assoclate Company
kushagra Infrastruciure Pyl Limited

Cither Related Concern/Party
Sml Savita Jindal ICirectar}

Transacaciions with Relatsed Pa during the year

Loan to Associate Compapy (elesing balance] 08,870 T.105.870
Loan te Subsidiary Company (closing balance) 270984, 144 377847 327
Other Advance Lo subsidiary 100,004,000 100,000,000
Faymant to Oiher Relalgd Party { 5m1, Savifa Jindal) )
a, Repd Paid 97,500 87,500
b. Ciher Services 57600 20557
Marzgertal Femuneratlon - Mr. M.R. Garg - Whelatime Diectar 1,281,500 1,287.597
interest income from Subsliiary, Asseciate & Other related party 24,814,283 28,875,910
{ Ho Inleres] is provided on loan (o Associated Company for belng HPA) N :
NOTE -1 MRTINGENT LIAE E3 HOT ACCOUNTED FOR -
Ingamg Tax Demand ynder Appeal _
ALY 2008-2010 F.Y, 2008-2009 453,410 483,410
AN 20132014 By 2122012 380,280 a0, 280
FREN:TT 831,650




» Molee faaming part of tha Financhal Stalemants

Al W AT | R R A

1532 1 respact of Bank Guarantes Issusd by Indusind Bank Limited (previously by
+ Folak Mahindra Bank Limited ¥ in favaur of Naw Taown Efectils Supply

Company Limilad

153 SERVICE TAX LIABILITY

Tha Company has not provided lorits Senvice Tax Bakbillly on "Renting of Immovatla Property” 1o some ten ahts for the period jeom
Cctobesr, 2010 o Septambor, 2011 amounting e R, 78,35,432/- which has been disputed by thesa lanants theoogh thair assoclalion
belora Hontli'le Supreme Gourt, of which 50% ol tha arear dues amounting to Rs. 38,17, 716" hagz been directy deposited by Ihese
tenans with the Servlca Tax Authonity under the directon from the Apex Courl ang for tha batance 50% of Servica Tax dues, tha final

13,584,350

{
13,664,380

adjudicalion of the Apex Tourt ks swalted, The Gompery, howevar, hokls wrillen commiiment from such lenanls for reimburgement of af
Ikabilllies arising due b pon-payment of Service Tax by the Company.

18 TE3 OH CAP]TA DY

Caplial Adivances of 564, 582 387~ (Prevdous Year Re, 64,902 3675) under Nole no. - & represent advances mada 1o varhoua parlfe:
(LocalAqgricyulianilist) for purchases of warlous plols of land a»t differant lacatlons in the stole of Maharashirs on behal of the Cumpﬂny T
Irvestrnent purpasa. Alhough tha company holds adginal Itle daeda in respect of Bll such land purchased by thesw parifes & takﬂrl

-

possession of the land properies, tha final conveyance Infavaur of company is pending dus o restrictlons imposed by tha local au'lhoﬂha:..
Suilable appropralion of such capllal advances woukd ba made upen axaculion of conveyance desdsiseiiamanl of accounts with all thaae

partiea upen disposal of the same,

17 SEGIAENT RLPORTING

Tha Company hag this year ieniified two raportsble primany Buslpess Segment on tha basts «f risk & seturn involved, which are| fnan&lng

& Investoment and Renling of Property.
Saegment Revanue, Resulls & other information

v

£a

Finance & Renting of i
Partleulars Investment Propery Chhars Tota
Income fram aperatians 1,273,890.679 - 8,502,844 |  1,283,200.823
(660,161,444 { () | {660,161 444)
Cither operating Income - - 136,245,860 - 138,216,560
th] (1384783300 [10,389,832)] (146,567 262
Segment Rasulls 1,273,697 678 138,215,880 §,607,844 LRFIRY 1,383
(B0, 161,444 {136,178 330) (10,288,932 (BOG728,05)
Flnance tost 78,550,207 - - 753530,:_01
{68,861,8307] 3 ) {66,581 830)
Other expendilura 1,126,874,184 23,541,455 - 1,150,752.83a
{878,596 763 {22 848,604 th] (701543456
Proflt / {Loss) belors Tax 70,246,299 114,325,208 $,602,844 194,174,340
) (65,697 148)  (113.631,836) {10,388 532} (38,223,920)
Segmant Assols 1,610,224,70€ 854,269,606 - | 4304508302
{3.480069.95%)|  (732,591,87%) { | {a,212681b75)
Segmant Llability 1,302,608,398 57.802,563 - 1,359,310,bs1
(1,262,769,102) (57,802,583) [y BRI TAR 1)
Capilal employed 2,307,730,348 636,487,043 - 2,944,197,831
(22270851 {67 ‘ 058} (-3 1 2534 575 FEO)
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SUDHA APFARELS LIMITED

Netes farming part of the Financlzl 3tatemenls

EESERVE BAMK OF INDIA REQISTERED HON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

Tha cempany i ragisterd with Réserva Bank of india as Non Banking Flinanca Company Vide Reglstration
Mo -05.02275 did 16,05.1598 and has been complying with prudantial Nomag prescribed by REL,

Additionat parliculars as required in terms of paragragh 13 of Mon Syslemically Important Mon-Banking Flnancial
(Hor-Deposit Accapling of Holding Cornpanies) Pradentiol Morma {Resenve hank} Directions, 2015 sepretaly alched

Bazad on information avsilabla *§'h the company, there are no dues owed by the company la Micr, Small & Medium
Enlerprise, which are cutstarding for more than 45 daye durihg tha year and a8 at 215l March® 2019, Az aresuh, no

interest provision/ paymenta have been made by the Compeny fo such Credilers, and no disclosyra therot s taquired
under Micro Enterprizes Development Acl, 2008,

The retirement benefit of the erplayess of the company b recognised an payment basls ag & when arfsed,
Pravigus yrears figures have bean regroupad [ rearmangesd where ever necessany.

Ther Ancempanying Motes fonom an infegral pan of the Financlat Statements,

A par our repor of sven date attached
For BIDASARIA & ASSOCIATES For & on Behalf of the Board
Chanered Accnuntanis .

Firmn Registration Mo, 3151015
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Gt

Fal Kumar Bidasaria
Parlnar
Membarship Mo, 052251

Flace © Kolkzla
Dated  26-05-2019

Arop Kumar Milra MR, Gdrg Savila XnJal :I -
CFO Direchor Direclor
PAN - AQHPMZEE1A DN - Q0449708
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFPORT TO THE MEMBERS
MiS. SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
(pinjon

We have audited the sccompanying Consolidated financial steiements of M/S. SUDHA APPARELS

LIMITED (hercinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Campany™) [CIN NO. LI7299WB1981PLCO33331]
- and its subsidiaties (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries fogether referred to as “the Gr-:rup”] its

assqciates and jointly controlled entities, which comprise the consclidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2019,

the consolidated staternent of profit and Loss, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year [then
. ended, and notes to the consclidated financial statements, including a summary of significant acmuntmg
- policies (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™),

[n qur gpinion and 1o the best of cur information and according to the explanalions given 1o us, except t'or I‘J1=-
sffects of the matter deseribed in the Basis for Qualitied Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid f'l.nﬂnclai
statements give a true and fair wiew in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indm
uf the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31st, 2019 and Consolidated profitvloss and its Cﬂnaohcfaf:d
cash Aows for the yveur ended on that date.

IFxsiz of Qualifed Opinion

1. Attention is invited to Note 4.2 Forming part of the Financial Statements, the Manapement info
us that the provisigmof Rs 208,610/ for Leave Encashment Payable and Rs 13,60,475/- for Gratuity

Fayable is not supported by any actuarial calewlation. The calewiation made by the Company is[also
not made available to us.

2. The internal audit report has not been provided to us by the Management.

3. The balance confirmation of the Trade Receivables and other advances has not been provided I:n_,.r ihe
management.

4. Attention is invited to Note 14 Forming part of the Financial Staternents , the Management has oot
disclosed the transactions made during the year with the related parties entered into by the Compan}'
The Management has disclosed only final autstanding balance of the related parties.

3. Attention is invited to Mote 5.0 Forming part of the Financial Statements, the advance of Es
10,00,00,000/- given to Crishpark Vincom Lut (Subsidiary Company) is included in the caleulation of]
both provision for non performing asscts Rs 10,00,00,000- and provision for standard assets Rs
2,50,000/-. Had the amount not been included in the provision of standard assets, the profit of the
Company would have been increased by Rs 2,50,000/-. :

6. Attention is invited to Note Mo 5.3C Fonning part of the Financial Statements, the provision for NPA
15 not made propetly. 100% provision for NPA (Non performing assets) has h«ecn made for the advance
of Rs 10,00,00,000/- given free of interest to the Subsidiary Company, Crishpark Vincom Ltd, Further
tie Company has also given loan 1o s Subsidalnf pany, Crighpark Vincom Lid. amounting tq Rs




10.

12.

15

14.
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18,

27.09,80,164/- bearing interest. The Company has made number of transactions of paying fisrther loans
and also repayment of the same. However, the Compeny has made provigior for advance made of Bs
10,00,20,000¢- only. No provision for MPA has been made For loan amaunt of Rs 27,09,80, 164/-. H":ra
the provisions relating to NPA has not been' followed.

Attention is invited to Note no, 9.4 & 14 Forming part of the Financial statements, the advance ﬂig’:Rs
2,00,000 paid to one of the director of the Company, has not been disclosed separately in the related

parly schedule of the Balance Sheet. Tt has been included under the head Other Advances (to Staﬁ' &
Others} amounting to Rs 87,34,415,

Attention is invited to Note L 1.5 Forming Part of the Financial Statements, The municipal taxes paid
for Gurugram Property and New Town Property ameunting (o Rs 4,40,208/- for 3 guarters and:Rs
93,04,539/- for 3 quarters respectively has not been provided for. Had this been provided, the profit of
the Company would have been decreased by Rs 97,44,747.

I

- i
The fixed asset register and supportings for physical verification of fixed asyete has not been prﬂwded .
to us by the Management.

: |
Brokerage paid to Anshul Gupta HUF amounting to Bs 9.45,000 for UP Power & Yes Bank Bond
Deal Trangaction is included uncer the head Legal & Professional Charpes accounted for in the me‘ t
& Loss Statement. Mo agresment has been provided to us regarding the same, by the Managnment

. Altgntion is invited to Note No 16 forming part of the Financial Ststements, Details and Dnoumv:nis of

Capital Advances amuuntmg to Es 6,49,82,387/- has not been provided to us for cur verification by
the management.

The ront agreement and the agricultural rent agreement has not been provided to us for oor ver:ﬂnahl:m
by the management.

Autention is invited to Note No 92 formring part of the Financial Staiemcnls the Management has‘not

provided for the proper bifureation of Trade Receivables as on 31™ March 2019 aa per Schedule IH af
the Companies Act, 2013,

Minutes of the Auwdit Committee for FY 2013-19 net provided to us for our verification b)rithe
managemer. i
Company Register not prm'idéd te us for onr verification by the management. ;

|
Purchase Invoices of Air Conditioner amounting to Rs 5,38,19%/- addition made during the year not
provided to us by the Management,

The MNet worth of Lthe Subsidiary Company as on 31.03.2019 has gone nepative by Rs 43,31,21,492¢,
Hence we draw anention regarding complete erosion of the net worth of the Company leading to
doubtfulness of the going concern assumption of the Company, Hawever, these Financial Statements
of the Company have been prepared by the management on going concern basis.

The Subsidiary Company has received an interest income of Rs 10,07,877/- on refund of Income Tax
in respect of AY 2009-10(relevant to FY 2008-09) this year which has nat been taken as income in the
Statement-of Profit & Loss Instead this amount remains deducted from the Advance Income Tax,
under the head Short Term Loan & Advances in the Aszsets side of the Batunce Sheet. Had the above
interast amount been taken as income in the Statement of Profit & Loss, the loss of the Compan}:r' for
the year before tax would have been lower by Rs 10,07,870/-, Consequently, the amount of advance
tax under the head Short Term Loans aad Advances would have also been reduced by this amount




We conchieted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(1[]]
" of the Companies act, 2013, Oor responsitilities ooeler thase Standards.are further desceribed in the Anditor's
Responsibilities. for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordancs with the Code of Ethics issued by JCAL and we have folfllled our
other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with the previsions of the Companies- Act, 2013. We believe that

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Koy Awdit Matiers

Key Audit Magter

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

Loans — Classification and Provisioning

[Refer Note 5.3 to the financisl statements, read with
the Accounting Policy No. 1(i) of Holding Company}

The loans are classified as performing  and
nonperforming advances (NPA) and piovisioning
thereom i3 made in accordance with the Master
Direction - Won-Banking Financial Company — Non-
Systematically  Important  Non-Deposit  taking
Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, The
classification and provisioning is dons by the
Company based on the above Directions. The extent
of provisioning of NPA under the directions are
mainly based on its ageing and recoverability of the
underlined security.

In the event of any improper application of the
directions or considsration of the incomect valoe of
the security, as the valuation of the security involves
high depree of estimation and judgement, the carrying
value of the loans eould be inaterially misstated either
individually ar collectively, and in view of the
significance of the amoont of short term lpans &
advances in the financial statements je. 36.13% of
total assets, the classification of the ipang and
provigsioning thereon has been considered as Key
Audit Matter in oor audit.

Cur Avndit Procedure:

We abtained an understanding of the Company's
software and guidelings and directions of the RBI and
the Company*s internal instructions and pmedurﬂ:’. in
respect of Lhe loans classification and its pmwsmnlng

and adopted the following audit procedures: ;

i
» Evaluation and tesiing of the effectiveness of :ﬂm
key internal control mechanisms with respect tojthe
loans monitoring,  Kentification’  classifi callun
assessment of the loan impairment mcludmg
testing of retevant data quality etc. I

I
* Verification / review of the documentatitng,
operations / performance and monitering of (the
loan acconnts, on test check basis, to ascertain 2wy
overdue, unsatisfactory conduct or weakness in any
loan account, to ensure that its classification and
provisioning is in aceordance with the directions of
RBI, and based on the best estimate of, the

recoverability / valuation of the security.

IE
Oner Results: |
The results of cur audit process were observed tq ba
adequata and satisfactory ‘considering the matar:ahty
of the transactions except ag stated in our Note no 7
under the head ‘Easis of Qualified Qpinien’

Informatien other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and auditors’ report thereon:,

The Helding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
olber information comprises the information included in the Board's Repert including Annexure to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does net include the consolidated financial statements and our h

auditer’s report thereon.

Dur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the conselidated financial statements, our responsibility is.to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information, compare with lhe financial statements of
the subsidiary and upaudited financial statement of the assoeiate fumished by the management to the sxieat i
relates to these entities and In doing s, place reliangg oo he work of the other auditor in case of subsidiary
iy 7 whether the other information is materially




inconsistent with the consolidated financial statcments or our knowledge obtained during the course of our |
aadit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates 1o the subsidiary |

and associale, Is traced from their financial staternents as furnished by the other auditor or management.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Manogement antd Those Charged with Gevernance for the Consolidated Financial !

Staiemenis

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
cansolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companics Act, 2013 that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated Anancial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows of the Group including i3 Associates and Jointly contralled entities in accordance with the accounting
principles generaily accepted In India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act, The respective Board of Dircctors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly
controlled cntities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accerdance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other imepularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparatica and presentation of the financial staternents that give a true and
fair view ond are free from material misstatainent, whether due 1o frsed or error, which have been used for the

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Direckors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the conselidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies incloded
in the Group and of its agsocistes and jointly comirolled entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the pgoing concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic altenative but to
da 50,

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its assoeiates and jointly
controlled entities are responsible for oversesing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
agsociates and jointky controlled entities.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Andit of Consolidated Financial Statemenls

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assorance about whelher the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an avditor’s reperi that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is pot a puarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect & moterial misstatement when it exists, Misstafements
can arise from fraud ar error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with $As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We alsa:

« dentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due te fraud or ervor, design and perforrn audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion. The riskof not defecling
a material migstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error, o5 fravd may

involve collusion, forgery, inlemuional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

cuntrol.




Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are

also raspnnmble for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal f'nan-::tal
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrels.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of ac.cuuntmg
estimates and related discloseres made by management.

Conclude on the appropriatensss of managentent’s use of Lhe going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosores are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ar¢ based on the zudit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and jts
associales (o cease 1o continue as & going concermn.

Evzluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the comsolidated financial slalsmepts,
inclading the dlSCIU’SUl'BS, and whether Lhe consolidzted financial statements represent the underlying-
transnctions and events in a manner that achieves falr presentation.

Crbtzin sulficient appropriate audit evidence reparding the financial information of the entitied' 6
business activities within the Group and its associates and jeintly controlled eatities to ¢xpr¢ss an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supsrvision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors, For the other ¢nlities included in;the
consolidated finapeia) statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the divection, supervl,smn and performance of the audits casried out by Thﬁm,
Wo remain solely responsible for our andit opinion.

Matenality iz the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Ffnancizl sttements i,hat,
individually or in egaregate, and makes it probable that the economic decisions of a rcasunahly
knowledgeable user of the financial statemsnts may be influenced. We considered quantitative
mtateriality and qualitative TFactors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluatmg] ihe

resulting of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the £ nancial
statements. ’

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Helding Company and such other enutms
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent audilors regarding,
atnong other motters, the planne.d scope and timing of the audit and significant zudit ﬁndmgs,
including any significant deficiencies in internal Duntrul that wa jdentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships’ and
olher matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
relaled safeguands,

From the matters communicated wilh those charged with governanee, we determine thase mattery that
were of most significancs in the sudit of the consolidated financial statements of the current pariod.and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe thess matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repost because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be mpmad to uubwmgh the public interest benefits of such
communication. -




OTHER MATTER

aj

b)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance an the work

done and the reports of the other anditors and the {inancial statements { financial Infonnation certified by the
MManagement

Report on vlher Legal and Repulatory Requiremenis

1. Asrequired by Scetinn 143 (3) of lhe Act, we report that :

We did not audit the fnancial statement of the subsidiary, whose financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have beent fumnished to us by the management and the financial
statemenis/financial information of the Asscciate are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated fmancial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures ineluded in respects of subsidiary and Associate, and our report in terms of
sub-section{3) and (1) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates 10 the said subsidiary and
assuciate are based solcly on reports of other auditor in the case of subsidiary and on unaudited
financial statement in the case ¢f associates as fumnished to us.

Dased on the upaudited financial statements of Associate Companies provided to us by the
managerment, the reporting company's share of loss in respect of its Associate for the year ended 31"‘
March, 2019 amounts to Rs.4,355/- which has been recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit

and Loss for this year and the same has been deducted from the Cost of Investment in  associate
Company.

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and |
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statement,

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation af the aforesald
consolidated financinl statements have been kept by the company so far as appears from our
examination of those books.

¢. ‘The Consclidated Balance Sheet and the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss and
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement deall with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of nccount' maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidaied fnancial
statements. S

4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Finsncial Staterents comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 except ns specified under our paragraph on ‘Basis of qualified opinion’

e. Omn the basis of written representations received from the directors of the parent company es on
31% March,2019 taken on record by its Board of Directors and report of the statutory auditors of
the subsidiary company, none of the directors of Parent company and ils subsidiary are
disqualificd as on 31% March, 2019, from being appeinted as a dircctor in terms of Scetion 164}
of the Act. We do not comiment on the qualification of directors of associate in absence of audit
repart of the associate ; ;

f. Witk respect to reporting requirement on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting and operating effectiveness of such contral , we refer to our separate repost in
annexure —A which is based on the reports of Holding & Subsidiary. The financial statements of
the Assgciule conipany are unzudited and hence we do not make any comment on the adequacy of]
internal control over financial reporting of the associate;

=, With respect (o the other matters required to be included in the auditor's report in accordance with
the tequirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and 10 the best of our
information and according to explanations given to us the remuneration paid by the parent to its
director during the year is in accerdance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act

. f 1




h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audifor’s Report in aceordance with Rule
1§ of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Roles, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations giventous 5

i, The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the T
consolidated financial position of the Group (Refer note no.15)

il.  Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or secounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts - Refer Note no 3.3 to the consolidated financial
statements in respect of such items as il relates to the Group.

iii.,  There were no amounts which were required to be rsnsferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies.

_ For BIDASARIA & ASSOCIATES
LY Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 315101E)

14, Princep Street . t
Kolkata — 700 072 .
29% May 2019 gt :
RAJKUMAR BIDASARIA !
artn
MHMO-52251
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Re. - Mi5. SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED(31.03.2¢19)
Annexure A to the Aoditors Heport

Beport on the Internal Finaucial Confrols aader Clause {i) of Sub-scction 3 of Section 143 of ihe
Companies Act, 2013. '
In conjunction with our awdit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2019, ‘We have aodited the internal financial control over financial reporting
of Sudla Apparels Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and the subsidiary company
has been conducted by other anditors whose report have been fumished to us by the management. And no
repart on the audit of inlernal Anancial control over financial reporting of Associate is available.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finaocial Controls.
The respeciive Boards of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidizry company and associate company
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
comtra)s. based on the internal contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components  of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Awdit of Intcroal Financial
Controls over Finaneial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (JCAT. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finanszal controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient condoct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting of the acecounting records, and the timely prepnranﬂn
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Itespo ns:]nht_-,r
Cur responsibility is to express an upmmn o the internal financial controls over fisnancizl reporting of the
Holding, and its subsidiory which are companies incorparated in I[ndia, based on owr awdit conducted in
aecordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Quidance Note™) and the Standards on Aunditing, to the extent applicable to an aodit of intemal nanc:al
controls, both issued by the Inslitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph and Ciher Matter paragraph below, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropoate audit evidence to provide a basls for an audit opinion on internal
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Contirols Over Financial Reporting,

A Company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting s 3 process designed 10 provide reasorable
assuranee regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes thess policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurstely and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company. (2} provide reascmablc assurznce that transactions are recorded gs necessary (0 permit preparation of]
financial stalements in accordance with gemerally acecpted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
direstors of the company and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

nnauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the ¢ompany's asseta that could have a material effect onl the}
lioancial staternents.

Limitations of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting,

Because of the inherent limitations of internal ilnanmal controls over financial reporling including theé

possibility of collusion or improper managcmcm ovsEgs o (:Ontm]s. mnterml misstataments due to BHTOT o




financlal reporting to future pericds are sub_lect 1o the risk that the internal financial control over fi nam:],a]

reperting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with lhe
policies or procedures may deteriorale.

Digclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls over financial reporting with regard to the Holding Company-v;'e:ra
not made available to u3 1o enable us to determing if the Holding Company has established adequate internal

financial control over financial reporting and whether such intermal financial controls were upm‘ahng
effectively as at March 31, 2019,

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining (he nature, timing, end extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the Consclidated financial statements of the Holding Company, and the disclaimer has

affected our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and we have issued a qualified opinion tmf the
financial statements. '

Based on cormesponding reports of the Auvditors of Subsidiary Company, we report that the subsidiary company

have an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial cnntm!s
were. operating effectively.

Other Matters

We do not comment on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
finaneial reporting inscfar ag it relates to asgociate company as no report on this aspect is made available o us.

- : For BIDASARIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accounianis
(FRN: 35I0IE)

L

RAJEKUMATR BIDASARLA
Fanner
MINCL-52251

14, Princep Street
Kolkata — 700 072
29" May 2019
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SLDHA APFARELS LMITED

“SOHSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEET AS AT 3187 MARCH, 20138

[P
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SLUDHA AFPARELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 215T MARGCH, 29

i

Particufars NOTES Year ended Yeaar ended

1.03.201% 032018
RuPe_qs . Rupees

NCOME

Revenua from Operations 1T 1,268,320,154 F36,364, 732
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EXPENDITURE
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SUOHA APPARELS LIMITED

CONSGUDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANHEXED TO THE BALANCE 3HE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 25T MARCH 2042

A Cash Flow fromy Opereting Activitles

et Proft befora tax and axlraordinary itoms
Adjusied for’
Depredaiton .
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

A. BAS!IS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATEDHNANCIAL STATEMENTS

B,

These consalidated financial statements have been prepared to comply with 1he Generally Aceepted

Arcounting Principles in India (Indian GAAPY,inctuding the Accounting Slandards nolifled under the
relevant provisions of the companies ael , 2013,

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consclidated financial statements relata to SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED (“tha company”) and

its subsidiary company and associate, The consolidated financial statements have been prer.mared
oit the followlng basiz.

a)

b)

)

d)

g)

i

Sudha Apparels Limifed

The financial statemenls of the company and its subsidiary company are combingd on a line by
fine basis by adding together the book values of ltke items of assets , liabilities, income and
expenses , afler fully eliminating [nira-group balances and intra-group transactmns in
accordanca with Accounting Standard{AS) 21-"conselidated financial Statement”.

The difference betwean the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net asseis at the
time of acqulsition of shares in the subsldiares is recognized in the financial slatemenla as
Goodwill or Capital Reserva, as the case may be.

The difference between tha proceeds disposal of investmert in subsidiaries and the carrying
amount of its assels less labiliies as of the dale of disposal is recognizad in the consolidated
profit and loss statement being the profit of 1053 on disposal of invesiment in subsidiary.

Mincrity interest's share of het profit of consofiduted subsidiary s identified and adjusted agélnst

the ingome of the group in order 1o arrive at Llhe ret income attibutable to shareholders nf the:
COMPany.

Minority intsrest's share of net assets of consalidated subsidiary is ldenlified and presented in

the consolidaled batance sheet separate from llabillies and the equily of the cmpanys
shareholders.

Investment in Associale companies has been accounted under lhe equily methaod a?.:; per

Accounling standard {As} 23-"Accounling for investment in associales in consolidaled financial
stalements”. I

The company accounts for ils share of post-acquisition changes In net assets of assoclates
afler eliminating unrealized profita and losses resulting from transactions between tha company
and s associaies 10 the extent of ils sham, through its consalidated profit and lgss statement, ta
the extent such change ls aliribulable to 1ha assoclates "profit and loss statement and through il
reserves for the balanca based on avallabla information.

The difference between the cost of investment in the associales and its shara of not asséts at

the time of acquisition of sheres In the associales is Idenlifled in the financial statemenl a%
Goodwill or capital Reserve as the case may be.

As far a3 possible, the consolidated ﬁnanclal stalement are prepared using uniform accc—ﬁntmi
policies for like transactions and ¢lher events in similar circumstances and are presenied in th
same manper as the company's separele financial stalements,




Sudha Apparels Limit@ad

C. Invesiments other than in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted as per hmountmg
Slandard {(AS} 13 on“Acecounting for Invesiment™. . -l-

D. Other significant accounting policies i
These are set out under "significant Accounting policles” as given in the gompany's separata
standalone financial statement. ,

7




SYDHA AFFARE]L 3 LIMETEL

CONSOLIDATED HOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING FART OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR
THE YEAR EMDED 31 ST MARGCH, 2019

NUTES -2 : SHARE CAFITAL

ATAY As At
032019 nokazma
‘Rupess Rupeas
authoriced
1000000 .Equity shares of Rs. 10 oach 19,000,000 10,000,000

10,500,000 10,000,006

Isyugd, Subscribed ard Pajg{. up

L
727,012 Eguity Bhares of Re.10 2ach fudty pakd up 7.279,120 T.270,120
FAT0, 120 7 270,120
a) O tha sbova Shames 527,012 Equily Sharas wara alloted as ully pald up
prursuant to scharme of amelgamation without peymenl belrg recaived m cash
b) Beconcillallen of Shares Outstanding gt the beginnglng and end of the year
SHARE CAFITAL
Eguky Sharos of Rg. 10 sack fully pald up
Partculars As at 11.03.2018 —Ag gt 31.03. 2018
Hoa, Hupeas Mog, Rupaat
AY the Lagarmang of Year I FIEGF -~ _Er0 120 T27 Q11 7,270 420
Addd - Addilion during e Vear - ha - - .
Less - Reductian durlng the Year - . . - 1
At tha and of the Year 77012 7.27d, 120 721,012 720120

£y Equity shares heiders have Mght 1o recelve dividerd proposed by the Boacd of Diractors, sublect to approval of
sharmhaiders at the General Meeting,

d} Equity shareholders have no fght 1 repayment of capltal mxcant, distrivalion of surplus assals an llguldaton.

2] List of parsens holding merm han 5% equity shares of Hs 104 each of the company:

Narna of Share-Hophlers A% ot 31032019 A5 et 31032018
Mos . ) ! Hys S
T, Jindal Global Finance & INvesunent Lid 07, 318 14,77 107,416 77
2, Flakl Deglcom Lid 35,781 4,92 35,781 4.92
3, Pushpranal Inveairade Pyt Lid, : 70.000 263 Fia, 00 263
4 Dharam Pal Jindal £9,900 2.61 53,500 961 -
5 Savila Jindal 108 662 14.67 108,562 1467 |
f. Sakel Jndal 70,000 SAS | - To000 963
¥, Raghaw Jirmdal 14E,133 18,96 145,123 15,98

KL
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Hotes forming part of the Consofidated Financlat Statamsnts
NOTES - } : RESERVE & SURPLUS
Partlculars

Sequritias Fremlum

Espits] Reserve
Asg per [agl Balance Sheet
Qn Accound of Consalidation

Other Roservos

a} General Reseryo

Ag per last Balance Shegl
Add : Addilign during the yaar

b} Staivtory Resorve
Ag purlasl Balanca Shast
Add = Additlon during 1he year
Surpivg In Stafoment of Profil & Logss Afg
As per lagl Halence sheet
a. Lgzg} dori
Less - Trensfed 19 Jablory Reserve
Lexa - Transfer to Ganaral Reserya
Current Year Surplus f (Defich)
Claging Surpfusl{Dalicil)

Total

L

Ag AL A At
31.02.2019 31.03.2018
Rupaes Rupapg

51,561,498 51,581,498
H.8e6.435 21.&-66.13_»5
B2, 748,507 B2, 748,547
83,748,537 B2 T4R 587
505,381,024 534,078,300
§421,600 73,502,820
E13,B0LG1E 805.381.030
2,010,654,257 1,53?.?12.3‘.;-‘5
(244,758,599} 418,441,407
8,431,600 72502820
250,780, 188) 2035581
(250,190,159 $4Z,535.50

4,780,451,058

2010651 267

Z 530457014

2I73.226,513




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITEDR

HOTES - 4: HON - CURRENT LIABILITIES

4.1 Cthar Long Torm Llakilitles
Cithars Security Depasil

4.3 Long-Term Provisiona
For Employees Berefita

I;'JDTES -£: CURRENT LIABILITIES

%4 Shoct -Temn Berrowings { Unsecured |
Loans Repayvatle on Demandg

Loans & Advanoes from Releted Parlles
Loan krom Halding Compary
Advancs frarm Hobding Company

5.2 Other Cyirent Liabllities

Liablities lr Expanaas
Llabditles for Statulory Dues
L kabililen for Oihar Finance

5.3 Short Teom Provislons

534 ConBingent Provislon lor Slarsfared Assals
Cpenilnp Batance
Addilbor during thea ygar

57,202,553 57,802 563
1,565,085 1 488,673
T9.371,645 58295178
1,691,300,055 1.632,378,374

4,501,308,008

162,378,374

The phgvs provision is meda @ 0. 26% of Slandard Assats on the repering date as per REL

guidafines applicabls o NBFC,

5.4 Provision for Dnlnuten in vaie of Invesimeant
Opaning Batance
Addilion during the yoar

5.3 Prawision for Hon Perfarming Azeels
Crening Balanca
Additon § (Adjusted) during tha year

Tolal Current Liabimtia s

a0

1,235,198 3,200,093
7,686,017 §.703,128
3,961,759 4 708 508

4,913,871 14.711.278
2,662,085 2,920,047
1,281,334 {258,862
3,943,416 2 682 DBS

B0,462,387 576 045,839

410,237,830 495 587 44
490,700,227 00,462,357
. B.I2508
107,108,870 (8,333 599]
107,109,870 } -
04,753,313 53,124,463
TTIANT 5402 1.730.214,122
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SURMHA AFFARELS LRMTED

Mulas forming part of the Consolldatzd Financlat Statemy

i
A3 AL 31.03.2019 As At 31.03.2HE !

mﬁg{_ﬂgﬂ;jﬂﬁ%@w Humbsrs "Hiipess Numbers T T Rupees |
(Fully pasd up urlasy alhe apecifind] :
NON - TRADE i
Ip Agsaria rprlse i i
Cosl of Acquigition of 1195000 eqully Shares of RS, il-each :
ol Hushagra infrastruclurs P+, Limited 38 055,450 36,059,450
Add f { Loxs) : Group sharg of Profit or f { Loss) 1,126,956} 1,324 803
34,8304 HEM A
i} Oueied
E Sha
Rs. 3 each of Jindal Driling & Indusiries Umited T2T2350  1,143.401,085 F2T9.350  1,143,401,005.
Rs. 5 pach of Maharashtra Seamless Linbed 453,000 432,058,443 305,000 120,553,359:
Ra, 10 #ach of Haryana Gapfin Limnited 1,116,059 43,508,216 1.016.053 42,6065, 316°
R3. 10 each of Farvnath Developers Limited 1,000 aB827 1,000 48,027
R, 10 sach af Videgeon indusitias Limiies 100 17441 L] 17.431
s, 10 pach of GOL Offshore Limied 1,600 g22,765 1,500 822,785
H3. 1 each of Uttamt Yala Stest Limiled 25,70 IR 280,720 a8
R, 1 mach of Lhyod St lndustrias Limited 40,781 866,515 af.741 654 575
Rx, & mach of Aban Cifshore Limiled 100 41,213 100 47 283
Rs. 10 each of Hindustan O Explocation Co. Limibed 2,000 47a,Te8 2,000 470, THE
Fs. 10 each ol Selan Exploratkon Tecnology Limhed 1,100 435,458 1,100 435,450
Rs. 1 each of Jindal Steal & Powsr Limied 18,484 0,572,249 18,466 9873800
Rs. 10 exch aof 3VOGL OF Qe And Energy Limited 1,5a0 0,718 1.500 GO4,TRE
Rs. 10 each of Haxa Tradex Limitad . Z,600 95,165 2600 “'}Sﬁ
Fea. 10 gach of IDBL Bank Limitad 3,000 358,005 3,000 358
Ri, 1 mach of NMDG Limited 5,004 147784 5,000 1 ITTEAY
R, 5 gach of ISMT Limied L1} 454 10 484
Rs. 1 each of JSW Sleel Limitad 10 1,14 19 1,11
1y Un-Qugied
al  Eguily Shares )
Rs. 10 each of Dylop Commeodeal LEmited 55,700 851,240 85,700 BE1,240
Rs. 10 sach of Jindal Globel Flnehcs & lresstmant Limid 740,108 2,148,505 700,100 2.746.505
R 10 each of Jindal Plpes Limied 5,201,740 44 447,905 3.301, 740 44 447 803
Ra, 10 sach of Sparet: Deakomm Limled B4, Ol fi2,000 B1.O00 512_333
Re. 40 gach of Whilepin Tie -Up Limited 80000 . 805,000 80,000 BOsg)
R3. 10 asch of Jindal Pa-x Tubes Pl Limited 200,008 2,000,000 20000 i'%n
Ra. 10 aach of Jindal Exprodol Limited - " - $2.000 1 00
R3. 10 enach of Nepluna Builtech Py, Limikend 3,510 95,405 L8190 B8 405
3, 10 each of Sigrma Infrastructuoe Pyt Limited 9,800 59,418 9,800 96,415
Rx. 10 2ach of Jaguar Intamational Limkted 195,000 1,764,000 158,000 1,251,600
Rs. 10 pach of Darpan Degboom Limiled 189 500 1,985,718 168 500 1,985,715
Fa. 10 gach of Dlamond Cealirade Limited 2,105,000 81,040,120 5,105,003 21,040,120
Ra, 40 each of JCO Gas Fipe Limiled - - B50,00G 5,600,460
b} Prefersnce Sharey :
Rs. 10 aach of Glabal Anded Flrdnves] [mited - - 2500007 265,000,000
Rs. 10 sach of Jdindal Global Financa & Ivastmeanl Limid - - 200,000 10,000,000
R4, 10 each ol Darpan Deakom Limited 7,205,000 75,050,000 - 7.505 000 ?i,ﬂﬁﬂ.FD!J
<) Pondx . Dl
Bank of India 3R-1 Perpeiual . - - ) 50,950,000
Punjab & Sing Bank Farpelual 150 161,140,000 150 131,140,000
P Powsr Corpn 1d, 200 201, 10,800 - g
Yeg Bank Ud. 156 152,605,000 . -
2,380,428 755 i.ﬁﬁ.ﬁiﬂﬂ
Aggregele Yake of Ungueled [nwastments 136,148,209 181,238,304
Aggregale Vaka of Ducled lnvesiments -~ 1,534,501,379 1,230,270 2840
Marke] Wiplu o Guiodad Irveslmenls 1,233,085 4840

Motes :

All svegionanl In shares of Pr}_'.ral'u Lirited Companies are subfect to resticllons on lranafer of sharea 35 contained In the
Articles of Assciation of reepetivie comprany, B
* Invastment writhers aff dus lo stika oIl By MCA _ : g
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SUGCHA APPARELS LIMITED

Hotes forming part of tha Financlal Salamanta

As At BaAt
b3 2ma F1.03.2018
R:upns Rupees
~-5:LON L
Uinsecured, Considered good)
Copitel Advances €4,982, 58T fapa28r
Secwity Deposll 1,283,262 E88.920
_ §5,265 647 BB,651,307
HOTES -9 ; CURRERT ASSETS
INVENTORIES :
Stock [n Trade - Muluzi Fund Unity 259,602,238 = .
159 602 088 - i
IRADE RECEWARLES
{Ungecorend, Conakleed god)
Culslanding for 3 pered exceeding sk moriths - .
Uther Recelvabla ' 51,565,618 47,229,843
_ ) 51,985,615 A7 2 B4
CASH AND CASH ECUNALENTS - g
Cash on hand . 44,225 127,372
Balancos with Banks L
-In Currert Accounts 4,512,140 4,510;353
- In Fhoed Daposits - 1,130,000.00
4,918,465 1 .134.53!.GE3|
I
HORT T : GES P
Loang & Advancas Lo Relaated Parias :
To Subsidiary Compandes
Loans - -,
Adyances - P
To assoclales Companiey - Liana 1108970 7.108.870
! $
Loans 1o Olhwrs 1,144,525,827 421.135,087
Oiker Short-Term Advancas 8,134,415 501,658
Advance Income Tex 32,587,717 3213400
{H4at of Provislon Ra 375,282 161/, Previous Yedr Rs. 302,283, 1515) e
1,162,057 850 BA0, 059,926
OTHER CYRRENT ASSETS ~ ;
Prepaid Expansas 18,2682 78437
Inlarasl Feoahvable 12,5419 10048, 8485
ZZAZDATS 15,092,322
Totad Current Azsats 1528 583,343 1,881,520, 120

In the oplrion of Board and to (ha besh of thel knowladge and ballal , 1he value on reslsation of abxove cument assets,
except deutibtid loan of Re,2,108 870 & iIndicated above would , In ordinany cowes of businass Do nol 1658 dhan e

armcand al which they ara slatad,

R3




. YULHA AFFARELD LIND I EL

Notes Farrdng part of the Financlal Slalements

=10 INGOM

11 ENLIE F PERATIOMNS
Sale of KMubual Fund Urnila
Cividend - on Mon owrent trvasimant
Interesl (TS As. 3,264, 5A0-, Pravious vear Rs, 7,032,414}

bnlereat ¢ Bondy

Prafit on sala of Shares - Mt

Talal Fevarnm from opedallgna

10.2 DTHER OPERATING INGOME

Fend [TDS Py, 43.804 8347, Previous Year R2.13,557,07608)
Profl from Agricufure acthity (R

Agriculiural Renl

UsbiMiey Yrittan OF
" Othar Income

Prof an Asqulsiion of Land

- Profil o Transdar of rights mtand property - Met
Total plhar Incoma

Tel2l Income
MOTE - 41 : EXPEMNSES

11.1 Eyrghazes of Slock in Irade
Ibam - Mulwal Fusd Urdts

$1.2 Degcreaseliinerozga) In Stock in Traty
ltgm - MhAuad Fund LUnis
Cpening Steck

Loai « Cloting Sloek
Dacreasal(increaza) In Slock kn Trade

11.3 EMPLOYEES' BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaras 3 Other AHowances

SlaM velftare Expenses

1.4 | ST & 05T

Interesl orr Unsacuned Shon Term Loan
Bank Chamges

11.5 QTHER EXPENSES

0P, Chargae
Reanl
Rates & Toxen
Postage & Telephone
Frinting & Stationey
Fea & Subscriplion
Traveling & Corveryanca
Repsir CMcn Butdings
Fepak & Malnlenonce- Othara
Lagal & Frofestional Charges
- brivesiment Willlen O

braerancs

CER Exparaos

Infermal Audt Fee
Advenisamer & PubRcity

- Auddorst Ramuneratbe @

- Audil Fea

= Tax Audit Fes

= Certificalion f glers SEMACES
Miacalansous Expensas
Talal

‘l’a:ar ented

Yaar epded
31.05.2018 3.03:2mM8
Rupeesa Hup_e_ﬁs
1,550, 482,149 507,356,621
17,703,454 7.322.938
S4,7H,287 121,485,173
43,761,184 -
15,042,000 -
1,263,320,154 B, 34 732
138,0E4,860 135,828,330
. 10,264, 815
350,000 .
5428 -
3,247 410 -
- 4117
. 1ar dET T4 147,215,262
1414, 7R7.858 783 5T 954
1,312,349,173 361.000.000
- 137, 500, D0
250,802,488 _ -
{262 Q02 §RE| 137 500, D00
4,019,281 4,336,069
114,300 170 384
4,154,081 4,508 433
180007 ar.arv. 160
1,505 182 B0
81 508,532 87,236,100
34,626 11,850
95,918 198,407
3267069 181,748
129,246 82502
AT49 13,473
31,800 42 690
74,473 31854
1,954,218 1379875
74,750 -
1597360 537 9490
TH0,000 -
170,076 153,393
1,000,000 A 000,000
9280 11,800
38,924 255887
18,000 118,000
. T.080
23,600 11,800
137,028 30,833
10,033,040 4,593 935

et
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Hotes formlng pant of the Financlal Statemonts

HNOTE : 13 - Ear har
Mt Proft {Loss) aftor Tax

Tokal Humber af Equily Shares
Zaming Fer Equity - Share Basic & Dilvled
HOTE : 13- REFERRED TAX AGSETSAL LABILITIES)

For Depracatian of Fixed Assals

For Expersas Allvwabbo on Payment

Far Unabsored Caplial Losses

Total Deferred Tax Assaltliablity) on Balancs Sheet Dale
Lezs Opening Balanca

Deferrad Tax InccmelExpense) for ihe year

tn vlew of uncerainily of realisstion ; 1ha above Dofered Tax Asselsinoome

Financial Statesnard s, .

HOTE: 44 - RELATED PARTY CAGCLLISURE
a} M nageclal Pars
- Wi MR Garg - WWheoletime Director

M. Anup Kymar Mt < SFO

Mr. Rafesh Gupla - Company Secretary

(b} Entarpfise where control exlats
Subs[dEary
Cashpark Vineam Limited {£5.58%)

Othor Ralated Parllas w m Tra hawg taken place durkn

Azapciate Company .
Kushagra Infrastroctine Pyt Limited

Ouher Ralated CongnrodParty
Sml. Savild Endal (Director)

Trapsagacilens with Belatad Parky during the year

Loan tp Subsldiary Company [clesing balance]
Oter Advance to Subsidiary Company

Loan to Assoclatea Company [closing balaneel

Payment to Othor Rolated Party(Zavita Jindal}
a. Fent Paid R
b, Bther Services

Managerial Remuperation - #e, W.R. Garg - ¥ihobeling Direckor

Balance Payable by tha Company Lo Ralated Parly
Relaled Pary | Smt. Savila Jindal}

Intarezl ingoma from Subs|diary, Assoglata B Other related party
{ tlo bnterest s peavided on oan (e Associatad Congany iof belng NPA)

-1 HTL HT LIABILTTE HNTE

tncoma Tax Deman

ALY, 20082010 F.Y, 2008-2000

AY. 2013-2014 F.¥. 2012-2013
Subgidiary ALY, 201212, FY, 201112

152 |0 respect of Bank Suaraniee [szued by bndusind

Bank Limited i ol Hew Towmn Eleciric Supphy
Company Limlied

25

Yaar andad Year anded
M.131.2019 31032018
Rupees Rupeas
[241. 768,548 418,441,407
127,012 T2r 612
[332.55) sFa.e
42,815,133 36,308 528
503,090 484,275
22,435,205 24 559,034
€5,7E3,432 81,442 240
g1.452,240 §2.603 553
4.311,192 B T48 ZHT
has nol been recogrised in the
h
70,990,164 377 847 32T
1040, 0, G Oy 104,800,000
7,409,870 TAMAET]
87,500 &7 200
57, 60D 99,807
4,281,600 1,287,597
51 263 26 6575,919
453 410 453,410
180,280 380,200
415,600 418800
1 250,450 1 350 400
13,684,150 13,584,350




TS AMHRNER D LM

Notes lerming part of the Financlal Statements

153 SERVIC LIAE

The Company has not provided for its Service Tax llability on *Renling of Immavabla Property” 1o soma tenanls for the paried from Octe
2010 lo Seplembar, 2091 amounting to Rs. 78,35,432/ whizh has been disputed by fhese tenants through thelr associalion balere Hénb
Suprerma Court, of which 50% of the arnear dues smounting te Rs. 36,17,7 16/~ has been direcily deposiled by thesa lenants with he Servise
Tax Authority under the-direction from the-Apex Eovt and for the balance 50% of Servicé Tax dues, the fnat adiudication of Ihe Apex C
is awaited, Tha Company, however, hokds writen cumn‘ul.rnent from such lenants for reimbursement of gl labililies afsing due.tg nun-
paymenl of Service Tux by the Company.

1% E .
Capilal Advances of Rs.54,982,357/- {Pravious Year Rs. 64,982,387 urder Nota ro. - @ represent advances made 1o varkous parfies
{tooattAgricultariist for purchases of varfous plots 6f land 2l different Incaliona In the stats of Maharashira on behal of the Company fo
inveatmant purpoaa. Althdugh ihe company holds erigingf fitle deeds it respect of a1l such 1and purchased by these parties & laken
possession of the land propertles, e final coteyance Infavaur of company is pending dua to rastrctlons imposed ty the koca! aufhord
Suiabls appropration of such capital advances woukd ba mada upen execution of conveyance deeds/satlament of accounts with uI th

parlies ppon diggosal of the same,

- 17 SEGME |

The Campany has idantifed two reportable pdmary Business Segrmant on ha basis of sk & retum kwotmed, which are lh'inndng &

Invastment and Ranllng of Property. _
"Sagment Ravenus, Resulls & other Informalion

3

- Fihanca & Rentng of :
Paiculacs Invesimenl Property " Qlhwrs Todal
Incomn from operationa 1,266,320,164 - 2,602,844 1,,2?‘.":’,922 38

(663.040, 842 £ [ Iﬁﬁﬁ.mﬁii}
Other operaling Income - 118,884,860 - 1358640060
: i {136,826 330} (10,388,932)| (147, 151282)
Segrnant Results 1,208,220, 154 134,584,560 5.802,844 | 1,448,787 {854
(6630406871 (138,828.330) {10.388.537 {10 255[304)
Finance cost 91,608,532 . . ::EE'M Bs2
{112,215,810) f=) 3 113 815|510}
Cithar pxpandiure 1,127,775,626 24,209,459 . 1152072034
(680,848,312} {2 545 854} f-} {703 2621906)
Profit  (Loks) balare Tax 43,035,998 114,558,402 9,602,844 1732071242
{1131,5211800  (114,179,635) {10,368.932; (5,952,613
Segment Assols 4,029,693,713 727,600,352 . 4,757 2541411
. (3,818,530,008)] (748,706 282) £h] (9588245208
- [Sogment Uabliy '7,309,644,567 57,502,563 - 2,367,347130
(1,731,706, 745) 57,802,563} {3 ] {1,748 500
Caplial employed 1,720,149,151 69,797,830 . 2,388,945631
Zoesesazri)l (691,903,719 {-}

PRECRAE L

i
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SUUHA AFPARKELS LIMHIELD

% MNotos forming part of tha Financial Statements
) :NCJTE .18 RESERVE BANK OF INDLA REGISTERED NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY
2
_Tke company is registerd wilh Reserve Bark of India as Non Banking Finance Company Yide Registralion
Ng - 0.5.02275 did 18.05.1598 and has been complying with prudential Norms prescribed by RBI

Additional particulars as required in terms cf paragraph 13 ¢f Mon Syslemically Impodant Mon-Banking Financial (Mon-Oercosit
Accepling or Holding Companies) Prudential Morms {Reserve bank) Directions, 20135 sepretaly attched a5 Annexure - 1

HOTE - 19
Previous yrears figuras have been regrouped / rearranged where @ver nacassary,

The Accompanying Notes form an integral pan of the Financial Statements.
&5 per our repont of even dale altached
For BIDASARIA & ASSOCIATES ) For & on Behalf of the Board

Chartered Accauntan!s
Firm Registralion Mo, 318101E

M Gt WQQ?/ Gt et
Fra) Kurnar Bidasaria Arup Kumar Mitra C MR.GErg Savita Jindal
Paringr CFD Director Diredior
Membershio No, 052251 ' PAN-ADHFRZE61A b - Q0445709 CHI - Q0949740

Placg © Kolkatz .
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NOTICE

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CIN: L17200WB18B1PLCO33331
Registered Office: 2/5 Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar, ;
Flat No.8A, 8" Floor, Kolkata-700 020, Phone: 033-30522053 !
Wabsite: http:iiwww. sudhaapparals.com Email; secretarial@sudhaapparels.com i
|
|
|

Mulice is hereby given thal 35" annual Generat Meeting of Sudha Apparels Limiled will ba held on|
Fliday, the 27" Seplember, 2019 at 11.30 AM. at the Registered Office of the Company at 2/5)
Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar, Flal No.BA, 8" Fioor, Kolkata-700 020, to transact the following|
buziness:- .

: |

ORDINARY BUSINESS ‘

1

To consider and adopt the (2} Audited Financial Statements for Ihe financial year ended
317 paarch. P09 together with the Reports of Directers and Audilors Lhereon and (b} thes
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 20183 logetharj
with the Report of Auditors thereon gnd in this regard to pass the following resolution as

ardinary reselution{s}: |

{a) "RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the f'tnam:iar
year ended 31 March, 2019 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors therecn

be and are hereby considered and adopled

by "RESOLVED THAT the Audited Conselidated Financial Statements of the Company far
the financial year ended 31* sarch, 2019 1ogether with the Repods of Auditors there
be and are hereby considered and adopted.” :

To appand a Directar in place of My, Mangat Ram Garg, who ratires by rotation and being
eligible, cffers himself for re-appointment and in this regard to pass the following resulutioP
a5 an ordinary resoluticn: -

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Mangat Ram Garg (OIN 004438709) who retires by rotalion an?d
being eligible, offers himself for re-appoiniment be and is hereby re-appeinted as Director of
the Company.” . ‘

SPECIAL BUSINESS

|
3. Yo consider, and if thought fit, the foilewing resolulion 28 an grdinary resolution. |

"RESOLVED THAT Shri Sunid Gautam (DIN DB125576), who was appointed as Additional
Directar of the Company pursuant 1o Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and holgs
office uplo the date of this Annual General Mesating and in respect of whom the Cﬂmpaﬁy
has received notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, from a member,
proposing his candidature be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company,”

To consider. and if thought [it, the following resolution a3 an ordinary resclution. o
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 186, 197 read with SchedulJ W
and a other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Acl, 2013 or any stalutﬂ'zr}r
modifications{s) or re-enaciment thereof, approval of the members of the Company be and 18
hereby accorded 1o \he appoirtment and payment of remuneration to Shri Sunil Gaulam
(DiN 0B125576) as Whole time Director of the Comgany for a peviod of 3 (Three yealrsj »Fth

gf



effect from 1% June. 2019 on the terms and conditions set out herein with libarty to the Board
of Direstors to alter and vary the terms and conditions andfar remuneration, subject to the
same not exceeding the mits specified in schadule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any |
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force or as may hereafter !
be made by the Central Government in that behalf from fime ta time, or any amendmends |
‘hereto as may be agreed to between the Board and Shri Sunil Gautam. b

SAHLARY

Rs. 30837(- per month in the grade of Re. 30, 827-60.000 per month. ;
-
PERCUISITES i
L The Whole Time Director shali be entitled to perquisites & benefits like furnishedfmon-
turnished accommodation or house rent allowance in lizu thereof, leave lravel concaessioh for|
self & family, medical and personal accident insurance, gducaiion allowance, otherl
allowances, bonus/ex-gratia ete. as per rules of the Company. The valug of perguisites shalk
ke evaluated &s per income Tax Ruies wherever applicable. i
Il The Whole Time Director shall be enliled to Gratuity, encashment of earned leave at th ;
end of the tenure, as per the rules of the Company, and these shall not be included in thj
commpulation of perquisites, o
MINIMLIM REMUNERATION L
in lne event of 1085 or Inadequacy of profits, the remuneration including the perquisides a

menticgned above shall be paid in. accordance with Schedule v and other applicable
provisions of the Companias Act, 2013 as amended from time to time.

OTHER TERME
1 The Whole Time Director shall not be paid any sithing fees for attending the meeting(s) of
1ne Board of Directors or Commilises therecf,

I'. The Whole Time Diector shall b2 entitied to reimbursement of travelling and all, other
expenses incurred in the course of the Company's busness. ' ;
IIl. The appeintmeni may be terminated by the Company or by the Whole Time Director t}y
giving not less than three monlh's prior notice. :

i
To cansider, and if thaught fit, the foliowing resciution as an ordinary resalution: i
"RESOLVED THAT pursuani to the provisions of section 148,152 and olher applicabie
provisions . if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Acl) and the Rules framed thereunder, read
wilh Schedule IV 1o ihe Act, as may be amended from time o time, Ms. Roma Kumar (D
02134012} be and is hereby appointed as Independent Director of the Campany 1o hgld
office for a term of five consecutive years commencing from 8" August, 2019." I i
To consider and if thaught fit, fo pass the following reselution as a special resolution: :

]
"RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with Section 83 and other applicable provisions of Lhe
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Share Cagital & Debentures)
Hules, 2014, the relevanl provisions of the Memeorandum and Articles of Association of the
Cempany and the recommeandation of the Board of Direclors (hereinafter referred to as "The
Board, which ezpression shall be deemed to include a commitiee of directors Juiz.r
auvthorsed in this bena'f} of the Company and subject to the regulations and guidelifes
iszued by the Securities and Exchange Board of ndia (SEBI), including the Securities gnd
Exchange Board of India fssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015
and applicable Regulatory Authorities, and such permissions, sanctions and approuaiqf as
may be required in this regard, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded tojthe
Board for capitalization of such sum standing to the credit of securities premium;‘!ree
reserves ol the Company, as may be considered necessary by the Board, for the purpose of
issuance of bonus shares of Re 104 (Rupee ten only) each, cradited as fully paid-up shares

1
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10.

1o the Public/Non-prometers equity sharehoiders of the Company, whose names appear in |
the Regisler of Members maintzined by the Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents / List .

of Beneficial Owners, as received from the Mational Securities Depuository Limited {NSDL}
and Central Depesitory Services (India) Limited {COSL). on such date {record dale’) as may

be fixed in this regard by the Board, in the proportion of 2 {Two} equity shara for every 5

(Five) existing equity share held by such Members. |

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, ihe Bonus Shares so allotted shall rank pari-passu in all

respecis with the fully paid-up equity shares of the Company as existing on the record date'

{as determined by the Board) and shall always be subject to the terms and conditions
contained in \he Memorandum and Articles of Assaciation of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all other steps |

as may be necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution and determine alt other terms
and conditions of the issue of bonus shares as the Board may in its absolule discration
deem it " !

To consider and if thought fil, 1o pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution: :

“RESCLVED THAT pursuant to Regulalion 23 of SEB! (Listing Obligations and isclosuref
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and igl
hereby accorded to the Board of Diraclors of the Company for related party transactién(s)
with Pushpaniali Investrade Private Ltd. for providing Lean, as detailed in the Explanatory
Statement to the Notice.” :

To consider and if thaught fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution;

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosur
Requiraments) Regulations, 2015, consent of 1he members of the Company, be and |
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related party transaction(;
wilh Gautam Fin-lnyest PBrivate Lid. for providing Loan, as detailed in the Explanale
Statement to the Motice.” ' If

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the foliowing resolution as an ordinary resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disciosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consenl of the members of the Company, e and
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related party transactian(s
with Sigma Infrastructure Private Ltd. for providing Loan, as detailed in the Explanatojy
Statement to the MNptice.”

|

To consider and if thought fit, 1o pass ihe following reselution as an ordinary resolution;

LT

i}

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulaton 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and |is
hereby accorded to Lne Board of Directors of the Company for reiated party transadhianfs)
with Crighpark Vincom Ltd. for providing Loan, as detailed in Ine Explanatary Statementito
the Nolice.” . ;

!
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17, To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a special resolution;
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant o the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions,
if any. of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder {including any amendment
thereto ar re-enactment thereof), the existing Clause Il (B} and Clause |l {2 of lhe
Memarandum of Asscciation be and are hereby amended as follows:

By substiuting the heading of Clause |1l (B} "Objects Incidental or Ancillary to the attainment
of the Main Objects are" with the heading. "Matters which are necessary for furtherance of
objects specified in Clause NI(A) arg;-"

By substituting the existing Clause 1l (B) 5. with the following new clause HI{B)5.:
T amalgamale with any other cornpany having objects altogether or in part similar to those
of this Company subject to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

By substituting the existing Clause Il (B} 12 a} with the following new clause HI{BY12 a}.:

To borrow ar take loans from individuals, firm, companies, corporations, financing houses,
government and semi government institutions and to secure repaymert thereof in such
manner as may be thought fit subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

By deletng the Clause ill (C) THE OTHER OBJECTS FOR WHICH THE COMPANY IS
ESTARLISHED ARE:-

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
autherised to take all requisite, incidental, consequential and necessary steps to implement the
above said resclution and to do all such acts, deeds, matter and things that may be necassary,
expedient ar incidental to give effect 1o this reseclution.”

12 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a special resolution:
"RESCLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (including any amendment
thereto or re-enactment thereaf), the existing Clause IV of the Memorandum of Association be
and 15 hereby substituted with the following new clause IV

"The liability of the Members is limited and this fiability is limited te the amount unpaid, if any, on
the shares held by them ™

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
duthorised to take all requisile. incidental, consequential and necessary steps lo implement the
above said resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, malter and things that may be necessary,
expedient orincidental to give effect to this resolution. "

13. To consider andf thought fit, pass the following resolution as a special resclution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable pravisions, if
any. of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder {including any amendment
thureto or re-enactment thereof), the approval of members of the company be and is hereby
accorded to the adoption of the new set of Articles of Association, a copy of which is available
for inspection at the registered office of the Company and also avaiiable on the website of the
Company http /www. sudhaapparels.com in substitution and exclusion of the existing Artigles
of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
duthurised to take all requisite, incidental, consequential and necessary steps to implement the
above said resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, matter and things thal may be necessary,
cxpedient orincidental to give effect to this resclution.”

By Order pf the Board

“ o
Flace (Gurgagn RAJESH GUPTA
Dated. 8" August, 2019 Company Secretary



NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TGO ATTEND AND WOTE AT THE MEETING (S ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND YOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY MEED !
NOT BE A MENMBER OF THE COMPANY, i
Form of Proxy is sgparately annexed. The insirument of Praxy, in order to be effeclive must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commeancement of the meeling, Proxies submitted an behalf of companiesfhodies corpofate
must be supported by an appropriate resolutionf/authority as applicable. |
A persan can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate :
not more than ten percenl ¢l the total share capital of Ihe Company carrying voling rights.
formember holding more than ten percent of the total share capilal cammying voting rights may
appoint 2 single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person
and shareholder.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sechon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
special business is annexed hereto.

Members/Proxies attending the meeting are requested to bring their.copy of the Annual Report
for reference at the meeting and also lhe Altendance Slip duly filied in for attending the
rnesling. ! ;
Members desirous of getting any information in respect of Accounls of lhe Company are|
requested to send their gueries in writing to the Company at its Registergd Office so as to reac

at least 7 days before the date of the meeting so that the required information can be mad
available at the meeting.

I
5 Details under Regulation 35 of SEB! (Listing Obligalions and Disclosure Reguirements

regutations, 2015, of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual Genera

Meeting forms integral part of the Nolice, The Oireclors have furnished the El'eqL:IISItE
declarations for their appaintment.

retire by rotation

Shri Bunil Gautam
s proposed 1o be

MName of the Director Shri Mangal Ram | Shii Sunil Gautam | Ms. Roma Kumar
Gar 1
iAge 182 *rgears 56 Years 55 Years
_CQualiicalion B.oom, CA B.com Fh.D ;
Brief Profile Expertise in specific Wide experignce n | Wide experience in | Wide experience afa
furctional area the field of Finance | the field of Finance | Psychologist and
o and ACCOURs & Accounts Lo Congultant | |
* Tarms and conditions of Re- In lerms of Section | Az per resclution | As per rasolution
. appointment 15281 of thelno. 4 of the notice | no. 5 of the notice
' Companies  Act, | read wilh | read with Expla-
2013 5hri Shokant | Explanatory natory Statement
Ladia is liakle lo | Staterment thersts | thersto Ms.

Qms
Kurnar is proposed
1 b appaintsd as

Broand

Dmectors

(201819}

Ga.

appainted as Independentl
- Whale-time Director | Birecler | 1 |
Remuneration last drawn {including | For remuneration | NLA MNA.
sitting fees, if any detgils, please :
refer Carporate
Govarnancs :
e Repon I U SN '
[xate of first appoiniraent on the 01.07.2014 01 05,2010 08.08.20149
Shareholding in the Company a5 on | Nil Mt Mt
March 31, 2019 e ] —_—
Inter-se relationship with other Mane MNane HNone
No of meetings of the Board Pleaze reter MN.A M.A [
gtlended during the financial year Corporale
1 Govermance
e - Repart e ———— —
Oircctorshin of other Companies as | 1, Marine it & 1. Liberly General 1. Rocke Talk Inffia |




on 31 Maren, 3016 TGP T [ imosncs Lie. T BATE T

2. Cdd & Even i 2. Jango Banana
Trades & Finance i India Pyt Lid.
Lid. i 3 Maharashira
3 Crizshpark Seamiess Lid
Winzom L. :
4. Neptune |
e BuideshPytttd | -
Charmant Mernter af Comeeittes af | Nil i M Chairperson; -_—t
aller Companas ; Slakeholders

Helatienship
Carmmtttze of
Maharashira- |
Seamless . i

Lirmited i

Remuneralican
CER Commillze
! of Maharashitra

MNarmination & |

i
i
|
I
\ Member:
[
1

; Seamless Lid,

|
:
In case of joint holders attending the meeling, only such joint holder who iz higher in order Dl
names recorded in the Register of Members will be antitled ko vote. ;
Relevant documents referred to in lhe accompanying nolice are open by the members fo
mnspection at the Renistered Office of the Company babween 10.00 AL, and 1.00 P, an an
working day upto e date of the Annual General Meeting and also af the meeling. i
Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies ACt 2013 and rules made lhereunder, Lk
companies are allowed {0 send communication to shareholders electronically, Members who
have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail adidres
for receiving all communication jncluding Annual Reports, Molices, Circwlars, ele from Lh
Company electronically. _ ‘

Voting through electronic means:

Fursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 angd Rule 20 of
Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014, as amended by the Compari
{Managernent and Administration} Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Coligations and Disclosure Requirgments), Regulations, 2015, lhe Company is pleased o
provide members facility 1o exercise their nighl to vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by
electronic means and the busmess may be transacted through &-Voting Services. The facility
af cashing the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other thgn
venue of the AGHM (‘remote e-voting™ will be provided by MNational Securities Dep'nsitory
Limited (NSO,

The Company has aoproached NSDOL for providing e-voling services through its ervotia
platform. In this regard, your Demat Account/Falo Number has been enrolled by the Campany
for your participation in & voting an resslution placad by the Company on e-Voting system. |
The Motice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company inter alia indicating the
process and manner of e-Voling process along with prinled Attendance Slip and Proxy Fofm
can be downloaded from the link https:/fiwww. evoting.nsdl.com or from the websile of compahy
L. hilps My sudhaapoarsis. com,

The e-voling perlod commences on Seplember 24, 2015 (9:00 am) and ends on September "E,
2012 {500 pm). During ihis period shareholders’ of the Company, may cast their voie
electroncally. The e-voting module shall also be disabied for voting thereafter. Onee the vile
on a resclulion is cast by the sharehpider, the sharehalder shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently. I

The veting rights of members shali be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity sh#re

capital of the Company as on the cut-off data of 20" September, 2019. Any person, Thn

3 ’ |
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acguires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of ihe
notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 20" September, 2019, may obtain the iogin

ID and password by sending a request at gvoting@nsdl.co.in_ar Registrar and Transfer Agent
{RTAY of the Company at da@alanki.com

-

e facility for voling through remote e-voting f ballot paper { Poling Paper shall be made
avalahle at the AGM and the members attending the meeling who have not cast their vote by
remole e-voling shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

The procedure to login to e-Voting website consists of two steps as detailed hereunder:

Step 12 Log-in to NSOL e-Voting system

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Cpen web browser by typing the following UHL:'.

hikps: Swww evoting.nsdk.com/,
1. Orige the home page of e-Voling system is launched, chck on the icon "Legin® which is

avalable under 'Shareholders’ section. :
3 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User D, your Password and a
werdication Code as shown on the scresn. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDY
eservices ic. IDEAS, you can log-in at htips:teservices.nsdl.com! with your existing IDEA
login. @nge you lag-in to NSDL eservices aller using your log-in credentials, click on e-votin
and you can procead to Step 2 i.e. cast your vole electronically. )
4. Your User 1D detalls will be as per details given betow 5
fFor Members who hold shares in demat account with NSOL: 8 Character DP 10 fulluwed_byg
Digit Chent 10 (Fer example if your DP 1D e N30 and Client 1D s 12**** then your user |
is IN3OO" #1274}, j
a} For Members wha hold shares in demat account with CDSL: 16 Cigit Beneficiary 10 {For
example if your Beneficiary 1D is 12%****47"""""" lhen your user D) jg qasmeseentwenindy
bl For Members holding shares in Physical Form: EVEN Number followed by Foko Numb
regqistered with the company (For example if folio number {5 001*** and EVEN is 10143
then wser ) is 103458001,

1
Your password details are given below!

2

a. If you are already registered for e-Yoting, then you can use your existing password to I':.\agiI
ard cast your vote.

b, If you are using NSDL e-Voting syslem for the first time, you will need lo retrieve the ‘initigl
password' which was communicated 1o you. Once you retrisve your 'initial password’, you
need enter the 'initial password” and the system will force you le change your password,

¢ How lo retrieve your initial password’? :

L If your email 1D is registerad in your demat account of wilh the company, your 'initigl
password’ is communicated lo you en your email |D. Trace the email senl to yo fro
NSDL from your maithox, Open the emait and open the attachment Le. a .pdf file,
Open the pdf file, The password to open the _paf file is your 8 digit cirent 10 for' NSQL
account, last 8 digits of clignt 1D for COSL account or folio number for shares held i
physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User 1D and your ‘initial password',
in. I your email 1D is not registered, your tnitial password' is communicaled to yoo an
your postal address. I
. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial passward” or have forgolten ygqur

password:

a. Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"{If you are holding shares in your demat account
wilh NSDL or COSL) option available on www evoting.nsdl.com.

b. "Physical User Reset Password?" {if you are holding shares in physical made] option
avallable on waw. gvoting nsdl.com. _

¢ Ii you are still unabte ‘o get the password by aforesaid two oplicns, you can send a requpst
al evetingf@nsdl co.in mentioning your demat account numberffolio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address. o

y



/. After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions” by selecling on t
check box.

3. MNow, youwill have to click on "Login” tutton.
4. After you click on the *Login” bution, Home page of e-Voting will open. i

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. C[:ck

on e-vating. Then, click pn Actwe Weling Cycles.

2 Afler click en Active Voting Cycles, you will be able o see all the companies EVEN{‘
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in aclive staius.

3. Select ‘EVEN" af the Company.

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. :

5. Cast your vole by selecting appropriate options e assent or dissent, uenfyfmodlfy 14
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on *Submit® and al
“Confirm” whan prompled.

6. Upon confirmation, the message "vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on l
confirmation page.

8. Once you confirm your vele on the resalution, you will not be allowed to modify your vota,

General Guidelines for shareholders: i

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI elc.) are required to Ee

scanned copy (POFAJPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc, with

aliested specimen signalure of the duly autharized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote,

{he Scrutinizer by e-mail rashmico@icai.org to with a copy marked to evoling@nsdl.coin. -

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any olher person and take uvimo
care ta keep youwr password confidential. Login to the e-voting wabsite will be disahled upon five

unsuccessful altlempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will nead to

through the ‘Forgot User Qefails/Password?” or "Physical User Reset Password?' épli
available on www evoling. nsdl.com 1o reset the passwaord.

Flease note the Tolkawing.

. i

A member may parlicipale in the AGM even after exergising his right to vote through remate
voting but shall net be allowed 1o vote again at the AGM, _
I

he:

i |
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A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of bensficial
owners maintained by the depositones as an the cut-off date only shall be entilled {o avail the

facility of remote e-voling as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper. |

The Chaiman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resclutions on which voting

to be held, allow veting with the assistance of serubinizer. by use of ballot paper for all lhoge

members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the rer‘rlof.E
vating facility.

The Scrulinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first colint :]pa

voles cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the voltes cast through remots e-voting in
presence of ak least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make,
later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's repart of the tq

-]

B=

=]
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voles cast in favaur ar against, if any, to the Chairman or a person atthorized by him in fwriting,

whe shall countersign the same and daclare the resull of the voling forthwilh. ;

Other information:

placed by the companies in which you are the shareholder.
!

e Your login id and password can be used by you exclusively for e-voting on the rescﬂuh#

I J



o It is strongly recommended not 1o share your passward wilh any gthar parson and take |
utmost care to keep it confidential. ;

In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions {FAQS) for members |
and e-voting user manual for members available at the Dowrloads sections of |
hitpsiwww evoting.asdl.com or conlact NSDL at the fallowing toll free no.: 1800-222-060. |

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 |

ltem no. 3

Shire Sunil Gautam was co-opted as an Addibonal Director of the Company on 1% Jung, 2019,
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, he holds office uple the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a notice fram a member, in writing under Seclion 160 of the Act,
proposng the candidature of Shri Sunil Gautam as Direclor of the Company. He is not disqualified
fram beng appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to ac
as Director of the Campany. :

Excepl Shri Suml Gautam and his relatives, none of Ihe Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
their relatives are concerned or intarested in the resolution,

The Board recommends the resolutions as set aut in item MNo.3 of the Notice far your approvat,

Item no. 4

The Board of Durectors of the Company has appointed Stiri Sunil Sautam, as Whola-time DirectcruL
the Company for a period of 3 (Three) years from 1% June, 2019 on the terms and conditions
ingluding remuneration as contained in the resolution. ;

Pursuanl to the provisicns of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V¥ of the said Act, th

approval of members is required to be obtained for payment of remuneration to Shri Sunil Gautam
at Whoie time Director

Lk

Except Shri Sunil Gawlam and his relatives, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personne! and
their relatives are concerned or interested in the resciution, :

The Board recommends the resclutians a5 set out in ilem No.4 of the Notice for your apprwai.i

Mterm oo, 5

The Board af Directars of lhe Company at its meeting held on 8™ August, 2019 has appointgd Ms.
loma Kumar as Independent Girecter of the Company for a period of five years, subjectltt: the
approval of the members in general meaeting.

The Company has received notice, in writing under Section 180 of ihe Act, proposing  the
candhdalure of Ms. Rama Kumar as Independent Director of the Company. She is not dizqualified,iin
terms of Seclion 164 of the Act and has given her consent to acl as Directar of the Comparly. The
Company has also recewed declaration from her that she meets with the criteriz of independente
a5 prescribed under Section 149(8) of the Act and SEBU (Listing Obligatione and Disclosyre
Requirgments) Regulations, 2015, .
A copy of her |elter of appointment as Independent Cirector, getling out the terms and conditions i
available for inspection by the Members at the registered offics of the Company on all working days
between 10.00 A.M. and 1.00 P.M. upto the date of the Annual General Meeting :

qé




MNone of the Directors, Key Managerial Fersonnet and their relatives are thereof gther than Ms.
I2arma Kurnar and her relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution for his appointment.

|
Tha Board recommends the resoluticns as set outinilem No.5 of the Motice for your appraval.

ltem no. 6
The equity shares of the Company are ksted on the Calcutta Stock Exchange. On 29.08.2019 Flakt
Dealcomm Limited became Ihe prometer group company of Sudha Apparels Limited on allotment of
shares by Flakt Dealcemm Limited to the shareholders of Dytop Commodeal Limited consequent to.
implementation ¢f the Scheme of Demerger approved by Hen'ble Wational Company Law Tribunal
{NCLT), Kolkata. Existing shareholding of Flakt Dealcomm Limited in Sudha Apparels Limited is
35 761 Equity Shares (4.82%). Censequently the promaters holding has increased from 73, 49% o
78.41% and public sharsholding decreased to 21.58%.

As per Regulation 38 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations.
#1015, every listed company is required fo comply with the minimum public shareholding of 25% as
required undar Rule 19{2) and Rulg 19A of the Securities Contracts (Reguiation) Rules, 1957,

In order to increass public shareholding holding to minimum, as per Securities Contracls
{Regulalion} Rules, 1957, the Beard of Directors of lhe Company at their meeting held or
A" August, 2019, considered it desirable to recommend issue of Bonus shares in the ratio of new
two equity shares for every five existing equily shares to public/non-promaters shareholders, subjec
1o approval of the sharehelders. The issue of Banus shares by capitalization of resarvbs ig
authonsed by the existing Articles of Associafion of the Company as well as the proposed amanded
Articles of Association of the Company in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013, |
None of the Directors ¢ Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is concerned or mteresteci in the
resolution

The Board recommends Lhe resolutions as set out in item Mo, 8 of the Molice for your apprwaﬁ; i

Itern Mo, ¥ .
During the year ended 31* March, 2019, the Company has entered into material related; pary
transactions, as defined under SEBI {Listing Obligalions and Disclosureg Requirements) Regulations,
2015 wilh Pushpaniali investrade Private Limited and in compliance thereof, shareholders' approval
is being sought hersin. The Awdit Cemmittee has approved Related Pary Transactions, which wale
in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis, placed before it
The pariculars of transaction are as under-

ta) Name of the Related Party- Pushpanjzii Invesirade Private Limited.
{1} Name of the Director or Key Manageriat personnel, who is related, if any-
Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Wheie Time Director !
(c} Nature of relationshic- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Director's relative i a member;of
Pushpan]al investrade Private Limited.

{d) Mature of ransaction, material terms, monetary value and particulars of lransaction- MateTai
terms and Pariculars of the transactions:

[nng the year ended 318t March, 2019, the Company has provided lpan amounting to Rs.
1652.14 lakhs to Pushpanjali Invesirade Private Limited for general corporaie purposes.

(&1 Any other infarmalion relevant for the members to make & decision on the transaction- Hondg
Mona of the Directors/®ey Managerial Personngl of the Companyfiheir relatives are, in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution except Shri Mandat Ham
Garg, and his relative/s being member of Pushpanjalt Investrade Private Limited.

The Board recommends the resclutions as set out in item No. 7 of the Notice for your approval.

%




Item Mo, 8: :
Durng the year enced 31% March, 2018, the Company has entered into material related party i
transactions, as defined under SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations,
=915 with Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited and in compliance thereof, sharcholders’ approval is
bewig soughl herein. The Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions, which were in
the grdinary course of business and at arm's lerglh basis, placed before ib '

The pariculars of transaction are as under-

{a) Name of the Related Party- Gautam Fin-invest Privale Lirnited.

(b) Name of the Director or Key Manageriat personnel, who is related, if any-
Mr. Mangal Ram Garg, Whele Time Director :

{ci Nalure of relationship- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Direclor and his relative’ are
members in Gautam Fin-lnvest Private Limited :

(d) Mature of transaction, material lerms, monetary vailue and particulars of transaction- Material
terms and Particulars of the transactions:

Dufing the year ended 31st March, 2018, the Company has provided loans amounting (o Rs,
2272 98 lakhs o Gautam Fin-lnvest Private Limiled for general corporate purposes,

(e Any otner information relevant for the members to make a decision on the lransaction- Mone

concerned or interested, linancially or otherwise, in the said resolution except Shri Mangat-Ram

o
MNone of the Directorsfkey Managerial Personnel of the Companyitheir relatives are, in any wz:-*
Garg and his relativels being member of Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited.

The Board recammends the resolutions as set oul in ilem No. 8 of the Notice for your approval.

it Ko, % '
During the year ended 31% March, 2018, the Company has entered into material related party
ransacliens, as defined under SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disciosure Requiremenis) Regulations
2015 with Sigma Inirastructure Private Limited and in compliance theraot, shareholdars’ approval |8
being sought hergin. The. Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions, which were jn
the ordinary course of business and at arm’s lenglh basis, placed before it

The pariculars of iransaclion are as undei-

(a) Name of the Relaled Pary- Sigma Infrastructure Private Limited, -

{b} Narre of the Director or Key Manageriat parsonnel, who is relaled, if any- !
Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Tims Director i

(c} Nature of relationship- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Director is a Member in Sigma
tnlrastructure Private Limited .

{t} Nature of transaction, material tenms, menelary value and particulars of transaction- Malerial
lerms and Particulars of the transactions:
During e year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company has provided loans amuuqtingrtu
fis. 1853 73 lakhs to Sigma Infrastructure Private Limited for general corporate purposes.

(e} Any other informalion relevant for the members to make & decision on the transaction- Mone

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in a!ny ay
concerned or inierested, financially or otherwise, in the said resclution except Shri Mangat Ram
Gurg and his relatives being member of Sigma |nfrastructure Frivale Limited.

The Board recommends the resolutions as set ot in tem No. 9 of the Nolice for your approval,

Item Wa. 10: :
Curing the year ended 31% March, 2018, the Company has entered into material related ertyr
transactions. as defined under SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 with Crshpark Vincom Limited and in compliance thereof, shareholders’ approval is being
sought hrerem, The Audt Commilize has approved Related Party Transactions, which were in| the

ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis, placed before it.
H

: |



The particulars of Iransaction are as under-

(3] Name of tre Related Pany- Crishpark Vincom Limided.

by Name of the Derector or Key Managerial persannel, who iz refated, if any-
Mr Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Director is a Director in Crishpark Vincom Lim:ted

{c] Nalure of relabonshig- Crishpark Vincom Limited is a Subsidiary of Ihe Company.

ot Nature of ransaction, material terms, monetary value and pariculars of transaction- Mategrai
lerms and Fariculars of the transactions: i
Curing the year ended 31s! March, 2018, the Company has provided loans amounting to Rs.
3819.39 lakhs ta Crishpark Vincom Limited for general corporate purposes. '

{2} Any olher informmation relevant for the members lo make a decision on the transaction- None-

None of the Directors/Key Managevial Personnel of the Company/their relalives are, in any way
concemed or interasted, financially or gtherwise, in the said resclution except Shii Mangat Ram;
Garg who i Direclor of Crishpark Vincom Limited.

The Board recommends Lhe resoluiions as set out in item No. 10 of the Notice for your approval,

itern No.11
in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 it is proposed to raodify headin *
of Clause Hi (B) to read as ‘Matiers which are necessary for furtherance of the Dbiec%
specitied in Clause lI{A) and delete the existing ‘Clause 11 {C} - Other Objects” of it

Memaorandam of Assaciation. :

|

Copy of the Memorandum of Association with proposed alterations has been uploaded ©

the Company's website httpfiwww.sudhazpparels.com for inspection of the members an

shall also be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company dpring
business haurs on all warking days, except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, from the date
of dispatch of the Notice, upto the last date of voting i.e. 27" September, 2019, _
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of th
members of the Cormpany by special resclution is required for proposed amendments n th
Menmorandum of Association of the Company. :

T 1

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, i any, way,
concerned or interesied, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions, |

The Board commends the resolutions as set out at item number 10 in the Notice for your
approval. :

Itam No. 12
With the enactment of new Companies Act, 2013, it is considered expedient to alter the
Liability Clause of Memarandum of Association of the Company in order to be in conformity
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, - :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Act, approval of the members of fhe
Company by special resalution is required for proposed amandments in the Memorandym
of Assoctation of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interestad, financially or othenwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the resolution as sat out in item No. 12 of this Notice for appfoval of
rmembers.

T




Qursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Act, approval of the membars of the f
Company by special resoclution is required for proposed amendments in the Memmandum|
of Association of the Company. i
None of the Directors, Key Manageqial Persenng! or their relafives are, in any 1.r~;ra;ur,E
concerned or interested, financiaily or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the resolution as sct out in item No. 12 of this Notice for approval of
members. !
|

ltem Mo, 13
The existing Articles of Association {AQA) of the Company are based an (he provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956, Upon enaciment of the Companias Act, 2013 (the Act), vanous)
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 have heen repealed and in view of the same the
Articles of Association of the Company needs to be rg-aligned as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2073, i

it is therefore considered desirable to adopt a new set of Articles of Association of the
Cempany in substitution of and 1o the exciusion of the existing Articles of Association. |

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Act, approval of the shareholders of tha
Company by special resolution is required for the adoepticn of the new ADA o replace the

eusling ADA and accordingly ihe approval of the members is being sought for the adoption
af the new Articles, '

The proposed draft Articles of Association has been uploaded on the Company's websitg
tttptwarw. sudhaapparels.com for perusal by the members and shail alse be available for
inspection at the Registered Cffice of the Company during business hours on ail working
days except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, from the date of dispatch of the Notice) upt’:

the tast date of voting i.e. 27" September, 2018.

I

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the resolutions as set outin item No. 13 of this Notice for approval of
mempears, |

By order of the Boatd

f/ﬂ
Rajesh Gupta

Place @ Gurgaon : Company Sedetary
Dateg : 8" August, 2019 '
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Cln: L17299WB1081PLCO33337
Registered Office: 2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flal Np 8A. 8" Floor, ¥olkala-700 020. Phone; 0633-30522053
Wehsite. hitp/iwwwe sudhaapparats. com. | Email: secretarial@sudhaapparels.com
PROXY FORM '
(Pursuant 1o Secton 1056 af the Companigs Acl, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the {Companies
;Managoment and Admeniskralion) Rules 2014)

e af the e et s)

Fogistgnal godress
E-man 0

I;';:él!i;:.'.rv.l.ﬁ."f.DF" 1o éi‘i;dmif.:.l.i.en'[ Lo R - S

i"Wa, being the membar(syof ... ............shares of Sudha Apparels Lirnited, hereby appoint

11 Mame
B RS ettty it es e e eeeeee e e e e e e e !

SignanER .o i e 0 TRITING RimheT

AOTESE e i e e e e i e

Signature. ... et fatng Rimdher

3 Mame: ...
Addiass e e e e .
Signature. t
as mylour proxy to atteng and vote {on a poll) for mefus and an my/our benalf at the 38" Annual Generl
meeting of the Campany, to be held on Friday, 27" September, 2019 at 11.30 a.m. at 2/5 Sarat Bose Roag,

Sukh Sagor. Flat No 8A, &th Flpor, Xolkata-700 020 and at any adjournment thereof, in respect gf sugh
resolutionsg as are indicatad below: ‘

| Resolutions T T TRer T "~ ] Against_
} T gonsider and adopt ;
i | izl the Audiled Financiat Statement for the financial year
i | ended 3tet March, 2019 together with the Reporls of
i [irectars and Auditors thereon; and I
(b) the Audited Consolidated financial statement for the :
’ year ended 31sl March, 2018 tagelher with the Reports of
| Auditars therean, | _ -
" To reappoinl Shei Mangat Ram Garg as Directlor who i
| ehres by rotaton s

'3 [ Yoappont Shi Sunil Gautam as Directorokthe Company |\ L
i <. To appomt Shri Sumil Gaulam as Whole-time Dirgctor of
| e Company - )
Y To appoinl Ms. Rama Kurnar a3 Independent Director of
_ |teCompany ——
B | Toissue Bonus Shares — | - o
o I'a approve related parly transaclions with Pushpaniali T
. Ivwesleade Privale Limiicc . :
i & " | o approve relaied party \ransactions with Gautam Fin- I}
T
|

6}




: i s
PrwemPrastebuniled b e
< YT approve  refated  party  ransactons  witn Sigma
| tnfeastructure Prvate Limited _.| L
11 To aporove relatec party transachons with Crishpark
| . .1.Vincom Limited - ’
;1 j.TP! alter Clause Hl of the Memorandum of Associaticn S
*2 3 g alter Clause B ol the Memorandum cf Association B : B
Jut o Teoadopt nowe set of Arscies of Assosiatian S _
*Aon-cabls for reesters holding shares i glectronic frm
Afixa |
_ _ 5 Revenue |
Signed this ... Dayof ... 2008 Stamp
Signaiure of shareholdet
Sigrittane of st proxy holder Signatues of second proxy ho'dse Signature of third proxy Folder

|
‘Feass pUt a (v ) in the approprizte columa against the resolution indicator in the bax. Alternatively. you may
mention tha oo of shares in the appropriate cofumn in respect of which you would ke your proxy 10 vote, 1
you lrave all tne colimns blank againsl any or all the resclutions, your proxy will be entitled 1o vole in thd
manner as he'she thinks appropriae. |

Motes:

{1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at thi
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of th
meeting.

FioA sy need nol be @ member of the Company.

13% A person cizn 3ol 35 @ proxy on behal of memberes not exceeding filly halding in lhe aggregate ngt
more than 10% of the tntal share capilal of lhe Company carrying woling rights, A member holding
more than 10% of the tatal share capital of lhe Company carmying voting righls may appeint a single
person as praxy and such persen shall nol acl as a proxy for any other person or sharehalder.

£4) 1n case the member appointing praxy is @ bady corporate, the proxy farm should be signed under ils
seat or be signid by an officer or an attorney duly authorised by it and an authenticated copy af sugh
authorizalion should be attached o the proxy form, .

{4 Appointing a proxy daes not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he 50 wishes

{6) in the case of jaint hotders, the signatuie of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joipt
nlders shauld be skated.

lo2—




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CIN; L17299WEB1981PLCO33331
Registered Office: 215, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Fiat No.8A, 8" Floor, Kolkata-700 020, Phone; 033-30522053
Wehsite . hitp:#www.sudhaapparels.corm Email secretarial@sudhaapparels.com

Attendance slip for the 38" Annual General Meeting

Folio Mo
O by
Chera il

| hereby record my presence at the 38" Annual General Meeting of the Company on Friday, 27" Septernber.:
2014 at 11 30 A M. held at 2/5, Sarat Buse Road, Sukh Sagad, Flat Mo 34, &ih Floor, Kolkata- TOO 020, .

Marne of the SUending MEMDET . . e e ;
in Block Latiers)

Narne of the Proxy {in Block Letters) ..ot e e e e e
{to be fited in, if the proxy altends instead of the member) -

Mo, of Shares held . I !

MembersiProxy's Sighature

Mole This ahendance slip duly filled in should be handed over al the entrance of the meeling hall,

*fpplicatie for invesiors holding shares in demat korm.
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